(a)

(b)

(b)

A meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL will be
held in the CIVIC SUITE, PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S
STREET, HUNTINGDON, PE29 3TN on MONDAY, 16 JUNE 2014
at 7:00 PM and you are requested to attend for the transaction of the
following business:-

APOLOGIES

MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meetings held on
19th May and 4th June 2014. (Minutes of the 4th June — To Follow).

MEMBERS INTERESTS

To receive from Members declarations as to disclosable pecuniary or
other interests in relation to any item. Please see Notes below.

WIND ENERGY DEVELOPMENT IN HUNTINGDONSHIRE 2014 -
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT 2014 (Pages 7 - 10)

To consider a report by the Head of Development.

(A copy of the proposed SPD document has been sent separately to
Members).

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT - OTHER APPLICATIONS
Huntingdon (Pages 11 - 36)

Fourteen new flats and associated external works — land north of
Pathfinder House car park, St Mary’s Street

Offord Cluny and Offord D'Arcy (Pages 37 - 48)

Provision of sports pavilion — new recreation ground, Alison
Lane, Offord D’Arcy

To consider reports by the Head of Development.
SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS
Huntingdon (Pages 49 - 58)

Residential Development — land off Ullswater and Handcrofts
Lane, Ullswater, Huntingdon

Warboys (Pages 59 - 82)
Demolition of 43 Station Road and the residential development of

site to provide up to 120 dwellings with associated infrastructure
— land between Old Mill Avenue and Station Road and 43 Station



(c)

(d)

(e)

Road
To consider reports by the Head of Development.

APPLICATIONS REQUIRING REFERENCE TO DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT PANEL

Buckden (Pages 83 - 94)

Erection of a self-contained two-bedroom dwelling — former 21
High Street

Hemingford Abbots (Pages 95 - 114)

Use of the ground floor for garaging purposes. Creation of rear
vehicular access through provision of blind arch. Re-instatement
of use of the first floor as ancillary residential accommodation
with associated works, Stables and Coach House

Change of use of existing workshop to residential use and
erection of slate roof conservatory to rear (in place of
unauthorised conservatory), Cottage and Workshop

Erection of stables and calving bays

Hemingford Park, Common Lane

Ramsey (Pages 115 - 126)

Erection of two dwellings with garages. Demolition of
agricultural building — land on Rays Drove, north west of 208 Ugg
Mere Court Road, Ramsey Heights

St Neots (Pages 127 - 142)

Conversion into four dwellings including demolition of single
storey garage — Marron House, Montagu Square, Eynesbury

Yaxley (Pages 143 - 160)
Proposed meat processing unit, offices and chill
storage/distribution with ancillary cash and carry — Plot 1A Eagle

Business Park, Broadway

To consider reports by the Head of Development.

LATE REPRESENTATIONS

To be published on the website — www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk on
13th June 2014.

Dated this 6th day of June 2014



Notes

1.

C fouaaloveado O

Head of Paid Service

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

(1)

(2)

3

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and
unless you have obtained dispensation, cannot discuss or vote on the matter
at the meeting and must also leave the room whilst the matter is being
debated or voted on.

A Member has a disclosable pecuniary interest if it -

(a) relates to you, or
(b) is an interest of -

(i)  your spouse or civil partner; or
(i) a person with whom you are living as husband and wife; or
(i) a person with whom you are living as if you were civil partners

and you are aware that the other person has the interest.
Disclosable pecuniary interests includes -

(a) any employment or profession carried out for profit or gain;

(b) any financial benefit received by the Member in respect of expenses
incurred carrying out his or her duties as a Member (except from the
Council);

(c) any current contracts with the Council;

(d) any beneficial interest in land/property within the Council's area;

(e) any licence for a month or longer to occupy land in the Council's area;

(f) any tenancy where the Council is landlord and the Member (or person in
(2)(b) above) has a beneficial interest; or

(9) a beneficial interest (above the specified level) in the shares of any body
which has a place of business or land in the Council's area.

Non-Statutory Disclosable Interests

(4)

(5

If a Member has a non-statutory disclosable interest then you are required to
declare that interest, but may remain to discuss and vote providing you do
not breach the overall Nolan principles.

A Member has a non-statutory disclosable interest where -

(a) a decision in relation to the business being considered might reasonably
be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial standing of you or a
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close
association to a greater extent than it would affect the majority of the
council tax payers, rate payers or inhabitants of the ward or electoral area
for which you have been elected or otherwise of the authority's
administrative area, or

(b) it relates to or is likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest, but in
respect of a member of your family (other than specified in (2)(b) above)
or a person with whom you have a close association, or

(c) it relates to or is likely to affect any body —

(i)  exercising functions of a public nature; or

(i) directed to charitable purposes; or

(i) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public
opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of
which you are a Member or in a position of control or management.



and that interest is not a disclosable pecuniary interest.
2. Filming, Photography and Recording at Council Meetings

The District Council supports the principles of openness and transparency in its
decision making and permits filming, recording and the taking of photographs at
its meetings that are open to the public. It also welcomes the use of social
networking and micro-blogging websites (such as Twitter and Facebook) to
communicate with people about what is happening at meetings. Arrangements
for these activities should operate in accordance with guidelines agreed by the
Council and available via the following link filming,photography-and-recording-at-
council-meetings.pdf or on request from the Democratic Services Team. The
Council understands that some members of the public attending its meetings may
not wish to be filmed. The Chairman of the meeting will facilitate this preference
by ensuring that any such request not to be recorded is respected.

Please contact Ms C Deller, Democratic Services Manager, Tel No. 01480
388007/e-mail: Christine.Deller@huntingdonshire.qov.uk. If you have a general
query on any Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for absence from the
meeting, or would like information on any decision taken by the Panel.
However, if you wish to speak at the Panel's meeting regarding a particular
Agenda Item please contact Carolyn Chegwidden - Tel No. 01480 388420 before
4.30pm on the Friday preceding this meeting.

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed
towards the Contact Officer.

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except
during consideration of confidential or exempt items of business.

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website —
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy).

If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports or
would like a
large text version or an audio version
please contact the Democratic Services Manager and
we will try to accommodate your needs.

Emergency Procedure

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest
emergency exit.




72.

73.

74,

Agenda ltem 1

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
PANEL held in the Civic Suite, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street,
Huntingdon, PE29 3TN on Monday, 19th May 2014.

PRESENT: Councillor P L E Bucknell — Vice Chairman
(in the Chair).

Councillors Mrs B E Boddington, G J Bull,
E R Butler, R S Farrer, N J Guyatt,
A J Mackender-Lawrence, P D Reeve,
R G Tuplin, R J West and A H Williams.

APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were
submitted on behalf of Councillors
Mrs M Banerijee, W T Clough, D B Dew,
Mrs P J Longford and J P Morris.

MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 7th April 2014 were
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

The Vice-Chairman announced that the Assistant Director,
Environment, Growth and Planning, Mr S Ingram would be leaving the
Council’s service on 6th June 2014. The Panel wished to place on
record their appreciation of Mr Ingram’s contribution to the Planning
Service and Panel meetings both in his current and former roles and
extended their best wishes to him for the future.

The Panel also was made aware that Councillors W T Clough, N J
Guyatt and A H Williams also would be retiring at the end of their
terms of office. On behalf of the Panel, Councillor Bucknell extended
his best wishes to retiring Councillors and wished those Members
who were re-standing for office every success in the forthcoming
elections.

The Panel congratulated Ms C Kerr on her promotion to the post of
Team Leader in the Development Management Division.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Councillor P D Reeve declared a non-pecuniary interest in Minute No.
75 (g) by virtue of his membership of Ramsey Town Council.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT - OTHER APPLICATION

Erection of garage and fence with pedestrian and vehicular
access, 2 Station Road, Catworth - 14/00511/FUL and
14/00512/LBC

Having regard to a report by the Planning Service Manager
(Development Management) (a copy of which is appended in the
Minute Book) and having been advised that Catworth Parish Council
had indicated its support for the application, the Panel



75.

RESOLVED

that the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management) be authorised to determine the application,
subject to conditions, on the expiry of the period of
consultation and following consideration of any new material
planning matters that might arise.

APPLICATIONS REQUIRING REFERENCE TO DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT PANEL

The Planning Service Manager (Development Management)
submitted reports (copies of which are appended in the Minute Book)
on applications for development to be determined by the Panel and
advised Members of further representations (details of which also are
appended in the Minute Book) which had been received in connection
therewith since the reports had been prepared.

Whereupon, it was
RESOLVED

(a) Erection of a circular outer ditch with circles of bog
oaks within to form a henge, land at Red House
Farm, Bridge Street, Woodwalton — 13/02040/FUL

that the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management) be authorised to determine the
application following consideration of any comments
received in response to advertising the application as a
departure from the Development Plan.

(b) Detached dwelling with access, garage and
parking, land at 208 Broadway, Yaxley -
14/0081/FUL

(Mr P Webster, agent, addressed the Panel on the
application.)

that the application be approved subject to conditions
to be determined by the Planning Service Manager
(Development Management) to include three non-
standard conditions — time limit, materials and tree
protection.

(c) Variation of condition 1 of planning permission
13/00164/OUT to substitute plan AP0001 _ P26 for
the approved layout plan drawing (AP001 _ P21) to
omit the link to Willow Road and take all pedestrian
and vehicular access from Broadway, land
including Snowcap Mushroom Site at Mere View,
Yaxley — 14/00162/S73

(Mr J Dadge, agent, addressed the Panel on the
application.)



(d)

(e)

(i) that the application be approved subject to the
prior completion of a Deed of Variation to carry
forward the Section 106 obligation relating to
affordable housing, open space and wheeled
bins and to conditions to include those listed in
paragraph 8 of the report now submitted; and

(i)  that, the application be refused, in the event that
the applicant does not complete the necessary
obligation to secure the affordable housing and is
unwilling to agree to an extended period for the
determination of the application.

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission
23H0117/84F which limited the use of the self-
contained accommodation to part of the dwelling
house to rental accommodation, 3A Broad Weir,
The Lane, Easton — 14/00126/S73

that the application be refused for the following reasons -

¢ it is considered that the proposal would create
potential conflicts regarding overlooking and a
loss of privacy and potential disputes surrounding
the use and maintenance of outdoor amenity
space. The proposal is therefore considered to
directly conflict with policies H31 and En25 of the
Local Plan, 1995, HL5 of the saved policies from
the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alteration, 2002,
policy CS1 of the adopted Huntingdonshire Local
Development Framework Core Strategy, 2009,
polices LP4 and LP13 of the Draft
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 4,
2013 and paragraphs 56 and 58 of the National
Planning Policy Framework; and

¢ it is considered that the proposal would be
detrimental to neighbour amenity by creating
potential conflicts surrounding private vehicle
parking and turning, additional noise and
disturbance. The proposal is therefore
considered to directly conflict with LP15 and
LP16 of the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to
2036: Stage 4, 2013 and paragraphs 56 and 58
of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Erection of farmhouse and associated access,
Manor Farm, High Street, Ellington — 13/1671/FUL

(Councillor B Lumbers, Ellington Parish Council, Mr M
Chapman, applicant and Mr J Bailey, agent addressed
the Panel on the application.)

(Attention was drawn to representations made on the
application by Councillor M G Baker, Ward Councillor
which had been circulated to Members in advance of
the Panel meeting.)



(f)

(9)

that the application be refused for the following reasons -

& the applicant had failed to demonstrate that this
very large dwelling is essential to the proper
functioning of Manor Farm. The evidence also
suggested that alternative accommodation could
be made available in the nearest settlement.
This proposal is directly contrary to paragraph 55
of the National Planning Policy Framework, policy
CS3 of the Huntingdonshire Core Strategy, 2009,
policies En17 and H23 of the Huntingdonshire
Local Plan, 1995 and policy LP26 of the Draft
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3,
2013;

¢ the proposal by virtue of the scale, bulk, massing
and location of the proposal will detract from the
setting, character and appearance of the listed
building, Manor Farmhouse and the wider
Conservation Area; and

€ this proposal is directly contrary to paragraph 133
of the National Planning Policy Framework,
policies En5 and En9 of the Huntingdonshire
Local Plan, 1995 and policy LP31 of the Draft
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3,
2013.

Demolition of storage shed and part of existing
outbuilding. Erection of a two-storey dwelling
house. Erection of a double garage. Erection of a
free-standing barn. New porch added to existing
bungalow, The Orchard, 11 Bedford Road,
Pertenhall — 14/00060/FUL

that the application be approved subject to conditions
to be determined by the Planning Service Manager
(Development Management) to include those listed in
paragraph 8 of the report now submitted.

Erection of four dwellings, land at former Marex Inn
site, Oilmills Road, Ramsey Mereside -
14/00092/0UT

(i) that the Head of Legal and Democratic Services
be authorised to enter into an Agreement under
the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 to
secure the provision of one affordable housing
unit;

(i)  that, subject to the completion of the Agreement
referred to in resolution (i) above, the application
be approved subject to conditions to be
determined by the Planning Service Manager
(Development Management) to include those
listed in paragraph 8 of the report now submitted;



76.

77.

78.

(iii)  that, the application be refused in the event that
the applicant does not complete the necessary
obligation to secure the affordable housing unit
and is unwilling to agree to an extended period
for the determination of the application; and

(iv) that the applicant be advised that the re-
submission of the application at reserve matters
stage should seek to reflect improvements to the
design and layout such that the new scheme
better reflects the characteristics of the existing
street scene.

APPEAL DECISIONS

The Planning Service Manager (Development Management) reported
on the outcome of three appeals against refusal of planning
permission by the District Council (a copy of the report and a
summary of the cases with wider implications for the planning process
are appended in the Minute Book).

The Panel noted that the Public Inquiry on the proposed development
at west of Bicton Industrial Estate, Stow Road, Kimbolton would
commence on 17th June 2014.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROGRESS: 1ST JANUARY -
31ST MARCH 2014

Having regard to a report by the Planning Service Manager
(Development Management) (a copy of which is appended in the
Minute Book), the Panel was acquainted with the performance and
activities of the Development Management Service over the period
1st January — 31st March 2014 in comparison with the preceding
quarter and the corresponding period in 2013.

Referring to the percentage of applications determined and although
these were marginally below the figures achieved in 2013, the Panel
paid tribute to the Development Management Team for achieving a
percentage close to the targets to which it would normally aspire
when fully resourced. Members noted that it was the expectation that
two newly appointed Team Leaders would commence their duties in
July.

The Panel was assured that the Service had met the annual revised
budget for fee income.

Whereupon, it was
RESOLVED
that the report be received and noted.
FOOTNOTES
At the close of business, Councillor Guyatt paid tribute to the

Members and Officers with whom he had worked on the Development
Management Panel and planning related groups over the years.

5



Irrespective of any forthcoming senior appointments, Councillor
Guyatt was of the view that he was leaving a good, strong team to
take the Planning Service forward in the future.

Councillor West paid tribute to Christine Deller, Democratic Services
Manager and Andy Moffat, Planning Service Manager (Development
Management) and Councillors Mrs Boddington, Farrer and Williams
suggesting that should he not be re-elected to office that he would
remember his contribution with pride and the Panel with affection.

Councillor Butler thanked Councillor Guyatt for his inspiration and

guidance on planning matters and Christine Deller, Andy Moffat and
the Planning Team for their support.

Chairman



Agenda ltem 3

Confidential - No
Key Decision - Yes

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Title/Subject Matter: “Wind Energy Development in Huntingdonshire 2014’
Supplementary Planning Document

Meeting/Date: COMT — June 2nd 2014
Development Management Panel- June 16th 2014
Overview and Scrutiny {Env Well Being] — June 17th 2014
Cabinet — June 19th 2014

Executive Portfolio:  Doug Dew, Executive Councillor for Planning
and Housing Strategy.

Report by: Head of Development

Ward(s) affected: All

Executive Summary:

The current Supplementary Planning Document [SPD] “Wind Power” was adopted in
2006. Since that time there have been major changes in national and local planning
policy, and the granting of various permissions and the related construction of many
turbines of all sizes throughout the district. The current SPD is now considered to be
out of date.

A revised SPD is necessary to better support the Council’s case at Public Inquiries
and in the general course of the development management process.

Recommendation(s):

That the Development Management Panel, and Overview and Scrutiny Panel
[Environmental Well Being] endorses the proposed “Wind Energy Development in
Huntingdonshire 2014” Supplementary Planning Document and recommends that it
should be adopted by Cabinet.

That Cabinet adopts the proposed “Wind Energy Development in Huntingdonshire
2014” Supplementary Planning Document, with any minor amendments prior to
publication being delegated to the Head of Development in consultation with the
Executive Member for Planning and Housing Strategy.

That Cabinet, in making that decision, notes the comments from the Statement of
Consultation and endorses the officer responses to the issues raised.



1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

WHAT IS THIS REPORT ABOUT/PURPOSE?

The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet’s approval for the ‘Wind Energy
Development in Huntingdonshire 2014” Supplementary Planning Document’,
(Appendix A — please note that this will be circulated separately) which was
subject to public consultation between 28" March 2014 and 9" May 2014.

WHY IS THIS REPORT NECESSARY/BACKGROUND

The updated ‘Wind Energy Development in Huntingdonshire 2014’
Supplementary Planning Document’ will replace the existing ‘Wind Power
Supplementary Planning Document’, which was adopted in 2006. The draft
SPD consists of 2 parts.

Part 1 of the new Supplementary Planning Document updates the 2006
version with regard to:

Reflecting the publication of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
and the recent on line Planning Practice Guidance on Renewable and Low
Carbon Energy;

Acknowledging the development of the methodological approach to assessing
the landscape sensitivity to wind turbine development that has taken place
since 2005;

Recognising and resolving certain inconsistencies that have been identified
between the SPD and “Wind Turbine Development in Huntingdonshire”
(2005), the study undertaken by Land Use Consultants that underpinned the
SPD; and

Acknowledging the need for guidance on the siting and design of smaller
turbines.

Part 2 of the draft SPD was produced in response to member concerns about
the lack of information on current cumulative impacts. It gives an assessment
of the current cumulative impacts of operational and consented wind turbine
developments, and guidance on assessment of future turbine proposals. Both
the National Planning Policy Framework [NPPF] and the recent on line
Planning Practice Guidance on Renewable and Low Carbon Energy confirm
that cumulative landscape and visual impacts need to be addressed
satisfactorily as part of any Local Planning Authority renewables strategy.

It is important to note that the new Supplementary Planning Document does
not, and was never intended to change the main conclusions of the 2006
Supplementary Planning Document with regard to the capacity of local
landscapes to accommodate wind turbine development. These conclusions,
though amended in the draft SPD, remain substantially valid. The intention
was to produce a more up to date, coherent, and usable document that is
compliant with the NPPF and other current planning policy. The SPD will be
used to inform and support Council decisions with regard to proposed wind
turbine developments. It will be used at all stages in the development
management process, including Public Inquiries.



2.5

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

6.1

Both the existing and new Supplementary Planning Documents are primarily
concerned with guiding the location of turbine development by reference to the
key characteristics of the District's component Landscape Character Areas.
Turbine proposals will have to respond to all the guidance criteria contained in
the draft SPD, and not consider certain aspects in isolation.

THE CONSULTATION RESPONSE

The new Supplementary Planning Document was subject to a six week
consultation period, between 28" March 2014 and 9" May 2014.

A presentation on the consultation draft Supplementary Planning Document
was given to members on April 29" and to the Executive Leader’s Strategy
Group on May 27" 2014.

Over 180 responses were received from a wide range of consultees including
members of the public, local pressure groups, Council Members, Parish
Councils, other Local Planning Authorities, several Non-Governmental
Organisations, planning consultants, and national and international renewable
energy companies.

Due to the large number of responses the Statement of Consultation, attached
as Appendix B, is based around the issues raised, rather than individual
consultee responses. The relevant HDC Consultation Portal Identification
Numbers are listed for each topic discussed, and then the Council’'s
considered response is given to the particular issue.

Among the range of comments raised the most common responses focussed
on the following issues:

Omission of guidance on other issues relevant to turbine development.
The need for better clarity in relating the 2 parts of the SPD to each other.

How previous inconsistencies have been dealt with in the draft SPD.

These and other concerns expressed by respondents have been fully considered

and, where appropriate, they will be responded to in the form of amendments to
the new Supplementary Planning Document.

WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN/TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

The draft SPD will be taken to Development Management Panel and Overview
and Scrutiny Panel [Environmental Well Being] prior to being presented to
Cabinet for adoption on June 19™.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The updating of our local policy position will give more coherent, consistent and
robust support to the Council's position with regard to wind energy
development in the district. The adoption of the draft SPD will give it additional
weight at Public Inquiries and throughout the development management
process.



6.2 The production, public participation and potential adoption of this draft SPD have
complied with relevant regulations and provisions as set out in the Town and
Country [Local Planning] [England] Regulations 2012 as amended, being the
applicable regulations for the process.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS

7.1  If adopted, the proposed SPD will enhance our local planning policy and lend
better support to the Council’s case at any future Public Inquiries, and assist in
the general course of the development management process when considering
wind turbine proposals.
Adoption by Cabinet in June 2014 would give the SPD additional appropriate

weight in respect of the ongoing appeal process and the forthcoming Public
Inquiry concerning the proposed wind farm at Bicton, north of Kimbolton.

LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED

Appendix A: Draft SPD ‘Wind Energy Development in Huntingdonshire 2014”
Appendix B: Revised Statement of Consultation

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

CONTACT OFFICER:

ENQUIRIES ABOUT THIS REPORT TO PAUL BLAND, PLANNING SERVICE
MANAGER (POLICY) 01480 388400

10



Agenda ltem 4a

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 June 2014

Case No: 1400102FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: FOURTEEN NEW FLATS AND ASSOCIATED EXTERNAL
WORKS.

Location: LAND NORTH OF PATHFINDER HOUSE CAR PARK ST
MARYS STREET

Applicant: HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL (FAO MR C
ALLEN)

Grid Ref: 523976 271566

Date of Registration: 15.04.2014

Parish: HUNTINGDON
RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
1.1 This application has been referred to Panel as it is a District Council

application. The proposal is to erect 14 flats with associated works on
part of the former car park of Pathfinder House.

1.2 The site is in Huntingdon Conservation Area. The site is bounded by
St Mary’s Street with residential properties on the opposite side of the
road to the north, Centenary House, a two-storey office building to the
southwest, the 4-storey Pathfinder House to the south and east and a
mature yew tree to the south-west. Castle Hill House, a Grade II*
listed building, lies nearby, north-east of Pathfinder House. St Mary’s
Street has a one-way traffic route from the south-west to the north-
east.

1.3 The application proposes 11 x two-bed flats and 3 x one-bed flats and
associated parking and turning space. The building would front St
Mary’s Street and be two and a half storeys at the front, with
accommodation in the roof space, and 3 storeys high, including a car
parking undercroft, to the rear. The front eaves is approximately 5.6m
high and the monopitch roof rises to approximately 10.6m high with a
flat roof section behind.

14 The application is accompanied by a Design and Access Statement
with Heritage, Landscape, Arboricultural and Biodiversity reports.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;

11



ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-
and-local-government

3. PLANNING POLICIES
3.1 Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)

e H31 - indicates that new dwellings or conversions of existing
dwellings or buildings to provide separate units of
accommodation will only be permitted where appropriate
standards of privacy and amenity can be maintained and
adequate parking provided.

e H37 - indicates that housing development will not be
permitted where there is a known source of environmental
pollution.

e H38 - indicates that development adjoining pollution sources
will be required to implement adequate design solutions to
reduce ambient noise.

e T18 — new development is required to be accessed by new
highways of acceptable design and appropriate construction

e En2 - development affecting the setting of a listed building
must have regard to its scale, form and design and setting.

o Enb5 - development within a conservation area will be required
to preserve or enhance its character or appearance.

e En6 - in conservation areas, high standards of design are
required with careful consideration being given to the scale
and form of development in the area and to the use of
sympathetic materials of appropriate colour and texture.

e En12 — permission for development on sites of archaeological
interest may be conditional on implementation of a scheme of
archaeological recording prior to development commencing.

e En18 - the District Council will seek to protect important site
features, including trees.

e En20 — wherever appropriate, permission will be subject to

conditions requiring the execution of an approved landscaping
scheme.

12



En24 — the District Council will encourage the provision of
access for the disabled in the design of new development.

En25 — development should respect the scale, form, materials
and design of buildings in the area.

3.2 Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations

(2002)

HL5 — Quality and Density of Development - sets out the
criteria to take into account in assessing whether a proposal
represents a good design and layout.

3.3 Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)
e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all

developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including
design, implementation and function of development.

CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — Identifies Huntingdon, St
Neots, St lves and Ramsey and Bury as Market Towns in
which development schemes of all scales may be appropriate
in built up areas.

CS10: “Contributions to Infrastructure Requirements”
proposals will be expected to provide or contribute towards
the cost of providing infrastructure and of meeting social and
environmental requirements, where these are necessary to
make the development acceptable in planning terms.

3.4 Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)

Policy LP 1 — ‘Strategy and principles for development’-The
Council will support proposals which contribute to the delivery
of new housing, economic growth and diversification and
infrastructure provision through the following development
strategy including: market towns and key service centres will
make provision for approximately 7,850 new homes and
support economic and community development that serves
needs in the most sustainable locations, promotes the vitality
and viability of established communities and maintains their
character and identity.

Development proposals will be expected to, amongst others:
a. prioritise the use of previously developed land in accessible
locations;

c. make efficient use of land, buildings and infrastructure
within existing settlements whilst preserving local character
and distinctiveness;

d. promote healthy, active lifestyles by protecting and
enhancing green space, sport and recreation facilities

e. maximise opportunities for use of public transport, walking
and cycling;

13



f. provide appropriate infrastructure to meet the needs
generated by the proposed development;

i. reduce water consumption and wastage, minimising the
impact on water resources and quality and managing flood
risk; and

j protect and enhance the historic environment and the range
and vitality of characteristic landscapes, habitats and species.

Policy LP 2 — ‘Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery’ - A
proposal will be supported where it makes appropriate
contributions towards the provision of infrastructure, and of
meeting economic, social and environmental requirements.

Community Infrastructure Levy- Applicable developments will
be liable to pay the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) as
set out in the Huntingdonshire Community Infrastructure Levy
Charging Schedule or successor documents.

Planning Obligations- Contributions in addition to the CIL may
be necessary to make the proposals acceptable in planning
terms. Such contributions will be calculated as set out in the
Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document
(SPD) or successor documents and will be sought through a
planning obligation. The nature and scale of planning
obligations sought will depend on the form of development
and the impact it is considered to have upon the surrounding
area on the basis of documentary evidence. Provision may be
required on or off site as set out in the SPD. The timing of
provision of infrastructure and facilities will be carefully
considered in order to ensure that adequate provision is in
place before development is occupied or comes into use.

Policy LP 3 ‘Communications Infrastructure’ - A proposal
including homes, employment or main town centre uses will
support and help implement the aims and objectives of the
'Connecting Cambridgeshire' broadband initiative. This will be
achieved through provision of on-site infrastructure, including
open access ducting to industry standards, to enable all
premises and homes to be directly served by fibre optic
broadband technology. Exceptions will only be considered
where it can be demonstrated that making such provision
would render the development unviable.

Policy LP 8 ‘Development in the Spatial Planning Areas’ —
Huntingdon is one of Four Spatial Planning Areas (SPAs)
defined in Huntingdonshire: Huntingdon Spatial Planning Area
comprises Huntingdon, Brampton and Godmanchester as well
as the Strategic Expansion Location of Alconbury Weald.
Huntingdon is the primary settlement within this SPA.

Residential Development- A proposal which includes housing,
including residential institution uses or supported housing, will
be supported where it is appropriately located within the built-
up area of an identified SPA settlement.

14



Policy LP 13 — ‘Quality of Design’- A proposal will need to be
designed to a high standard based on a thorough
understanding of the site and its context. A proposal will
therefore be expected to demonstrate that, amongst other
matters, it: provides a strong sense of place through a design
solution which reflects the surroundings , contributes positively
to the local character, appearance, form and pattern of
development through sensitive siting, scale, massing, form
and arrangement of new development and use of colour and
materials, includes high quality hard and soft landscaping and
boundary treatments so that there is a distinctive environment
for the development and to help integration with adjoining
landscapes, has had regard to the Huntingdonshire Design
Guide SPD (2007), Huntingdonshire Landscape and
Townscape Assessment SPD (2007) and the Cambridgeshire
Design Guide (2007) or successor documents and other
relevant advice that promotes high quality design or that
details the quality or character of the surroundings including,
but not limited to, conservation area character statements,
neighbourhood development plans, village design statements,
parish plans, urban design frameworks, design briefs, master
plans and national guidance.

Residential Development: a proposal for homes, including
conversions and subdivisions that creates new homes, will be
expected to demonstrate how they achieve the criteria of the
‘Building for Life’ standard or equivalent successor standards
in order to achieve high quality development.

A proposal including 10 or more homes will be expected to
demonstrate how they meet the 'Building for Life' Silver
(Good) Standard or higher, or an equivalent in a successor or
equivalent standard. Where there are significant constraints to
meeting this standard they should be detailed in the design
and access statement for the proposal.

As part of meeting the needs of our ageing population and
those of people with disabilities a proposal that includes 10 or
more homes will be expected to demonstrate how it complies
with the Lifetime Neighbourhood standards or successor
standards.

Policy LP 14 ‘Reducing Carbon Dioxide Emissions’- A
proposal will be supported where it can be demonstrated that
viable efforts to reduce carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions have
been incorporated. A hierarchical approach should be taken in
order to achieve CO2 reductions:

1. Reduce the need to use energy

2. Use energy efficiently

3. Obtain energy from low or zero carbon sources

Residential Development - A proposal that includes a new
home, including a conversion or subdivision that creates a
new home, or for a residential institution or for supported
housing, will be required to meet the following standards.
These requirements will not come into effect until successive

15



updates to Part L of the Building Regulations become
mandatory:

* At least full Code for Sustainable Homes (CSH) (or an
equivalent or successor standard) level 4

* Zero Carbon if built after April 2016.

Policy LP 15 -‘Ensuring a High Standard of Amenity’- A
proposal will be supported where a high standard of amenity
is provided for existing and future users and residents of both
the surroundings and the proposed development. A proposal
will therefore be expected to demonstrate how it addresses,
amongst others:

a. availability of daylight and sunlight, particularly the amount
of natural light entering homes, the effects of overshadowing
and the need for artificial light;

b. the design and separation of buildings with regard to the
potential for overlooking causing loss of privacy and resultant
physical relationships and whether they could be considered
to be oppressive or overbearing;

c. the predicted internal and external levels, timing, duration
and character of noise;

d. the potential for adverse impacts on air quality, particularly
affecting air quality management areas;

e. the potential for adverse impacts of obtrusive light and the
contamination of land, groundwater or surface water; and

f. the extent to which people feel at risk from crime by
incorporating Secured By Design principles.

Policy LP 17 — ‘Sustainable Travel: A proposal will be
supported where it is demonstrated that:

a. opportunities are maximised for the use of sustainable
travel modes;

b. traffic volumes can be accommodated and will not cause
significant harm to the character of the surrounding area;

c. any adverse effects of traffic movement to, from and within
the site including the effect of car parking is minimised;

d. a clear network of routes is provided that provides
connectivity and enables ease of access, to, around and
within the proposal and with the wider settlement for all
potential users, including those with impaired mobility; and

e. safe and convenient pedestrian and cycle routes are
provided where appropriate.

Policy LP 18 — ‘Parking Provision’ A proposal will be
supported where it incorporates appropriately designed
vehicle and cycle parking with a clear justification for the level
of provision proposed, having regard to:

a. the potential to increase the use of alternative transport
modes including public transport, walking and cycling;

b. highway safety;

C. servicing requirements;

d. the needs of potential users; and

e. the amenity of occupiers of nearby properties.

16



Policy LP 29 — ‘Trees, Woodland and Related Features’ - A
proposal will be supported where it avoids the loss of, and
minimises the risk of harm to trees, woodland, hedges or
hedgerows of visual, historic or nature conservation value,
including orchards, ancient woodland and aged or veteran
trees. The landscaping scheme for the proposal will
incorporated any of these features that lie within the site and
should link with any of these features on adjacent land/
nearby.

A proposal should seek to avoid affecting any:

a. tree that is protected by a Tree Preservation Order if this
would result in its loss, give rise to a threat to its continued
well-being; or

b. tree of visual, historic, cultural or nature conservation value,
where it would result in damage to a feature that would
undermine that value.

Policy LP 30 ‘Open Space’- Proposals will be expected to
include open space as set out in the Developer Contributions
Supplementary Planning Document or successor documents
and to provide or improve connections to open spaces and
green infrastructure nearby.

Policy LP 31 ‘Heritage Assets and their Settings’ - Great
weight is given to the conservation of any heritage asset;
more weight is accorded to assets of greater significance.

A proposal which affects the special interest or significance of
any heritage asset or its setting must demonstrate how it will
conserve, and where appropriate enhance, the asset. Any
harm must be fully justified and this harm will be weighed
against the public benefit of the proposal. Substantial harm or
loss will require exceptional justification. Harm to assets of the
highest significance will require wholly exceptional
justification.

A proposal will be required to show that:

a. it has clearly identified all the heritage assets affected by
the proposal and their special interests and significance, this
is to be set out in a heritage statement;

b. the design, siting, scale form and materials of any proposed
development will be sympathetic to the special interests and
significance of the heritage asset;

c. it would not have an adverse impact on views of or from the
heritage asset or of the open spaces, trees or street scene
which contribute positively to any heritage assets and their
setting;

d. it clearly sets out how any alterations preserve the interests
of a listed heritage asset;

3.5 Supplementary Planning Guidance and Documents

Planning and Urban Design Framework — Pathfinder House
June 2005 — establishes clear principles relating to land use,
site planning and building form that would apply to any
redevelopment of the site.

17



¢ Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD 2007

e Huntingdon Conservation Area Character Assessment
2007.

e Developer Contributions SPD 2011. The Document provides
guidance on the Community Infrastructure Levy and, in
section B, the provision of Greenspace. B14 confirms that off-
site contributions will be required when on-site space is not
provided. B45 confirms maintenance sums are required.

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

4,

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

PLANNING HISTORY

Planning permission for the now-demolished Pathfinder House was
granted in the 1970s.

0603732FUL Erection of new civic buildings and offices for
Huntingdonshire District Council including parking, landscaping and
external works approved 2007. This scheme included permission for
a 2-storey office block on the current application site with eaves
approximately 5.5m high and a monopitch roof, with a flat roof behind.
This permission remains ‘live’.

0703368FUL Erection of 14 flats, associated works and revised
Pathfinder House car park layout refused 2007.

0800316FUL Erection of 14 flats, associated works and revised
Pathfinder House car park layout approved 03.04.2008. Expired
2011.

CONSULTATIONS

Huntingdon Town Council - Recommend APPROVAL. (Copy
attached). Members considered it a shame that the design and plans
were not in keeping with the street scene. Members also commented
that the original plans for Pathfinder House faced strong objections.

County Archaeology — Recommend Approve. The site was subject
to archaeological investigation in 2007. No further archaeological
fieldwork is necessary.

Highways Agency — Any response will be reported to Panel.

County Highway Authority — Requests revised drawing showing
vehicle to vehicle visibility splay of 2.4m x 43m. Queries if the access
is suitable for large vehicles such as refuse freighters.

HDC Transportation — Recommend approve subject to condition on
2.4m x 43m visibility splays. On-site turning for delivery and service
vehicles is acceptable.

HDC Environmental Protection — Recommend approval subject to
an assessment of road traffic noise impacts on internal amenity and

18



5.7

5.8

5.9

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

possible mitigation in the form of a glazing and ventilation scheme to
achieve acceptable internal noise levels.

- The site is in the Huntingdon Air Quality Management Area for
annual mean nitrogen dioxide. Potential mitigation options have been
considered but are considered to neither be essential or practicable
due to the relatively encompassing nature of the pollution sources.
-Contamination. This site was previously occupied by buildings/car
park and the proposed development includes residential gardens. A
land contamination risk assessment (and if necessary a remediation
strategy) is recommended for approval by the Local Planning
Authority (LPA) prior to the commencement of development. Where it
has been necessary to carry out land contamination remediation
work, a remediation and verification report should be submitted to and
agreed by the LPA prior to occupation of the site.

HDC Operations - refuse will be collected via plastic sacks.
HDC Lighting — No lighting details supplied.

Huntingdon & Godmanchester Civic Society objects:

- Detrimental impact on view

- Inappropriate scale of development

- Overbearing impact of development

- Design entirely out of sympathy with the housing in St Mary's Street.
The North side of the street consists of good brick-built Victorian and
later housing rising to a relatively low two-storeys. The new terrace
lacks careful integration with surroundings.

- The development is of disproportional height to the buildings
opposite. The high sloping roof adds too great a bulk. The building
should be more modestly sized.

- The existing traditional houses will face a less successful,
architecturally aggressive development. A more traditional design
would successfully echo the older properties and harmonise the
street-scape, uniting the two sides of the street and lead the eye to
the sweep of the road and glimpses of the historic High Street
beyond.

REPRESENTATIONS
2 objections from 5 and 7 St Marys Street:
The plot of land is too small to support 14 flats.

The financial incentive to fit in as many units as possible needs to be
balanced against visual impact. 2 storeys would be more in keeping.

The proposals are not sufficiently respectful or sensitive of the overall
character of St Mary’s Street and the conservation area. This is
manifest in three key areas: intensity, scale and design.

The intensity of the development is at odds with the nature of St
Mary’s street and vicinity. The 14 flats are at significant variance with
the five modest terraced houses opposite. While nationally there is a
serious housing shortage, that should not mean the intensity and
density of development should be out of keeping with local character.

19



6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

71

7.2

7.3

The scale of the proposed development is at odds with the general
nature of St Mary’s Street. It is opposite an attractive small scale
Victorian terrace. Two storey housing and commercial premises are
typical. Three storey element, are in the minority, and either historical
(Castle Hill House) or much more modest (St Mary’s Court).
Pathfinder House is at odds with the overall and natural scale of the
conservation area. A sensitive and respectful scale would better align
with the 100 or so two storey buildings locally, than the single much
larger scale building.

The overall design shows some sympathetic elements such as bays,
pale brick and slate grey, and a set back position. A green space
garden would be appropriate instead of the development, to
commemorate the Gardens of Castle Hill House and the Pathfinder
Regiment and serve as part of the welcome to the town centre.

Note CPRE and Godmanchester and Huntingdon Civic Society had
concerns about the similar previous proposal (0800316FUL), and
some of those comments are likely to apply now regarding the scale
of the development. It's disappointing that, given that HDC is itself the
proposer for this development and the Planning Authority, there has
been no previous engagement or even informal consultation with
neighbours on this matter.

Inadequate space for occupants' cars, bicycles and bins.

Design is not unattractive but is more of an attempt to match the new
council building than to fit in with the mainly Victorian terrace houses
opposite.

Huntingdon has seen too much unsympathetic development in the
past, with a sad loss of heritage buildings and walks.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The application proposes a building that, externally, is the same as
the one approved by the then Development Control Panel in 2008
(0800316FUL).

The principle of a residential development on this site remains
acceptable as the site is in a sustainable town centre location with
good access to shops, service and public transport. The proposal
accords with policies CS1 and CS3 of the Adopted Huntingdonshire
Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2009) and LP1 and
LP8 of the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)
and the guidance of the NPPF.

Therefore, the main issues to consider are: the design and impact of
the development on the character and appearance of the area
including the Conservation Area and St Mary’s Street street-scene,
the impact on the residential amenities of neighbours, the amenities
for future occupiers of the units, highway safety and parking matters,
wheeled bins provision and open space contribution.

20



The design and impact of the development on the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

The site is opposite a terrace of modest proportions and scale and
located between a 2-storey flat roofed Centenary House and the 4-
storey landmark building of Pathfinder House. The proposed building
not only responds to the scale of the residential properties on St
Mary’s Street but also interacts with the re-development on the site
upon which it sits, creating a transitional building linking the terrace,
which is understood to be Victorian, and the more modern office
building to the rear and side.

The proposed design is contemporary and does not seek to replicate
the terrace opposite. The design incorporates features to add to the
‘overall residential feel’ of the building and respond to some of the
more traditional features of the terrace opposite.

The vertical emphasis of the front projecting stairwells helps to ‘break
up’ the overall massing of the building. The proposed design is
considered to be of a high quality that provides visual interest and
seeks to be a transitional building linking the new office development
and the more traditional Victorian terrace.

The objections to the scale of the building from the Huntingdon &
Godmanchester Civic Society and the third parties are noted but
there is an extant planning permission (0603732FUL: site plan and
elevations attached) for an office building of similar eaves and ridge
height to the proposed residential development. In addition,
externally, the building is the same as the previously approved
building and whilst that permission has expired, it is considered that
there has been no material change in circumstance to now merit the
refusal of the current application on grounds related to scale, mass or
design. The scheme approved under reference 0800316FUL was a
revised scheme in response to the Development Control Panel’s
concerns in relation to the previous scheme (0703368FUL).

The hard and soft landscaping details can be secured by condition as
can more suitable alternatives for the Acer campestre at the small
frontage space in front of the westernmost two units. Tree protection
measures, including a Construction Method Statement, can be
secured by condition.

It is considered that the design, subject to high quality detailing and
materials, which can be conditioned, will integrate well into its setting
and will, by introducing a good quality building in place of the existing
hoarding and previous open car park, enhance the character and
appearance of the street scene and Conservation Area. The proposal
accords with policies En5 En6 En18 En20 En25 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan, HL5 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan
Alterations (2002), CS1 of the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local
Development Framework Core Strategy (2009), LP13 LP29 LP31 of
the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013) and the
guidance of the Huntingdonshire Design Guide.

21



Impact on Residential Amenity

7.10

7.11

The building would lie opposite dwellings in St Mary’s Street. The
building will be taller than the properties opposite, however, having
regard to the relative orientation of the proposed and existing
buildings and the reasonable separation distance between them, it is
considered that there would no significant detrimental loss of amenity
from overbearing, overlooking or overshadowing effects to these
neighbouring properties. The proposal would undoubtedly change
the neighbours outlook from these properties but the impact, in this
town centre location is not considered to be unduly harmful.

The proposal will have an impact on the neighbours, particularly
during the construction period, but the proposal is also not considered
to unduly harm the amenity of neighbours in any other respect. The
proposal accords with policies H31 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan
and LP15 of the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3
(2013) and the advice of the Huntingdonshire Design Guide.

Amenities for future occupiers

712

713

7.14

The proposed dwellings will adjoin offices with windows and adjoining
activity on the shared access and car park. There is a minimum
separation distance of approximately 20m between the office building
and the proposed dwellings which is considered to be acceptable in a
town centre location to avoid undue overbearing, overshadowing and
overlooking.

The site suffers from some air pollution and noise. However, the air
and noise pollution are not so harmful as to merit the refusal of the
application. A condition can secure the assessment of road traffic
noise impacts on internal amenity and possible noise mitigation
measures.

The proposal is considered to provide good amenities for the future
occupiers of the flats, including car park and cycle spaces and a
limited area of private amenity space to the south-west subject to the
noise assessment. The proposal accords with policies H31 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan and LP15 of the Draft Huntingdonshire
Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013) and the advice of the
Huntingdonshire Design Guide.

Highway and parking matters

7.15

7.16

The principle of a building in this location has already been
established. The site is in one of the most accessible locations in the
District, including by means other than the car. In addition to
providing secure cycle racks, the site is within a 5-10 minute walk of
the bus and railway stations and a number of public car parks.

Access to the site has been approved as part of the application for
the re-development of the entire Pathfinder House site. The visibility
splay sought by the Highways officers can be secured by condition.
On-site turning for delivery and service vehicles is acceptable and it is
considered that the proposal would not cause undue harm to highway
safety.

22



717

7.18

The scheme includes 10 car spaces and space for cycle parking.
Given the accessible location and availability of alternative
sustainable forms of transport and availability of public car park
spaces in the town centre, the proposed on-site parking provision is
acceptable.

The proposal satisfies policy T18 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan
(1995) and LP17 and LP18 of the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to
2036: Stage 3 (2013).

Wheeled bins provision

7.19

Most dwellings in the District require wheeled bins for refuse and a
Unilateral undertaking to provide them. However, in this case, HDC
Operations advise that the refuse will be collected via plastic sacks,
rather than wheeled bins and so no contribution is required.

Open space contribution

7.20

It is considered that, as for the previous approved scheme of 2008,
the modest size of the site suggests that it is not expedient to request
that a children’s play space be provided on site, and instead, a
commuted sum should be sought to provide off-site open space and
maintenance in accordance with the requirements of CS10 of the
Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009), LP2 LP30 of the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to
2036: Stage 3 (2013) and the Developer Contributions SPD 2011.
Usually this would be secured by a S106 obligation. However, a
condition is required in this case as it is not appropriate for the
applicant, i.e. the Council, to enter into such an obligation with itself.

Other matters

7.21 The proposal does not harm the setting of Castle Hill House, a Grade
[I* listed building.

7.22 A condition can secure water conservation measures in accordance
of LP1 of Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013).
As with other developments in the District, the design requirements of
LP3, LP13 and LP14 are not being insisted upon at this stage of the
Draft Local Plan.

Conclusion

7.23 It is considered that the proposal is acceptable as:

* The principle of a residential development on this site remains
acceptable as the site is in a sustainable town centre location with
good access to shops, service and public transport.

* The proposed design is acceptable and will integrate well into its
setting and will enhance the character and appearance of the St
Mary’s Street street scene and the Conservation Area.

* The proposal will not cause undue harm to the residential amenities
of neighbours.

* The proposal provides good amenities for the future occupiers of the
flats amenities for future occupiers of the units.

* The proposal would not cause undue harm to highway safety.

23



7.24

8.

* The proposed parking provision is acceptable.
* An open space contribution can be secured by condition.

Taking national and local planning policies into account, and having
regard for all relevant material considerations, it is therefore
recommended that Panel approve the application subject to
conditions to include those summarised below.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to condition
to include the following

02003 - Time

Nonstand - contamination
Nonstand - samples

Nonstand - details

Nonstand - externals

Nonstand - construction method statement
Nonstand - tree protection
Nonstand - landscaping

Nonstand - boundary treatment
Nonstand - landscape maintenance
Nonstand - open space contribution
Nonstand - detail of undercroft
Nonstand - cycle parking

Nonstand - park and turn

Nonstand - visibility splays
Nonstand - levels

Nonstand - water conservation
Nonstand - noise mitigation

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Sheila Lindsay Development Management
Officer 01480 38490

24



PAP/M25
HUNTINGDON TOWN COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMENTS : 8™ May 2014

1400102FUL WEST
Mr Chris Allen, Huntingdonshire District Council, Pathfinder House, St Marys Street,
Huntingdon, Cambs, PE29 3TN

Fourteen new flats and associated external works. Land north of Pathfinder House Car
Park, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon

Recommend APPROVAL. Members considered it a shame that the design and
plans were not in keeping with the oringal street scene. Members also
commented that the oringal plans for Pathfinder House faced strong objections.

25




Development Management Panel A OCASRIES

ccccccccccccccc

@ Scale =1:2,500 Application Ref: 1400102FUL

Date Created: 03/06/2014 Location: Huntingdon

e == R\
n (e T
S WE ?
T PO AN
R LTy
L A R

5%

RGP
¢ _,?I

£ R
‘{‘C"

' B %y

.‘v

Ve

%

s
<7

= Wi A NN

NN IS .f’::’%*g"}i\ SN RO N ’

AR *? @z:gﬁ:?&‘;@ IS N ¢ AN

N oy \\“‘\ = \:\\ \ \\““.‘___-“ ‘ m\‘i-ﬁ_:g__:'f%* RE IR, - \\\\\
NN e s

A
S
TS

= -\ “%\ ',-':._, ,,'__..5 \ \
A AN /AN :
NENRAA N\
\X§\\\‘ \\&t‘&&}\\\\\\’vgﬁ’
%, __&\\’\,,;.,»?/

ST

%
[

\\ = NN NN
DR

Q}{{{\\\\§§§\\ N e \\\\ J
SRR

N
3 \\I; ‘\
Ry T AR TR
.\\i{%\&\\}&\t{\.\\i\\\&%\%\\{\%
s

S

Legend

% /| The Site
& m Conservation Area




i
1
=3 g )
H | u U |
i i, G : 2 |
: | w _’ |
i ﬁ 3 _ o |
! S° A : z
O 3 g 2 Z
| a < i
: Ei )t = 5 3 5| £ :
i o 2% =
[ g u | | |
U 2 § i § | 'g =
g5 [5] = g8 | & z':l_:
= : g < 0 a4 B
EFE T & z < 2 s %rE4:
[ E b= ~ 13 =4 o
; B E i R =i
§ T § I §§ Pk EO ggzg
i Pl B0 e

1585 CASTLE HILL HOUSE

=

Private Garden




DS 1o Lot % - l-_.VA
INIHAUOLSHO) ” ' .*__w,: QO | s
R

...u_ ® o 22019 Tviinaqissy v oNKINg

_________________________________

|1PUno) PU3SIq dysuopbununy

uuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

all cwcocmc ILUNnH

s [0

AR smwmf; ~ 4
2 N

AA 20_8

5 YT - E] ~ ] - = & B w
.»mimlmi%flmigms, ........ | | @ & m
mmmmmmmmmmmm ;ﬁw H == = = ]
1\
e -
B {1V Sl mum [l o T |
(o o M " __ H H HHHE mu || ea .:m MEIELE
A H B | o Bl
%%n = “ _“ | “
EEEEEEEEE |
1

Lumdund w0 WD B PO PR 0 Paks 83




A
o
D

][> osr01/2014

804

4’%\
Huntingdonshire

Huntingdonshire District Council

HUNTINGDON DISTRICT COUNCIL

CORSTORPHINE
& WRIGHT

Block A Elevations
[
05093

SMC

Al
N

11.80m

i)

\al\!
[ | CH]
Tk _

|

B

NMHHI\HHHHHIINHH | .
HHHHHI\H\H\HHII\HHH | | |||||||
: ,
T
- it
[ 1]
L
| ,, — '
|||||||I
|||_ I||||||||||||||||I||||i§
C ||:I||||||||||||||||||||||w i
- NHH\H\N\\W r"
|||||||||| ||||||||
!IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
||||||||||||||||
H\\H\H\I\H\H\HﬂlI\HHH ‘ ||||||||||||||||
HHHHHIMHHM\II\HHH a1 i

29




8% YEAD YoumEm
anTEor

IHDIIM B
ANIHJYO1SUOD

JWS
v 608 £6050
LV .| v1oer1090 .E_ W | ;,a_ I
SU0IOBS Y Yo0|g

TIONNOD LOIYLSIa NOOONILNNH

]

|IPUNOD 3213sIg 4Ysuopbuiuny

wery

allysuopbuiluny

g

e a

s [ vo] & ] [

NWMGZY 05 M a0l0tZ v

0 voonA5002 10 U Kt 0 0 sopoURdaI A 0
2 e o B 1Y s 2 oo o0 i o o 1o
»

R i 0 S o O 0 i 0
ices .

00Z:1 @ ue|d Aay]

g-g uonoas

WSeT—F— —

wo6's—x—

woeol

D-0 uooes

WeET 4= - — -

w06's —%

WOEQ) Y= - — - — - — - — - — - -

V-V uonosg

weez—— - — -

woEs—f— - — -

woe'ol




EZSuﬁ_ m
an o

LHDRIM B
IANIHAUOLSYOD

JWS
3 €08 €6050
[ B |2
Sueld v 3o0lgd

TIONNOD 101d1SId NOAONILNNH

.......

|1PUNO) 1U3SIJ dAysuopbununy

allysuopbuluny
IN@D!“

woowm <

mmmmm

Sv'yl 144

¥0074 ANNOYD

E]

| peg Zz peg

Z peg

ea ]

=

[0]

[

]

D ooyt (58] 58 ueuoust o Q
I u
| peg abuno abunoq abuno 7
|
{ = = 7
[T [
[T EE| d007d 1SHld
| |
[ = = = = 1= == = = =
I
7 zpeg zpeg 1 peg zpog | peg 1 peg zpeg Zpeg

ea ]

=

31

[©] (0] Q [©]

ﬁ o) usyoyt [51[59] usuony usyony [52f[88] ueyouy o M

7 obuno abuno | abuno abunoq W abuno 7

| |

———— ]

|- C T
7
ﬁ ﬁ ﬁ ﬁ ﬁ G¥'0c 144 ﬁ d007Td4 ANOD3S ﬁ
1o s, wllE I i8] [ ) Ok ] f B I of
21 B[ ueuony 7 regl 7 ueg 7 ueuony |0 |2
| peg 7 L 3 ‘uwm 5 7 3 uwm L 7 | peg
, B3] ueuouyt , uatonyt 33 ,
| zpog | sBunoy | s6unot | zpog |
Buiar 7 7 Buinny

r _ | _ | o . L o
Sl |1 7 1 [1 1 [ 7 1 TR | 7 |1
== = B4 = = = 11 = Ee= ] B EBE=
= e B —_ e = — = Il === = = =
== = =_—=

| —t——




GREEN PAPERS FOLLOW

32



1THOIM B
INIHANOLSUOD

JWS

a T £6050
ml T ouese o
VY o 90°807L, [ 00k 1908, [84,.,

T 40 1 199Us SNOILVYAZTA - V 30019

o Doy

TONNOD LOIMLSIA NOAONILNNH

wolord

ANITIVOW ATV

Z Uol}YDAB®]|®

weag Bupy 9jeI0uU0D “ZL

ainjeay ejobied
{elo pessald Pajeod OpMOd “LL

Adoued pezelo 0L
Suippelo ps1eoy INojoY [EPIOSIUIS 6
Sejels JooY JooyT Sjels g
ejose.| aInes) jauueyo
[ele|\ passald pejeo) Jepmod "L
PajeoD JopMmod
S3INPOLL UOHDIS MOPUIA POZEID "9
pejeo Japmod e paiinbal
a10ym sjaued oY|1-e-4007] pezels)
yim sieued peze(o Bullepm ueund g
Buizejs) jeinjonis v

punoung ainjesy
{eJoN possald pejeo) Jopmod ¢

19puLy PaINoIOD ‘Z
suomoug Buped |
STVRIFLYIN TYNYALXT

N AD

=

18080/30 ©

saton

SO UG 10 LTI ASe ]y SIS A Jo DTS

o i 0 S e ) ol ot e o o ok
TVOS LONGQ i

ueduog oasc wesvo i rapenpodel bt 0 04
it

]

C/ N

33




DO NOT SCALE. Al convactors st

Sahing ot dinensions and g

b takon o e g
s fo hocking a0

KEY PLAN

EXTERNAL MATERIALS

ot opie o repoduoed wiatthe consantof s Compeny

Figurad Simansionsonty
Vit iha st and b radpon

Z| o
5 |2
= ©
=z =3 S
EX] 8 £ - ~ >
5 08 3 ] 3 g 3 Sk Z
2 ° 3 k] ° 4 = 2
® 2= 3 7] 8 Q o~ <
= gog € = ° = S % & = ,
3 e § Bg § 2 2 o] e M8 =T g
@ 8L £ ns 2 F 2 £ o 7] 0 3
% 830 B 28 & 3 s £ = 2 |8 7 [
o Sox 8 2% % O g 3 5 2 |s O
x 5 g P OX @« 0w = o £ o 5 g
£ 3 2 £ 3% oz 5 5 » g 4 <] ~|, o R
2 £33 3233383 282 5E8z w | 5| g [P Li:
b1 2 = 2 22 ] £ o S
S8 sl osic 25 3§ 338 5583w £ | 5 S| OG0
5 o O3 ® 288 28 O£ g § O 94 o 5 = i |__§Em
> © 5o 3 £33 vy 5T L 2T R 8T © E 4 d 5 t g
2 2 %5 8 58L 38 $E =2 8 § 3O ¢ 2 3 18 L s
£ 38 %3 2 2 H
S 38 & 38 SE 52 © £ i PO 9 8 oz
£ S 2 & 338 ©of &5 B & O o © 2 Z 1% Bglo
N T I A1 © N & s 8 = o 5§§§g§E€QEO Bz
< |¢ H K)oage
=4 £ I @ g 2 8 &

06/03732

=1

I
]
E
i
i
]
i
i
I

O

section

o

DATUM 1270

3

T

4

|||11|i|1IN|||1IIWI!l’IIN
mnmﬂnumuu i

elevation

elevation

34




81896V 92610 X6
£26200 92610 ‘oL
18Y YEAD HOIMIEM 100NS 10018 “IIEH NooIE

o QUTTIIACT NI LHOMM B INHAUOLSHOD

IHDIIM R
ANIHJYO1SHOD

OWS

0SSk €600
— ousr
9080y | 0021 o (95,0 [ e
SNYd
v ONIaTIng
-

. NONNOD LORLSIA NOGONILNNH
i wolod

LALATAIA]

40014 ONNOY9

ANIJTVON 3TV

&

T
LRI

%
i [ o] ] [
T I R

NYId AN

084€0/90 .

SN SN0 10 ARG A48 0 1OUS SIS A Jo KUPIS

1 Byl P SO 10 s 2 Y0310 KSU0891 o i ) S .

10N0a:6u bt

g e 0 wosuo iy oy pacnporde: 10 peion 0qju.
L

¥ )

st

|z

TADIATAT

40074 1sdld

! i | !

i g
m ” ,a me_
i | m =
7 ! = =3

_\, T

) nnr_ = |..—L
1
Nyd 400y
T

YIMIHD NHY

WOOY INV1d

35



4 | v0l9__ | €60G0

90906, | W@ oozt |08, [ Wiy,

owms) o

vy

SIIH Sljspy

o B

NOUONILLNNH
TONNOD LorLSIA mm_IwZODOZ_._.Zg

avoy LYOW FUSYO

add
ients:

Tqditionak comm

Sl

Application Type:
Hloo TV

9 ONIgTng

sesips s ogasany

e —

p—

i
R Sy

ERERCRERCREREY
2
H
H

) W\,

3SNOH TIH 3

¥ ONiqing

USvO

SoGL=l

Cl




Agenda ltem 4b

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 June 2014

Case No: 1400283FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: PROVISION OF SPORTS PAVILION.

Location: NEW RECREATION GROUND ALISON LANE

Applicant: OFFORD CLUNY AND OFFORD DARCY PARISH
COUNCIL

Grid Ref: 522090 266607

Date of Registration: 07.04.2014

Parish: OFFORD CLUNY AND OFFORD DARCY
RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 The application is presented to the Development Management Panel

as objections have been received to the application and applicant is
The Offords Parish Council.

1.2 The Offords recreation ground was approved in 2010 under planning
application 1000299FUL along with 3 dwellings. The recreation
ground and dwellings lie to the east of the High Street and are
accessed off Alison Lane. There are 2 small temporary portakabins
located to the west of the pitch, and adjacent to the car park being
used as changing facilities.

1.3 The proposal is to remove the temporary buildings and erect a sports
pavilion that will measure approximately 18m (W) x 11.1m (d) x 5m
(h), and the entrance to the building will be the eastern elevation,
accessed via a footpath.

14 The site plan shows the location of a Multi Use Games Area (MUGA)
that is considered to be permitted development under Schedule 2,
Part 12 of the Town and Country (General Permitted Development)
Order 1995 as amended. For that reason it will not be considered
further within this application.

1.5 On the 8th May 2014 the applicant clarified the building will not be in
use between the hours of 22:00 -07:00. They also clarified that they
do not intend to rent out the building for private parties, and will not
play amplified music.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social

role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering

37



Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-

and-local-government

3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

PLANNING POLICIES
Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)

o R2:"Recreation and Leisure Provision” — applications for
recreational facilities will be considered on their merits bearing
in mind: advice from sporting recreation authorities on the
need for further provision; the effect on residential amenity;
the effect on landscape, visual amenity, nature conservation
and archaeological interest; access, parking and traffic
generation; the siting, design and materials of any building
and structures.

e ENn25: “General Design Criteria” — indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale,
form, materials and design of established buildings in the
locality and make provision for landscaping and amenity
areas.

e (CS8: “water” — satisfactory arrangement for the availability of
water supply, sewerage and sewage disposal facilities,
surface water runoff facilities and provision for land drainage
will be required.

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations
(2002)

° None relevant.

Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)

e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including
design, implementation and function of development.
Including reducing water consumption and wastage,
minimising impact on water resources and water quality and
managing flood risk.

38



3.4

Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)

LP1 ‘Strategy and principles for development’ - The Council
will support proposals which contribute to the delivery of new
housing, economic growth and diversification and
infrastructure provision through the following development
strategy:

Development proposals will be expected to:

d. promote healthy, active lifestyles by protecting and
enhancing green space, sport and recreation facilities

e. maximise opportunities for use of public transport, walking
and cycling;

j. protect and enhance the historic environment and the range
and vitality of characteristic landscapes, habitats and species.

Policy LP 13 ‘Quality of Design’ - A proposal will need to be
designed to a high standard based on a thorough
understanding of the site and its context.

Policy LP 15 ‘Ensuring a High Standard of Amenity’ - A
proposal will be supported where a high standard of amenity
is provided for existing and future users and residents of both
the surroundings and the proposed development.

Policy LP 17 ‘Sustainable Travel - A proposal will be
supported where it is demonstrated that:

a. opportunities are maximised for the use of sustainable
travel modes;

b. traffic volumes can be accommodated and will not cause
significant harm to the character of the surrounding area;

c. any adverse effects of traffic movement to, from and within
the site including the effect of car parking is minimised;

d. a clear network of routes is provided that provides
connectivity and enables ease of access, to, around and
within the proposal and with the wider settlement for all
potential users, including those with impaired mobility; and

e. safe and convenient pedestrian and cycle routes, including
links to new and existing services, facilities, footpaths,
bridleways and the countryside are provided where
appropriate and if possible formalised as rights-of-way.

Policy LP 18 ‘Parking Provision’ - A proposal will be
supported where it incorporates appropriately designed
vehicle and cycle parking with a clear justification for the level
of provision proposed, having regard to:

a. the potential to increase the use of alternative transport
modes including public transport, walking and cycling;
b.highway safety;

C. servicing requirements;

d. the needs of potential users; and

e. the amenity of occupiers of nearby properties

Policy LP 31 “Heritage Assets and their Settings”

A proposal which affects the special interest or significance of
any heritage asset or its setting must demonstrate how it will
conserve, and where appropriate enhance, the asset. Any
harm must be fully justified and this harm will be weighed

39



against the public benefit of the proposal. Substantial harm or
loss will require exceptional justification. Harm to assets of the
highest significance will require wholly exceptional
justification.
3.5 Supplementary Planning Document:
e The Huntingdonshire Design Guide 2007.

e The Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape
Assessment 2007.

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

4. PLANNING HISTORY

4.1 The most relevant planning history is 1000299FUL where planning
permission was granted for the change of use of land to create a new
recreation ground and car park with associated development of 3
dwellings.

5. CONSULTATIONS

5.1 Cambridgeshire County Council Highways Authority — No
objections but questions if car parking is sufficient for visiting teams.

5.2 Sport England — Comments awaited.

5.3 Cambridgeshire Police Architectural Liaison Officer — comments
awaited.

6. REPRESENTATIONS

6.1 10 representations made up of 2 letters of objection and 8 letters of
support.

6.2 2 letters of objection from 79 High Street and 105 High Street on the
grounds of :
- Inadequate car parking
- Impact on views
- Could encourage loitering leading to a noise nuisance and security
concerns and measures such as lighting would be imposing on 79
High Street.
- The pavilion could be used for late night drinking and parties as 1
private party already booked for w/e of the 12th/13th July.
- Erosion of countryside views
- Expansion of the building beyond the ‘village line’.

8 Letters of support from various part of the village but do include
support from 3 Alison Lane, 21 High Street, Offord Darcy on the
grounds of:

- The recreation ground is a great asset for the village

- Enables residents to participate in sports and provide the
opportunity for generations of village residents to participate and
enjoy sporting activities.

40



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

- Will provide changing facilities for the existing teams

- The establishment of the MUGA has led to call to establish further
sporting teams in the village that need changing facilities.

- There are alternative village venues for events such as parties. The
pavilion will provide warms drinks etc,

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has replaced
previous government guidance in the form of planning policy
statements and guidance. Paragraph 70 advises that, to deliver the
social, recreational and cultural facilities and services the community
needs, planning policies and decisions should plan positively for the
provision and use of shared space, community facilities (such as local
shops, meeting places, sports venues, cultural buildings, public
houses and places of worship) and other local services to enhance
the sustainability of communities and residential environments.

Paragraph 74 goes on to advise that existing open space, sports and
recreational buildings and land, including

playing fields, should not be built on unless:

* an assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the
open

space, buildings or land to be surplus to requirements; or

* the loss resulting from the proposed development would be
replaced by

equivalent or better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a
suitable location; or

* the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision,
the needs for which clearly outweigh the loss.

For the avoidance of doubt a consultation with Sport England has
been undertaken and will be reported on or before the meeting of the
Development Management Panel. This proposal is for a community
facility, providing changing rooms for players and will enhance
existing recreational facilities at this site. Subject to no objections
being received from Sport England , this proposal is acceptable in
principle.

The other main issues for consideration are whether the development
of this pavilion will be harmful to the amenity of nearby residents and
the design of the proposal. The recreation ground is not within a
designated Conservation Area and the proposed development is not
considered to be harmful to the setting or appearance of listed
buildings fronting the High Street, namely 79 and 81 High Street,
Offord Darcy.

Impact on residential amenity:

7.5

The pavilion will be 5m tall and single storey with a pitched roof. In
the first instance there is no ‘right to a private view’ within the
planning system. Having regard to the distance of the pavilion from
residential properties it is not considered this building will be harmful
to the residential amenity of nearby residential properties by way of
overlooking, overshadowing or being overbearing. Conditions
relating to hours of use and prohibiting amplified music will ensure
that neighbours’ amenity is not seriously harmed.

41



Concerns relating to anti-social behaviour:

7.6 At the time of writing this report comments are awaited from
Cambridgeshire Police Architectural Liaison Officer (PALO). These
comments will be reported on or before the meeting of the
Development Management Panel. However it is noted that there are
5 dwellings which directly overlook Alison Lane, increasing local
natural surveillance of the access road and the proposed pavilion.

The Design:

7.7 The pavilion as designed is acceptable in this location, subject to
conditions to ensure use of appropriate materials including hard
landscaping.

Parking concerns:

7.8 This pavilion will be sited adjacent to the existing car park and will not
result in the loss of existing car parking spaces. Users of the pavilion
will be using the recreation ground, or associated with those
undertaking sports. The applicant has advised the building will not be
leased for private functions. Given the sustainable location of the
pavilion there is scope to encourage local users of the pavilion to walk
or cycle. For that reason it is not considered additional parking is
required specifically for the pavilion.

7.9 Concerns have been raised in respect of parking on the public
highway. The government has advised that the planning system
should not seek to control matters that are governed by other
legislation, in this case Highways Legislation. Concerns about parking
on the High Street should be addressed to Cambridgeshire County
Council.

Other matters: The Recreation Ground has been Booked for a Private
Party in July:

7.10 The use of the recreation ground for 1 private party in July would be
permitted development within the meaning of Schedule 2, Part 4,
Class B of the Town and Country (General Permitted Development)
Order 1995, as amended.

Conclusion:

711 Subject to no objections being raised by Sport England, this proposal
is acceptable in principle. Subject to no objections being raised by the
PALO it will not be harmful to the amenity of nearby residential
properties, it will not be detrimental to highway matters and has been
designed to be in keeping with the locality.

712 This proposal accords with the NPPF, policies R2, En25 and CS8
from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, Policy CS1 of the Local
Development Framework Core Strategy 2009, Policies Lp1, LP13,
LP15, LP17, LP18, LP31 from the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan
to 2036: Stage 3 (2013) and the Huntingdonshire Design Guide 2007.

42



If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

8. RECOMMENDATION - Subject to the consideration of
comments received from Sport England and the Police Architectural
Liaison officer, APPROVAL subject to conditions to include:

Time limit

Materials

Details of any hard landscaping

Hours of use

Shall be limited to use as a sports pavilion only.
No amplified music

No external sound amplification equipment
Details of external illumination

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Clara Kerr Development Management Officer
01480 388434

43



Development Management Panel

@ Scale =1:5,000 Application Ref: 1400283FUL

Date Created: 03/06/2014

Location: Offord Cluny and Offord Darcy

e
Huntingdonshire

\\\\\\\\\ IR - O

© Crown copyright and database rights 2014
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

[T
%
A‘g“." ";
-

/,
a
w?.!f A
+ P,f g
g
ey
i
i
T
il

L
,4

i
4 gé",/dgllll’ : : vl
%""

g

7

.

T

7

b

vy

[>

/
r g
%

\

AL

4
3

i
'
=

N
Sl %
Y

P A

. '5?ﬁ=

e

i

H '!. /
iﬁﬁ' ,

fford Clun‘, o ,

\a0fford D'Arey 'y

L.

=T TopFm

seeall A

THO 2
:')"’:‘znd & Gjl/dé,él_* ;

—— T .ti N & :- .‘[ /
W )

Legend
— 1] The Site

BN

N

e e

A

T

=
|

ao\

X 1
F|‘ —
i
Great Parlol D
S Cloge
=




11102t anvo 1o /14 \2;

R oy ey

4] r
Rt ey
—_— T |

osnnmm.... 2393.,..

NYld LNOAYT ALS

W ey

ANAOHS NOLLYIHIIN
ASHV 080440

QLT SALVIST THHNHIOHL
el

WO BIBARY Mava
| LUV IEZZI0) amirsae 4

SO EEL0) mordaga )
cﬁ&ugsgxlﬂ“ﬂ. 0N Tyn

wEus||ineg

£O fhiog JJN_

1 ah ol ﬁ_ T mt\ \711_ Vi \I.ﬂft
B ¥f S Y o A Lyl

- j _ i!// B ?hﬂ!t’ . ._ o.‘\..mﬁlﬁ = ey
p——— e e {u.w.uz(-i | i, e~ — L /g s
ﬁ o s Gy L — - d T e ———— e, ” / | f -
e N e —— ———md —
e R ey ;llﬁu t_ \Pﬂ ————— “' f.ﬁ” —— I ‘HHH.,FFFI ,_\ L] \ ‘. \
i i T —— - f
, N ] N
N = N i = | _\m H_ i meed |
PR b oy by | et | [ It 1
i 00U0g Atewiliq pioyo e \ I T
FRATS 114 (0 T ] 1 gt i o | rfL \
356!.3.-.!]-..!-\.-‘.!3!.‘ v _ | / | \ __ HM 1 / i ulw
H.H.Lﬁuﬂ.;io s-iﬂ...-li...y Termep g i ™3 - f __|f ..1!»_“'!..% | | ,
T G0 s bt sy b e _‘ —f m Bl | k _
T R PAT 1 Suais o S, -

= — |
| !
.ilil.(...-:\xt..-l-:n...linaz h f _

|
Ik



o s & omomo o v
W8 e _sws

v LoL/gLott
s onowmn

eBouDIQ Jajop, 9904NS B POOH Pesodosy
s

Ko17,g PIOLO ‘PUNcIY uonDaIOBY

Lo3rous

sw

U¥ 130-5NI903

i e e e g = o . - 7
24210007 95, . T FOYNIVHO g 5 5 & FOVNIVHO
SY3IINIONI TVHNLONYLS ? IIAID JIUILUVHD - i
320k 2 B3| e ANTWNOITY TYOILYIA
SHIINIONT ONILINSNOD €921 5 03 buBpa 2 enbs NSNSV TVOILEA 7 e =N
Z Ol—lo Z _ m< o d0aMs NIWNSITY TYLNOZINOH s A INFNNSIY TYLNOZIHOH
hemjooy 4 £ o ¥ ow ] earn
< i 13A37113NNVHO LHOM c3 5 & § H H 35 T3ATTTINNYHO LHOW
g T3ATT TANNYHO 1437 SR H & & £ HE T3ATTTEANNYHO 1437
I TIATTINMIHINGD FEl B & H g & HE T3ATTINMIHINGD
el A E 3 H F K 3 z H 3 A A -
s (wwgsz x wwgzl) . TIATTANNOND X3 & & E & H H H H % 5 £ TATTANNOYD X3
8Y343SONTING [8H 3dA 1) 843N 03YILIVE 4IvH wn 7 wa
¥ 0S:4 = 9805 HOA ™ 084 = 689§ ‘VaA
Buppeq pue weaq iy 3. () uotyeubisap | 00SiL = BIFIg ‘20K i 0054 = S/€9S "ZWoH
(1 uoleubisap i paq Je} o WSy L |
paq seliop ugy L 2z Lo | wa NOILOISONOT S S w0ty NOILOZSONOT
2l : [T
SBUss04> ueliysapad je wug 5|8 Jvausned Z avou [ T | avoy
04 paanpaJ puejsdn wugz =77 Kemabeiiie) 7 ~~ Lol e
itk quay 2souing 0515zt %\ — 7
g =2 Ll wow - S
EIREARE IRTIATTS
Buptaeq pue pag
aj.00) 71§
] R SyTE et
. §
L 3avl o P g
— e
Sosubuz o seges 2 o 550 e P
A o
oo 2 [r— ~ T gy g
B
oz 3
&) orert voeit
oz v o N s
WP .
szz s L3 ~ soeLt 671
//w
o1z 9
“
00z P N ezl +
—
o8 B |
o8t B |
ot oo
o5t 830016 pun g1

@
ssouoll, aE0a~ang.

(%) eniop ¥Ed

s

SLNIOd ONISSOY) 1V STIV13Q 943y

avepuns ssEY I

CIEE Qe AR
5943 7gH 3dAL 140 Ng 304 ) :QX 5Q434 ZgH 3dAL
s

NOILINYLSNOY AVML004 dOLMIVIE

aseq-qns | adk| wwpgl

R
€062 04 DIy Wwpg wepesew

=

{U1ed1o0] a1qe}dope 1] UGZ) S

s

NOILINYLSNOD LNIWIAYC QV0Y $S31DV

| 31921 U} ) %2 U0 paseq yjdap aseq-qns | adk | wugey adors

(X'

906> 03 354103052 UEPEILW BSUSP BZIS WLQZ JO WS
506D 04 35102 BULIEEA WEPEIEW 3SUTP 3215 Wy 40 WD

28w 30y sy

oLt

avet

e, <oy San

seet

oD kg pauBlsep aBouloIp [no3

88U100,2104 POLIBAIND 0}

voipesu; uonount A,

STy
rein LY

|




YOS618d squed Aunj) piogio 3s01) piojedo s
PYIOWdl

|
P s -9z
Ww 000§ by eziSietod
sweN 8100 UoseP
Aq payoay) Aqumeiq
0041
a[eas £102/11/9z:218
JaquinN
1000/DWd(
sweN
ysHed PIogO
sl
ue|dJooy} pue suoneAs|
o Summeiq

spunoib Ayunwiwod pioyo
uonduosaq j08loid
03f01g

P¥1ONdr 7

S8JoN

0oosk

|

| J
o) Woox 8o
L =
E "
=
¥ aamos I
I ==
I " MO0 e
”, be HE
Il b
0008Y
NV1d¥0074

NOILVAZT3 LNO¥H

20111

NOILVAZ13 3AIS H1

ﬁ 20111

NOILYAZT3 3QIS HY

00081

00

NOILYAT3 ¥V

47



This page is intentionally left blank

48



Agenda ltem 5a

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 JUNE 2014

CASE NO: 00014510UT (OUTLINE APPLICATION)
PROPOSAL: RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT (2.2 HECTARES)

LOCATION: LAND OFF ULLSWATER AND HANDCROFTS LANE,
HUNTINGDON

APPLICANT: STANDARD PRODUCTS LTD
GRID REF: 523244 272189
DATE OF REGISTRATION: 29 AUGUST 2000

PARISH: HUNTINGDON

RECOMMENDATION - VARY THE PLANNING OBLIGATION

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This matter is being brought to the Section 106 Advisory Group and
Development Management Panel for consideration of the outstanding
planning obligations. Outline planning permission for the development now
known as Percy Green Place was granted in October 2005, reserved
matters were approved in 2007 and the development has been largely
completed but the developers, Freshwater Estates Ltd, went into
Administration in April 2012. The properties have been built but the play
equipment has not been provided and the landscaping of the open space
has not been completed. The landscaped areas are very overgrown with
weeds and there have been many complaints about the condition of the site.

1.2 The decision which now has to be made is whether the outstanding planning
obligations should be dispensed with in order to enable the site works to be
completed to a basic standard and the open space adopted by the District
Council without a commuted maintenance payment.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

21 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social role and
an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in favour of
sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering Sustainable
Development, the Framework sets out the Government's planning policies
for: building a strong, competitive economy; ensuring the vitality of town
centres; supporting a prosperous rural economy; promoting sustainable
transport; supporting high quality communications infrastructure; delivering a
wide choice of high quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of climate
change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and enhancing the natural
environment; conserving and enhancing the historic environment; and
facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

49



2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

Paragraphs 203-205 state that “Local planning authorities should consider
whether otherwise unacceptable development could be made acceptable
through the use of conditions or planning obligations. Planning obligations
should only be used where it is not possible to address unacceptable
impacts through a planning condition. Planning obligations should only be
sought where they meet all of the following tests:

- necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;

- directly related to the development; and

- fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.
Where obligations are being sought or revised, local planning authorities
should take account of changes in market conditions over time and,
wherever appropriate, be sufficiently flexible to prevent planned
development being stalled.”

For full details visit the government website
www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-
local-government

PLANNING POLICIES

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)

e R7: “Land and Facilities” — For new residential development of 30
dwellings or more (or 1.2ha), in addition to the provision of children’s
casual and equipped play space, the District Council will normally seek
the provision of (or equivalent contribution towards) formal adult and
youth play space.

¢ R8: “Land and Facilities” — consideration will be given to the acceptance
of contributions from developers towards improving recreational facilities
in the vicinity of the site to off set recreational requirements sets out in
R7.

e En20: “Landscaping Scheme” — Wherever appropriate a development
will be subject to the conditions requiring the execution of a landscaping
scheme.

e CS8: “Water” — satisfactory arrangements for the availability of water
supply, sewerage and sewage disposal facilities, surface water run-off
facilities and provision for land drainage will be required.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations 2002 (Saved policies)

e OB2: Maintenance of Open Space — contributions may be sought for the
maintenance of small areas of open space, children’s play space and
recreational facilities, woodland or landscaping to benefit the
development.

Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2009
e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all developments
will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable development, having regard

to social, environmental and economic issues. All aspects will be
considered including design, implementation and function of

50



development e.g., by making best use of land, buildings and existing
infrastructure.

CS10: “Contributions to Infrastructure Requirements” — proposals will be
expected to provide or contribute towards the cost of providing
infrastructure and of meeting social and environmental requirements,
where these are necessary to make the development acceptable in
planning terms.

3.4 Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)

LP 1: ‘Strategy and principles for development’ - The Council will
support proposals which contribute to the delivery of new housing,
economic growth and diversification and infrastructure provision through
the following development strategy including:

- market towns and key service centres will make provision for
approximately 7,850 new homes and support economic and
community development that serves needs in the most sustainable
locations, promotes the vitality and viability of established
communities and maintains their character and identity.

Development proposals will be expected to:

a. prioritise the use of previously developed land in accessible
locations;

b. contribute to the creation or maintenance of mixed and socially
inclusive communities by integrating development of homes, jobs,
services and facilities;

c. make efficient use of land, buildings and infrastructure within existing
settlements whilst preserving local character and distinctiveness;

d. promote healthy, active lifestyles by protecting and enhancing green
space, sport and recreation facilities

e. maximise opportunities for use of public transport, walking and
cycling;

f. provide appropriate infrastructure to meet the needs generated by
the proposed development;

g. support the local economy by providing a mix of employment
opportunities suitable for local people;

h. minimise greenhouse gas emissions, oxides of nitrogen, fine
particles and other forms of pollution;

i. reduce water consumption and wastage, minimising the impact on
water resources and quality and managing flood risk; and

j. protect and enhance the historic environment and the range and
vitality of characteristic landscapes, habitats and species.

LP 2: ‘Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery’ - A proposal will be
supported where it makes appropriate contributions towards the
provision of infrastructure, and of meeting economic, social and
environmental requirements.

Community Infrastructure Levy - Applicable developments will be liable
to pay the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) as set out in the
Huntingdonshire Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule or
successor documents.

Planning Obligations - Contributions in addition to the CIL may be
necessary to make the proposals acceptable in planning terms. Such

51



contributions will be calculated as set out in the Developer Contributions
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) or successor documents and
will be sought through a planning obligation. The nature and scale of
planning obligations sought will depend on the form of development and
the impact it is considered to have upon the surrounding area on the
basis of documentary evidence. Provision may be required on or off site
as set out in the SPD. The timing of provision of infrastructure and
facilities will be carefully considered in order to ensure that adequate
provision is in place before development is occupied or comes into use.

All considerations and negotiations will be undertaken in a positive
manner in order to come to the most appropriate solution and will,
subject to such evidence being submitted, take viability and other
material considerations including specific site conditions into account.

Where particular requirements of development sites set out in other
policies in this plan are known they are included in the applicable policy.

Subdivision of sites in order to avoid liability for contributions will not be
accepted. Contributions will be calculated on the complete developable
area. Where the development proposes the sub-division of a larger
developable area contributions will be apportioned on a pro-rata basis.

LP 6: “Flood risk and water management” - Flood Risk and Water

Management

Flood Risk - A proposal will be supported (including) where:

a. it is located in an area that is not at risk of flooding with reference to
the Environment Agency flood risk maps and the Council's Strategic
Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA), unless a Sequential Test, and if
necessary an Exception Test, as set out in the NPPF's technical
guidance on flood risk, proves the development is acceptable;

Surface Water - A proposal will be supported (including) where:

a. sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) are incorporated where
possible in accordance with the Cambridgeshire SuDS Design and
Adoption Manual and the Cambridgeshire SuDS Handbook
(forthcoming) or successor documents to the satisfaction of
Cambridgeshire County Council as SuDS approval body and
considered comprehensively with water efficiency measures;

LP 13: “Quality of design” - Quality of Design - A proposal will need to
be designed to a high standard based on a thorough understanding of
the site and its context. A proposal will therefore be expected to
demonstrate that it:

a. provides a strong sense of place through a design solution which
reflects the surroundings and in the case of large scale proposals
through a masterplan which identifies how the place will develop;

b. contributes positively to the local character, appearance, form and
pattern of development through sensitive siting, scale, massing, form
and arrangement of new development and use of colour and
materials;

c. includes high quality hard and soft landscaping and boundary
treatments so that there is a distinctive environment for the
development and to help integration with adjoining landscapes;

52



3.5

3.6

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

d. respects and responds appropriately to the distinctive qualities of the
surrounding landscape, and avoids the introduction of incongruous
and intrusive elements into views. Where harm to local landscape
character as a result of necessary development is unavoidable,
appropriate mitigation measures will be required;

e. has had regard to the Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD (2007),
Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape Assessment SPD
(2007) and the Cambridgeshire Design Guide (2007) or successor
documents and other relevant advice that promotes high quality
design or that details the quality or character of the surroundings
including, but not limited to, conservation area character statements,
neighbourhood development plans, village design statements, parish
plans, urban design frameworks, design briefs, master plans and
national guidance; and

f. has engaged positively with independent Design Review during the
pre-application stage as appropriate and has implemented
recommendations from the process where possible.

e LP 30: ‘Open Space’ - Proposals will be expected to include open space
as set out in the Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning
Document or successor documents and to provide or improve
connections to open spaces and green infrastructure nearby.

Supplementary Planning Documents:

Developer Contributions SPD (2011)

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk
PLANNING HISTORY

0700045REM  Approval of siting, design, external appearance and means
of access for 114 houses and apartments with associated car parking.
Approved July 2007.

CONSULTATIONS

Huntingdon Town Council — Any comments will be reported when
received.

HDC Operations — Operations are prepared to support the initiative in the
unusual circumstances but the maintenance of the area will be carried out
as cost-effectively as possible.

Wherry Housing — Wherry, which is part of the Circle Group, owns the
affordable housing properties at this site. It supports the variation of the
planning obligation.

REPRESENTATIONS

Residents of the scheme and neighbours have been consulted but no
comments have been received.

53



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

SUMMARY OF ISSUES
The planning issue is the provision of community infrastructure.

Under the terms of the section 106 obligation of 5th September 2005 the
developer of the site was required to provide the following:

(a) Affordable housing at 29% or a minimum of 24 units

(b) Education contribution of £120,000 (plus indexation)

(c) Base Highways Contribution of £2,000 (plus indexation)

(d) Highways Infrastructure Payment of £17,000 (plus indexation)

(e) The Flood Alleviation Maintenance Contribution of £5,000 (plus

indexation)

(e) The Play Equipment Contribution of £36,000 (plus indexation)

(f) The Play Equipment Maintenance Contribution of £9,500 (plus
indexation)

(9) Open space maintenance contribution of £36,000 per hectare.

Obligations (a) to (d) have been met but (e) to (h) are outstanding. The
indexed sums are:

- Flood alleviation maintenance contribution £ 6,597
- Play equipment contribution £ 47,500
- Play equipment maintenance contribution £ 12,535
- Actual Open space maintenance contribution £ 69,483
Total £136,115

At a meeting of stakeholders, including Operations, residents
representatives and the Registered Social Landlord, in January 2013 it was
decided to explore whether, if the Administrators could find sufficient funds
to complete the landscaping of the site to a basic standard (grass but with
no trees and shrubs as originally approved); install lighting along the
footpaths and fencing to the compound containing old industrial tanks, the
District Council would then consider adopting the area without a commuted
maintenance payment. The commuted sums are payments to meet the cost
of maintaining new facilities for 15 years from adoption. After that, costs are
absorbed into overall budgets. The Council will normally only adopt open
space when it has been laid out and construction to an agreed specification,
undergone 12 months of maintenance by the developer to correct initial
defects and the commuted sum has been paid.

At the end of April this year the Administrators, Baker Tilly Restructuring and
Recovery LLP confirmed Freshwater’s financial position. At the start of the
administration Freshwater owed approximately £3m to the secured creditor
(RBS) and approximately £500,000 to other unsecured trade creditors. They
also held the following property assets comprising 18 unsold or unleased
residential and commercial properties on this and other developments. The
Administrators anticipate that realisations from these properties, including
the 8 part-finished leasehold units and three freehold units at Percy Green
Place will result in a shortfall to the Bank of approximately £1m after costs of
the Administration.

In addition to these assets the Administrators need to realise a humber of
builders loans made to purchasers amounting to about £1m. The majority of
these interest free loans become payable between 2019 and 2021. They
have taken advice on whether the portfolio of loans could be sold now to an
investor but such a sale would involve a substantial discount and this

54



7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

8.1

decision has been made once all the remaining stock units have been
disposed of.

The Administrators are not obliged to carry out the landscaping, fencing and
lighting works but now the company’s financial position has been clarified
they have come to the view that there is potentially some justification for
doing these works as it would improve their ability to sell the remaining stock
units.

The proposal now before the Council is that if the Council waives the
remaining S106 obligations and any outstanding planning conditions on the
scheme the Administrators will in return make the costed improvements set
out below for the benefit of the residents and the local community.

- Groundworks £26,438

- Lighting £13,644

- Repairs to drain ~ £948

- HDC Legal fees  £1,500

Total £42,530

The information provided by the Administrators demonstrates that the
Company is not and will not be in a position to pay the outstanding S106
obligations. The Administrators express the hope that the Council will
consider their proposal a fair and equitable solution for all parties concerned
given the insolvent position of Freshwater. If this approach is not agreed the
Administrators have further advised that they may have no alternative but to
realise the remaining units and place the company into liquidation so that
they can disclaim their interest in the freehold to the site.

The proposal to dispense with the outstanding obligations does not comply
with policies CS10 of the Core Strategy 2009 and LP2 of the Draft
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013) but it is considered that
in view of the very poor condition of the landscaped areas which has been
seriously detrimental to residents amenity and that of the wider area for
some time and the unlit condition of the footpaths which are part of an
important network from Stukeley Meadows to the station and town centre
the proposal now before the Council is the best and only realistic option in
this case. If the proposal is not agreed and the developer is put into
liquidation the land would be left in its present overgrown condition with
nobody responsible for maintaining it.

RECOMMENDATION:
That the section 106 agreement be VARIED by a Supplemental Deed

dispensing with the need for the outstanding contributions subject to the
Administrators undertaking the remedial works identified above.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate your

needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Nigel Swaby, Development Management Team
Leader 01480 388461

55



Development Management Panel

1 Scale =1:5,000 Application Ref: 00014510UT
@ Date Created: 04/06/2014

Location: Huntingdon

Huntingdonshire

DAEITRIET EQUuNEY

© Crown copyright and database rights 2014
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

Legend

/| The Site
m Conservation Area
r Q‘\\x\\\ W 5 = o, \\\\‘ ey,

omi

iy w2

= W
N Y-:

! IE

Ny ﬂ%

ot . i) \:ik" &7 J o) Q

RO AR RSN TR A T = T,
S A e AR 4 N
2o 2 & Q‘:" - A4 ;”f*‘“f"tm\/’th_wb St G'

oAy A o s, o FAGTs % @»’f
b s RN T X

S

e
s\}‘ 4

!

A

PRRA ) s
RN 3 S
 Semae

TN v .

)
A
b g

o

ﬂfﬁ’, N
e

gl
I

T
T




I
= 1

L il e’

#3 8 L e
g ke Saat

, Fo)t|se ooz
|| uwmeesiong0”

oo 2depvon puo
330 Buwwoly 2opowwemo
St PEEvae ' gooz Ang P ¢ g vesway

"S00y umay do swaproB o
OF Umens 23 ‘3007 a3y ¢y uosvay

¢ 9007 NVI g9/bS W Sawou Bumag

. 1 g
L g m s M O VT

NOQONILLNNOM ‘ P3LYMST1IN
| SIVYS0J0Yd HNIVOSANYT INIMLAO

. S3LVLSI IILVMHSIYI wod

wooloe@sdeons)| - LyGGGO Z0GLO olldow
VI0LS@ X84 PuE OlOLSG COLIO 9uoydajes
438 GOS - 530K - llBusuY) - 192136 YBH @

“oubieaq edeospue] GANYD VYSI

by 1/ be bW swid ‘sposedayy Buduaspuoy papape osio 939G
| S{6E £WW ooy Gunosp 1 woid eysaawy 23y osfo 3G

-

QB WEH MY N ANIKAT) NVELNT -
3

e = g s e 1Y) DL QWH 2NN S

STy 24870 SR ,..,..mu.q:..u\_‘gui ng ATV 2 . ot

s RT3 IMMTT Yo s
RN [Shurr] <anyog oM IR R R

&




This page is intentionally left blank

58



Agenda ltem 5b

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 June 2014
Case No: 13017900UT (OUTLINE APPLICATION)
Proposal: DEMOLITION OF 43 STATION ROAD AND THE

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT OF SITE TO PROVIDE UP
TO 120 DWELLINGS WITH ASSOCIATED

INFRASTRUCTURE.

Location: LAND BETWEEN OLD MILL AVENUE AND STATION
ROAD AND 43 STATION ROAD

Applicant: GLADMAN DEVELOPMENTS LTD

Grid Ref: 531051 280593

Date of Registration: 19.11.2013

Parish: WARBOYS
RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
1.1 The application site lies in the north area of Warboys, west of Station

Road. There is residential development to the north, east and south
of the site and open countryside to the west. The site is currently
agricultural land. The application site is approximately 5 ha in area, it
is relatively flat with slight falls to both the south western and north
eastern corners. Vehicular access would be from Station Road.

1.2 This application is in outline but access is to be considered at the
outline stage. Layout, Scale, Appearance and Landscaping are
‘Reserved Matters’. The application is accompanied by an illustrative
layout (including within the Design & Access Statement) showing how
it could be developed and demonstrating that the site is capable of
accommodating the scale of development proposed (now up to 120
dwellings). The illustrative layout is not necessarily the way the
development will be carried out; that will be established at the
reserved matters stage.

1.3 The application as originally submitted in November 2013 was for
approximately 150 dwellings and the demolition of one existing
property to make way for access to the site. Discussion between the
applicant and District Council planning officers led to amendments to
the application being submitted, to address objections raised by the
Environment Agency and Local Highways Authority, and to revise the
description of development to “up to 120” new dwellings and the
demolition on one existing dwelling.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

21 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social

59



2.2

2.3

role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

Paragraphs 203-205 state that “Local planning authorities should
consider whether otherwise unacceptable development could be
made acceptable through the use of conditions or planning
obligations. Planning obligations should only be used where it is not
possible to address unacceptable impacts through a planning
condition. Planning obligations should only be sought where they
meet all of the following tests:

* necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;

* directly related to the development; and

* fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.
Where obligations are being sought or revised, local planning
authorities should take account of changes in market conditions over
time and, wherever appropriate, be sufficiently flexible to prevent
planned development being stalled.”

Planning Practice Guidance 2014

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-

and-local-government

3.

3.1

PLANNING POLICIES
Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)

e H23: “Outside Settlements” — general presumption against
housing development outside environmental limits with the
exception of specific dwellings required for the efficient
management of agriculture, forestry and horticulture.

e H31: “Residential privacy and amenity standards” — Indicates
that new dwellings will only be permitted where appropriate
standards of privacy can be maintained and adequate parking
provided.

e T18: “Access requirements for new development” states
development should be accessed by a highway of acceptable
design and appropriate construction.

o T19: “Pedestrian Routes and Footpath” — new developments
are required to provide safe and convenient pedestrian routes
having due regard to existing and planned footpath routes in
the area.

60



R7 “Land and Facilities” — For new residential development of
30 dwellings or more (or 1.2ha), in addition to the provision of
children’s casual and equipped play space, the District
Council will normally seek the provision of (or equivalent
contribution towards) formal adult and youth play space.

R8 “Land and Facilities” — consideration will be given to the
acceptance of contributions from developers towards
improving recreational facilities in the vicinity of the site to off
set recreational requirements sets out in R7.

En12: “Archaeological Implications” — permission on sites of
archaeological interest may be conditional on the
implementation of a scheme of archaeological recording prior
to development commencing.

En13: “Archaeological Implications” — in areas of
archaeological potential, planning applications may be
required to be accompanied by the results of an
archaeological field evaluation or desk-based assessment.

En17: "Development in the Countryside" - development in the
countryside is restricted to that which is essential to the
effective operation of local agriculture, horticulture, forestry,
permitted mineral extraction, outdoor recreation or public utility
services.

En20: “Landscaping Scheme” - Wherever appropriate a
development will be subject to the conditions requiring the
execution of a landscaping scheme.

En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale,
form, materials and design of established buildings in the
locality and make adequate provision for landscaping and
amenity areas.

CS8: “Water” — satisfactory arrangements for the availability of
water supply, sewerage and sewage disposal facilities,
surface water run-off facilities and provision for land drainage
will be required.

3.2 Local Plan Alteration 2002

HL5 — Quality and Density of Development - sets out the
criteria to take into account in assessing whether a proposal
represents a good design and layout.

HL6 - Housing Density - indicates that housing development
shall be at a density of 30-50 dwellings per hectare.

OB2 — Maintenance of Open Space — contributions may be
sought for the maintenance of small areas of open space,
children’s play space and recreational facilities, woodland or
landscaping to benefit the development.

61



3.3 Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)

CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — states that any areas not
specifically identified are classed as part of the countryside,
where development will be strictly limited to that which has
essential need to be located in the countryside.

CS4: “Affordable Housing in Development” — Proposals of 15
or more homes or 0.5ha or more should seek to achieve a
target of 40% affordable housing with a target of 70% social
rented accommodation with the balance being provided as
intermediate housing. In determining the amount and mix of
affordable housing to be delivered, specific site conditions and
other material considerations including viability,
redevelopment of previously developed land or mitigation of
contamination will be taken into account.

CS10: “Contributions to Infrastructure Requirements”
proposals will be expected to provide or contribute towards
the cost of providing infrastructure and of meeting social and
environmental requirements, where these are necessary to
make the development acceptable in planning terms.

3.4 Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)

LP1 “Strategy and principles for development” — supports
proposals which contribute to the delivery of new housing,
economic growth and diversification and infrastructure
provision through the detailed development strategy and
expectations

LP2 “Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery” — a proposal will
be supported where it makes appropriate contributions
towards the provision of infrastructure, and of meeting
economic, social and environmental requirements through CIL
and Planning Obligations.

LP6 “Flood Risk and Water Management” — in relation to flood
risk a proposal will be supported where it is not in area at risk
of flooding; suitable protection/mitigation measures can be
agreed and there will be no increase in the risk of flooding.
With regard to surface water a proposal will be supported
where SuDS are incorporated, the standing advice of the
appropriate IDB has been taken into account and there is no
adverse impact.

LP13 “Quality of Design” — encourages design of a high
standard based on a thorough understanding of the site and
its context. Residential proposals for 10 or more homes
should demonstrate how they meet the ‘Building for Life’ Silver
(Good) Standard or higher or equivalent.

LP15 “Ensuring a High Standard of Amenity” — A proposal will
be supported where a high standard of amenity is provided for
existing and future users and residents of both the
surroundings and the proposed development.

62



LP17 “Sustainable Travel” — Proposals should demonstrate
that: -

a. opportunities are maximised for the use of sustainable
travel modes

b. traffic volumes can be accommodated and will not cause
significant harm to the character of the surrounding area

c. any adverse effects of traffic movement to, from and within
the site including the effect of car parking is minimised

d. a clear network of routes is provided that provides
connectivity and enables ease of access, to, around and
within the proposal and within the wider settlement for all
potential users, including those with impaired mobility; and

e. safe and convenient pedestrian and cycle routes, including
links to new and existing services, facilities, footpaths,
bridleways and the countryside are provided where
appropriate and if possible formalised as rights-of way

LP23 “Local Services and Facilities” — A range of available
land or buildings within a neighbourhood is essential to
maintain its sustainability. A proposal for an additional service
will be supported where it is of a scale to serve local needs
without having an adverse impact on a designated town
centre

LP25 “Affordable Housing Provision” — Housing development
should seek to deliver a target of 40% affordable housing
where the scheme includes 10 or more. A target of 70% of
new units should be comprised of social or affordable rented
properties with the balance comprising of intermediate
housing. It is recognised that there may be circumstances
where it is necessary or appropriate to deliver a lower level of
on-site provision where it can be demonstrated that the target
is not viable. A development viability assessment will be
required to justify an alternative level of affordable housing
provision.

LP28 “Biodiversity and Protected Habitats and Species” — a
proposal will be supported where it does not give rise to a
significant adverse impact on protected species or sites of
local or regional importance for biodiversity or geology unless
the need for, or benefits of, the proposal outweigh the
impacts. If adverse impacts are identified and they are proven
unavoidable, every effort will be made to mitigate the impact.
Where this cannot be achieved then alternative forms of
compensation will be considered. A proposal will aim to
conserve and enhance biodiversity.

LP29 “Trees, Woodland and Related Features” — a proposal
will be supported where it avoids the loss of, and minimises
the risk of harm to trees, woodland, hedges or hedgerows of
visual, historic or nature conservation value

LP30 “Open Space” — proposals will be expected to include
open space in accordance with the Adopted SPD and provide
or improve connections to open spaces and green
infrastructure nearby.

63



3.5

3.6

e LP31 “Heritage assets and their setting” — great weight will be
given to the conservation of any heritage asset. A proposal
will be required to show that it has clearly identified all the
heritage assets affected by the proposal and their special
interests and significance.

Consultation responses on ‘Huntingdonshire Environmental Capacity
Study: Additional Sites Assessment’:

e During the ‘Stage 3’ consultation on the draft Huntingdonshire
Local Plan to 2036, a number of sites were submitted to the
Council for consideration as additional allocations in the Local
Plan. These sites were considered through an ‘environmental
capacity study’ process for additional sites, and views were
then sought on the assessment of new sites. The application
site was submitted for consideration as an additional
allocation and was a subject of this consultation in late 2013.
The conclusion of this assessment is that the application site
is considered potentially suitable for residential development
of approximately 100 homes.

Developer Contributions SPD (2011)

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

4.

41

5.

PLANNING HISTORY

None.

CONSULTATIONS

Consultation responses on the Planning Application:

5.1

5.2

Warboys Parish Council recommends refusal on the following
grounds: (COPY ATTACHED)

- Site outside built up area of Warboys and would be development in
the countryside;

- Site not proposed in Stage 3 Local Plan therefore premature to
determine;

- Warboys is a Key Service Centre so should only accommodate a
specific number of sites — local economy and community has
insufficient capacity to absorb this many more dwellings;

- Site contributes to character and rural setting of Warboys;

- Site is predominantly Grade 2 agricultural land and development
should be resisted;

- Indicative development is cramped

- Proposed development would not contribute to sustainable transport
as there are insufficient employment opportunities in Warboys and
development will lead to out-commuting;

- Proposed access insufficient;

- No direct pedestrian and cycle route to the village and bus routes
other than via Station Road;

- Local capacity of the drainage system will be inadequate.

County Council Highways — made a holding objection to the initial
Transport Assessment, which was withdrawn following submission of

64



5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

6.

amended Transport Assessment and agreement from the applicant to
specific Section 106 obligations (see section below ‘Section 106
considerations including affordable housing’).

County Council Archaeology — commented that the area has some
merit and should be investigated before a decision on the outline
planning application is made.

County Council Rights of Way — commented that the line of the
existing public footpath no.3 Warboys that runs from Station Road at
the north-eastern corner of the site in a south-westerly direction
across the site should be respected in the design of any
development. Welcomed the proposal to create a new section of
public footpath.

Environment Agency - objected to the original Flood Risk
Assessment on grounds that it did not adequately demonstrate that
an acceptable greenfield runoff rate could be ensured; and that the
proposed strategy for foul water drainage might lead to water quality
deterioration in receiving waters. Commented on amended
application to withdraw objection, stating that subject to planning
conditions concerns relating to FRA had been satisfactorily
addressed and objection removed.

Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service — commented that
should approval be granted, adequate provision is made for fire
hydrants by way of Section 106 agreement or planning condition.

Middle Level Commissioners — opposed the planning application
commenting that although the site does not fall within an Internal
Drainage Board area, the site is within the catchment area of the Bury
Brook, which is an Environment Agency main river, which discharges
into the Commissioner's High Load downstream of Great Whyte
Tunnel. All discharges to the Bury Brook must be regulated to the
greenfield rate of runoff and not be increased as a result of the
proposed development.

Consultation responses on the ‘Huntingdonshire Environmental
Capacity Study: Additional Sites Assessment’:

Warboys Parish Council objected on grounds of lack of village
capacity to absorb additional housing; the land is predominantly
grade 2 agricultural land ; access to the site would be inadequate for
100 plus dwellings; there is no access to the site from Humberdale
Way to the south which means pedestrians would have to walk some
distance to village services.

Cambridgeshire County Council — raised no objection, commented
upon libraries; health and the need for open space; archaeology
which required further information; transport including the need for a
full assessment of the potential impact of any proposed development.

REPRESENTATIONS

Representations on the Planning Application:

65



6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

27 neighbour representations were made, with 11 objectors
responding to both the originally submitted application and the
amended application. Objections raised are:

- Highways safety

- Pedestrian safety

- Unsafe and inadequate proposed access to site

- Limited employment opportunities in Warboys

- Limited public transport serves Warboys

- Out of character with existing development

- Party wall concern with 45 Station Road

- Drainage (foul and surface water)

- Lack of water supply

- Flooding

- Neighbour impact including loss of privacy and overlooking

- Local infrastructure will not be able to cope (school; shops; post
office; library; GP surgery)

- Will lead to more out-commuting and roads are already congested
(including A141)

- Archaeological value of site has not been properly assessed

- Impacts on wildlife including Great Crested Newts

- Impact on views

- Impact on trees

- Noise pollution

- Concern that developer will seek permission for more development
in the future

- Construction vehicles will damage roads

- Would make no.45 Station Road an ‘island’

- Loss of agricultural land

- Lack of existing recreational facilities

- Site not recommended for development in draft Local Plan

- No demonstration of need or capacity for this development in
Warboys

- No provision shown for emergency vehicles access

- Loss of existing amenity space

Representations on the ‘Huntingdonshire Environmental Capacity
Study: Additional Sites Assessment’:

Gladman Developments Ltd (the applicant) supported the inclusion of
the site within the Environmental Capacity Study as potentially
suitable for residential development. The site is well connected by
public transport; the site is deliverable.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main planning issues are:
- The principle of development
- Highways and access

- Flooding and drainage

- Archaeology

- Ecology and trees

- Visual impact

- Provision of open space

- Loss of agricultural land

- Amount of development

- Section 106 considerations including affordable housing.

66



The principle of development:

7.2

7.3

7.4

Warboys is defined as a Key Service Centre in the Core Strategy and
emerging Local Plan. In the former, ‘moderate’ scale development of
10-59 dwellings is appropriate within the built-up area but the policy
also provides that development proposals of a larger scale may be
allowed where specific circumstances demonstrate that this secures
the most sustainable option for the site. In the emerging Local Plan,
Key Service Centres are considered capable of accommodating
some development sustainably, subject to appropriate parameters
and contributions to services, facilities and infrastructure.

The site is not allocated for development within the Local Plan
1995/2002 or the Core Strategy 2009 and is therefore considered to
be in the countryside for the purposes of these plans. Being within
the countryside, the development of the site is contrary to
development plan policies H23, En17 and CS3. Application must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. It therefore needs to be
established whether there are any material consideration that indicate
that the application should be approved as a departure from the
development plan. In this regard, the emerging Local Plan is a
material consideration. In line with the guidance in paragraph 216 of
the NPPF, the relevant policies in the Draft Local Plan should be
given weight according to:

* the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced
the preparation, the greater weight that may be given);

* the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant
policies (the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the
weight that may be given); and

* the degree of consistency of the relevent policies in the emerging
plan to the policies in the NPPF (the closer the policies in the
emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater the weight that
may be given).

In relation to the first bullet point of paragraph 216 of the NPPF, the
draft Local Plan is in the final stage of preparation towards the
proposed submission publication. This stage (“Stage 4”) of the Local
Plan will present a complete draft plan as the Council intend it to be
submitted to the Secretary of State. The application site was not a
proposed allocation in the latest published version of the Local Plan
(“Stage 3”) which underwent consultation in May-June 2013, but the
site is included in the ‘Additional Sites Assessment’ that was carried
out in response to the outcome of the Stage 3 consultation and which
underwent consultation in November/December 2013.

In relation to the second bullet point of paragraph 216 of the NPPF,
there is no specific ‘relevant policy’ for the application site as the site
was not included as a proposed allocation in the Stage 3 draft Local
Plan. In responding to objections to the Stage 3 draft Local Plan that
the Local Plan was not meeting the objectively assessed need for
additional housing, additional sites were assessed with a view to
inclusion in the proposed submission draft of the Local Plan. The
application site was included in this exercise for allocation as a
housing site for approximately 100 dwellings. It should be noted that
the northern edge of Warboys was ruled out as being a potential
location for additional residential development as part of an

67



7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

assessment of ‘peripheral’ sites earlier in the Local Plan process. The
assessment of additional sites carried out in late 2013 concluded that
there is potential for this part of Warboys to accommodate additional
housing, and that the application site could potentially accommodate
approximately 100 new homes. No objections were received from
infrastructure and service providers to the site being included in the
Local Plan and as such there is nothing in the emerging Local Plan
that states development should not come forward on the application
site.

In relation to the third bullet point of paragraph 216 of the NPPF,
there is no specific ‘relevant policy’ for the application site in the
current draft of the Local Plan. The Local Plan is being prepared
explicitly to be consistent with the NPPF.

The decision as to the weight that should be given to the draft Local
Plan is a matter for decision makers having regard to guidance. The
officer view is that some weight should be given to the status of the
site in the draft Local Plan process as an additional site that has the
potential to accommodate approximately 100 new dwellings.

It is also relevant to consider whether it is premature to determine this
outline planning application at this stage. The draft Local Plan
preparation and consultation process does not preclude the Local
Planning Authority from dealing with planning applications made in
respect of this site (or any other).

The National Planning Guidance Practice (2014) states that:

...in the context of the Framework and in particular the presumption in
favour of sustainable development — arguments that an application is
premature are unlikely to justify a refusal of planning permission other
than where it is clear that the adverse impacts of granting permission
would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, taking the
policies in the Framework and any other material considerations into
account. Such circumstances are likely, but not exclusively, to be
limited to situations where both:

a) the development proposed is so substantial, or its cumulative effect
would be so significant, that to grant permission would undermine the
plan-making process by predetermining decisions about the scale,
location or phasing of new development that are central to an
emerging Local Plan or Neighbourhood Planning; and

b) the emerging plan is at an advanced stage but is not yet formally
part of the development plan for the area.

Refusal of planning permission on grounds of prematurity will seldom
be justified where a draft Local Plan has yet to be submitted for
examination, or in the case of a Neighbourhood Plan, before the end
of the local planning authority publicity period. Where planning
permission is refused on grounds of prematurity, the local planning
authority will need to indicate clearly how the grant of permission for
the development concerned would prejudice the outcome of the plan-
making process.

It is considered that by reason of the relevant material factors, it
would not be justified to refuse planning permission solely on the
basis of prematurity in this instance. It is further considered that the
absence of substantial objections to the Stage 3 Additional Site:
Station Road, Warboys, from statutory consultees with the exception

68



7.11

of the Parish Council and as the strategic plan making process will
not be undermined, it would not be premature to look to determine
this application at this time.

The current proposals for the site should therefore be considered in
the light of the Additional Sites Assessment as part of the Local Plan
process, the National Planning Policy Guidance and material
considerations in relation to the proposals. If it is found that the
proposals are not unacceptable, planning permission should not be
withheld.

Highways and Access

712

7.13

Transport matters were raised as a concern by a number of
neighbours, contributors and by the Parish Council. The Parish
Council commented that there are insufficient employment
opportunities in Warboys to accommodate development of this scale
thereby resulting in out-migration on already over-capacity roads, that
the proposed access would have insufficient capacity to
accommodate vehicles associated with the development, and that
there would be no direct pedestrian and cycle access from the site to
the village other than via Station Road and High Street.

The Local Highways Authority has considered the original Transport
Assessment and additional information submitted with the
amendments to the application. In response to the original Transport
Assessment a holding objection was raised by the Highways
Authority and a request made for additional information on a number
of highways matters. This holding objection has now been removed
on the grounds that the issues raised by the Highways Authority,
namely that additional information was required relating to:

* Assessment of the quality of footway provision to/from key
destinations

* Assessment of cycle parking at key destinations with the village

* Assessment of the nature, quality and distance of appropriate bus
stops

* Further information relating to bus journey times to/from key
destinations

* Further information relating to journey times to/from Huntingdon
railway station

* Clarification regarding timeframe and number of accidents within the
study area

* Current situation regarding drop-off at Warboys Primary School and
impact of the proposed development

* Provision of an all mode trip generation for the site

* Sensitivity modelling to be carried out using agreed higher vehicular
trip rates

* Consideration of measures to encourage the use of walking and
cycling

* Consideration of measures to encourage the use of public transport

have been adequately addressed, subject to the provision of funds
through a Section 106 Agreement towards improved cycle parking at
key destinations within Warboys, and towards the installation of two
real time bus information screens on Mill Green to encourage bus use
to key destinations. These funds have been agreed in principle by the
applicant.

69



7.14

7.15

7.16

The Transport Assessment includes an assessment of how the road
junctions close to the site would be likely to operate — this includes
the Station Road/Heath Road junction to the south of the proposed
site access. The Highways Authority has confirmed that based on the
information provided the development is not predicted to have an
unacceptable impact on any of the junctions assessed.

The applicant has proposed to create a new stretch of public footpath
to link together two existing public footpaths. One of these existing
footpaths runs through the application site south west to north east
and is a ‘dead end’ public footpath that links to Station Road but gives
no access to Goldpits to the south of the application site. The other
runs north/south connecting Coronation Avenue to Humberdale Way.
The proposed new stretch of public footpath would make a formal link
between the existing routes and provide a publically accessible route
into and out of the development and provide a link to the village
centre.

Access arrangement for the proposed junction with Station Road are
included within the application. The Local Highways Authority has
raised no objection to these proposals. It is recommended that a
condition is imposed on any planning permission such that no
development shall take place until details (in the form of scaled plans
and written specifications) of the access shown within the outline
application have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Flooding and drainage matters:

Surface water drainage.

7.7

7.18

7.19

The FRA states that surface water flow from the development will
need to be attenuated to a rate that is acceptable to the EA and the
Local Authority, and that this is likely to be the ‘Greenfield runoff rate’.
The outline drainage strategy submitted with the application presents
attenuation and storage of surface water in underground storage
systems, a central swale and balancing ponds as the most
appropriate outline surface water drainage strategy for the proposed
development.

Further, the outline drainage strategy proposes that at the detailed
design stage, the existing ditch system on site should be investigated
further to confirm flow routes and be cleared of debris.

The Environment Agency originally objected to the proposal as the
surface water discharges anticipated from the site were higher than
the 3 litres per second per hectare ‘Greenfield runoff rate’ that the
Environment Agency advised should be the maximum for the site.
Surface water drainage was also raised as a concern by a number of
residents and the Parish Council, with specific reference being made
to the waterlogged nature of the application site at certain times of
year, and that surface water has been seen draining from the north
east corner of the site onto Station Road (this was noted by the case
officer on a site visit). In their response to the application, the Middle
Level Commissioners confirmed that all discharges into the Bury

70



7.20

7.21

Brook system must be regulated to the Greenfield runoff rate and not
increased as a result of the proposed development.

An amended FRA was submitted with reworked calculations for runoff
rates and water storage volumes required on site. The Environment
Agency has considered this amended document and has confirmed
that the amended FRA is acceptable and the objection to
development has been removed. The Environment Agency has also
supplied planning conditions that it considers must be attached to any
planning permission.

The conclusions of the outline drainage strategy submitted with the
planning application are considered to be appropriate at this outline
application stage, and it is recommended that a detailed surface
water management strategy is secured by planning condition prior to
the development of the site.

Foul Water

7.22

7.23

The proposed approach to foul water drainage is addressed in the
FRA and then in more detail by the foul drainage strategy submitted
with the amendments to the application — this additional document
confirmed that the intended approach is to connect to the existing
sewer beneath Station Road and that Anglian Water had confirmed
that they found this proposal to be acceptable in principle.

The Environment Agency objected to the initial assessment of foul
water drainage within the FRA on the grounds that whilst Anglian
Water appeared to have confirmed there was physical capacity within
the sewerage system, there was no scope within the permitted
capacity at the Oldhurst sewage treatment works to discharge any
more treated water into receiving water courses. Subsequent to the
receipt of amendments to the application, the Environment Agency
has withdrawn its objection subject to the imposition of a planning
condition to secure and implement a scheme for foul drainage and
disposal.

Archaeology:

7.24

7.25

The County Council recommended that the site be subject to an
archaeological evaluation to be commissioned and undertaken at the
expense of the developer and carried out prior to the granting of
planning permission. This would allow fuller consideration of the
presence/absence and nature of any archaeological remains within
the application site.

The application was accompanied by an ‘archaeological desk based
assessment’ that provided a description of known heritage assets
potentially affected by the proposals and the character of other
archaeological remains that may be present within the site. The
conclusions of this assessment were that the site has an uncertain,
but probably low, potential for the presence of prehistoric
archaeological sites, a negligible potential for Roman remains, and a
low potential for Saxon Medieval or Post-Medieval sites. Further,
some evidence for former Medieval and Post-Medieval ridge and
furrow cultivation is anticipated to be present, but any surviving

71



7.26

evidence of this is considered to have minimal archaeological
interest.

Whilst it is acknowledged that a fuller archaeological evaluation prior
to determination of the planning application would undoubtedly
provide more information in relation to the potential for archaeological
remains within the site, on balance it is not considered proportionate
to require this and it is recommended that a pre-commencement
condition is imposed on any planning permission granted to secure
an archaeological scheme of works.

Ecology and trees:

7.27

7.28

A number of neighbour objections were made in relation to the impact
on wildlife that could result from development of the site. An
Ecological Appraisal forms part of the application submission and
provides details of the Phase 1 Habitat Survey of the site. The
Ecological Appraisal concludes that the site is of low conservation
value and that no adverse effects on the nature conservation value of
the local area are expected. Evidence of Great Crested Newts and
lizards was found on the site and the application material
recommended that a management plan should be produced to
include a method statement for the translocation of Great Crested
Newts to safe environments on the western boundary of the site
under licence. It is recommended that a planning condition is imposed
on any planning permission to secure this management plan and
method statement.

An arboricultural assessment was submitted as part of the application
material, stating that all existing trees could be retained if
development proceeded in accordance with the illustrative masterplan
shown in the Design & Access Statement. The Arboricultural
Assessment recommended that a landscaping scheme be prepared
as part of the detailed development proposals, including a
management plan for trees. Tree protection measures should also be
provided in accordance with those indicated in the Arboricultural
Assessment. It is recommended that appropriate planning conditions
are imposed to secure a landscaping scheme and details of tree
protection measures.

Visual impact:

7.29

Neighbour objections were made relating to the potential visual
impact of the proposed development and the loss of existing views.
The loss of private views is not a material consideration. The
proposal would involve the loss of open grassland and would
inevitably create a visual impact. The application is supported by a
Landscape and Visual Appraisal that demonstrates that the proposal
can be delivered without undue adverse impact, through mitigation of
the impact by provision of landscape buffers and the retention of
existing trees and hedges around the edge of the application site. A
landscaping scheme would be secured as part of the ‘Reserved
Matters’.

Provision of open space:

7.30

A development of 119 additional houses (up to 120 new homes and
the demolition of one existing property) would require 0.59 ha of

72



public open space. This would include 0.3 ha of ‘amenity green
space’ including 0.153 ha casual space for play and 0.07 ha of
equipped play facilities. The ‘Development Framework’ plan included
within the Design & Access Statement accompanying the application
indicates that 0.79 ha of land will be allowed for strategic landscaping
and habitat areas; in addition to this an equipped area for play (LEAP)
is proposed on site. This proposed provision of open space is
therefore considered to be adequate. Maintenance costs for the open
space are addressed in the section of this report ‘Section 106
considerations’.

Loss of agricultural land:

7.31

The Parish Council and a number of neighbours objected to the
proposals on grounds that the application site is predominantly Grade
2 agricultural land (this is stated in the Council’s environmental
capacity study). The application was supported by a soils and
agricultural use and quality report, which concluded that the site is
made up of land of sub-grade 3b and 3a agricultural quality. As stated
above, the conclusion of the Council’s assessment of this site as an
additional site for inclusion in the Local Plan is that the site has
potential for residential development. It is therefore considered that
whilst the loss of agricultural land is regrettable, in this instance is
does not represent a reason for refusal of the planning application.

Amount of Development:

7.32

7.33

The National Planning Practice Guidance states that an application
for outline planning permission allows for a decision on the general
principles of how a site can be developed. Outline planning
permission is granted subject to conditions requiring the subsequent
approval of ‘reserved matters’, which are those aspects of a proposed
development that an applicant can choose not to submit details of
with an outline planning application. Outline planning applications
should always include information on the amount of development
proposed. The purpose of an illustrative layout is to demonstrate that
the site can accommodate the amount of development proposed. In
this case the layout is not for consideration at the outline stage giving
the eventual developer of the site the flexibility to propose
alternatives. If aspects of an illustrative layout are considered to be
essential to achieving a satisfactory form of development the planning
authority can impose a condition or put a note on the decision as
appropriate.

The main factors which have influenced the proposed layout for the
application site are the position of the access, the existing public
footpath, the existing pond and existing trees, and views across the
site from existing residential properties. The amended illustrative
layout is a revised version of one which accompanied the initial
application. The revised illustrative layout shows 113 dwellings. It is
noted that the illustrative layout includes a road leading to the western
edge of the site, which raises the potential for development of land to
the west of the site. Any future proposal would need to be considered
on its own merits, but it is considered reasonable for the applicant to
include this indicative provision at this stage.

73



7.34

This application is in outline with the detailed design not for
consideration at this stage, yet it is relevant to consider the potential
impact on neighbours; neighbour objections were received raising
concern that the proposal would lead to overlooking and loss of
privacy. The Parish Council commented that the proposed
development appeared cramped within the site. The amended
application reduced the amount of proposed development from
approximately 150 dwellings to up to 120 dwellings on the site (at a
density of around 28 dwellings per hectare).The officer view is that
this change has allowed for a density that reflects the local character
of the surrounding urban edge and historic core of Warboys, and in
the amended illustrative masterplan has allowed the introduction of
additional open space on the eastern edge of the site. It is
considered that the site could satisfactorily accommodate up to 120
dwellings without unduly affecting the amenity of neighbours.

Section 106 considerations including affordable housing:

Affordable housing:

7.35

7.36

7.37

The site is over 0.5 ha in size and therefore the development should
seek to achieve a target of 40% affordable housing in accordance
with Core Strategy Policy CS4 and the Developer Contributions SPD
(Part A). With the proposed number of dwellings (up to 119 additional
dwellings) this would equate to 48 dwellings.

The applicant submitted a draft Heads of Terms for a Section 106
Planning Agreement with the application, which proposes that if not
dealt with by planning condition, a Section 106 Agreement will make
provision for a scheme of affordable housing to be agreed with the
Council to include the numbers, type, tenure and location of the site
of the affordable housing provision to be made which shall consist of
not less than 40% of the total dwellings permitted. This proposal is
welcomed and will achieve the current policy target level of affordable
housing for the proposed development.

It should also be recognised that viability work being undertaken as
part of the Local Plan to 2036 is likely to result in a fall in the target
level of affordable housing in the new Local Plan. It is therefore
recommended that the Section 106 requires affordable housing in
accordance with the target level for affordable housing at the time of
issuing the decision; i.e. 40% in accordance with the Core Strategy if
the decision is issued in advance of the Proposed Submission draft
(Stage 4) of the Local Plan to 2036, or in accordance with the target
level in the Proposed Submission draft (Stage 4) of the Local Plan to
2036 if the decision is issued after the publication of this draft of the
Local Plan.

Open space:

7.38

In accordance with Core Strategy policy CS10 and the Developer
Contributions SPD (Part B) proposals of between 10 and 199
dwellings are required to provide the development specific land for
informal and formal open space. The overall requirement is 2.12 ha
per 1,000 population for usable, informal green space and play and
1.61 ha per population for outdoor sport. All other requirements will
be met by the CIL charge. For 119 additional dwellings, and using the

74



7.39

2011 average household size of 2.33 persons per household the
requirement for a development population of 280 people would be
0.59 ha of public open space that would include 0.30 ha amenity
green space (made up of 0.153 ha casual space for play; 0.07 ha
equipped space for play and 0.081 ha other amenity green space).
Accordingly, a Section 106 obligation should be secured to ensure
that a minimum of 0.59 ha is provided of which at least 0.07 ha is
space for equipped play and 0.153 ha is for casual play space.

The Developer Contributions SPD sets out maintenance rates for
equipment that will cover a fifteen year period. Developer
contributions in line with the final agreed provision of equipped play
space should also be secured via a Section 106 Agreement.

Footpaths and access:

7.40

7.41

7.42

Under Part C of the SPD, this requirement is limited to on-site
provision of the appropriate publically accessible routes to move
within site and in-and-out of the development. The proposed new
development roads through the site and route of the existing public
footpath within the site will provide this with an access at the eastern
edge of the site to Station Road. The proposed new public footpath
link to the existing public footpath to the west of the site, to be
constructed to an all-weather surface, together with a commitment to
improve the surface of a stretch of the existing footpath to an all-
weather surface to where the footpath meets the public highway
adjacent to Humberdale Way, would provide a route in-and-out of the
development to the west and provide additional connectivity to the
village other than via Station Road.

Accordingly it is recommended that the Section 106 agreement
makes provision for dedication of a new stretch of public footpath to
be made up to an all-weather surface on land in the applicants’
control, to link existing public footpath Warboys no.3 and no.4, and for
funding to be made available to Cambridgeshire County Council for
improvement of the surface of a stretch of existing public footpath
Warboys no.4 to link towards Flaxen Walk and Humberdale Way.

In considering the Transport Assessment and opportunities to
encourage sustainable modes of travel, the County Council and the
applicant have agreed that the Section 106 agreement makes
provision for a contribution of £18,000 towards the installation of two
real time bus information (RTBI) screens; this will ensure bus use to
key destinations is sufficiently encouraged; and a £500 cycle parking
contribution to the County Council, which will ensure a number of
cycle stands can be installed at key locations within the village.
Accordingly, it is recommended that the Section 106 agreement
makes this provision.

Other community provision:

7.43

Health (part D), Community facilities (part E), Libraries and lifelong
learning (part F), Education and schools (part G). For all of these
categories, provision is made for proposals smaller than large-scale
major residential developments (200 or more dwellings) through CIL
contributions.

75



Residential wheeled bins:

7.44

7.45

Contributions to the provision of wheeled bins should be secured
through a planning obligation at a rate of £63.68 per dwelling for the
supply of three bins (Developer Contributions SPD 2011 part G,
contribution as reviewed in 2013).

An obligation relating to the above matters would comply with current
local and national policy and the Community Infrastructure
Regulations 2010.

Conclusion:

7.46

7.47

7.48

7.49

8.

OR

The proposed development of the application site is contrary to the
development plan policies H23, EN17 and CS3. Material
considerations include the Local Plan process, within which the site
has been identified as having the potential to accommodate
approximately 100 dwellings. Officer opinion is that this can be given
some weight. Officer interpretation of the National Planning Practice
Guidance is that it would not be premature to determine this
application at this time.

Having considered other matters it is concluded that the outline
proposals are acceptable in relation to transport and flooding and
drainage matters. In relation to archaeology, ecology and trees, visual
impact, provision of open space and the loss of agricultural land it is
considered that the proposals are acceptable.

The ‘Huntingdonshire Environmental Capacity Study: Additional Sites
Assessment’ concluded that the site is potentially suitable for
residential development of approximately 100 homes. The more
detailed work done as part of this application demonstrates that up to
120 new dwellings can be accommodated satisfactorily on the site.
Development of the site would help meet the objectively assessed
need for additional housing in the District and, having regard to all the
considerations above, would constitute sustainable development.

The officer recommendation is therefore that subject to the
satisfactory completion of a Section 106 agreement and appropriate
planning conditions, the proposals are acceptable and should be
approved.

RECOMMENDATION -

APPROVE subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 obligation
relating to affordable housing, open space, Public Rights of Way, and
wheeled bins and to conditions to include those listed below.

REFUSAL in the event that the obligation referred to above has not
been completed and the applicant is unwilling to agree to an
extended period for determination, on the grounds that the applicant
is unwilling to complete the obligation necessary to make the
development acceptable.

APPROVAL subject to condition to include the following:

e Time limit (3 years for submission of reserved matters)

/6



e Time limit for start of development (5 years from date of
permission or before expiration of 2 years from approval of
last REM whichever is the later)

o Reserved matters minus access Development shall be carried

out in accordance with the approved reserved matters

Fire hydrants

Archaeological scheme of works

Surface water drainage strategy

Foul water drainage strategy

Tree protection details

Construction Environment Management Plan

Ecological mitigation (Great Crested Newt and reptiles)

including method statements

Highways conditions (including details of access)

e Scheme for accessing construction traffic to the development
including on-site parking and turning facilities

e Design and Access Statement principles

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:

Enquiries about this report to Mr Andy Moffat Planning Service Manager
(Development Management) 01480 388402

77



Application No. 13017900UT

Land Between Old Mill Avenue and Station Road, Warboys — Change of
description of development from - Demolition of 43 Station Road and the
residential development of site to provide approximately 150 dwellings with
associated infrastructure to - Demolition of 43 Station Road and the residential
development of site to provide approximately 120 dwellings with associated
infrastructure to

The Parish Council recommends that the above application be refused on the following
grounds:-

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

&)

that the site is situated outside the built up area of Warboys and therefore
would be contrary to existing Local Plan policies in that it would represent
development in the open country;

that the site is not proposed for development in stage 3 of the Huntingdonshire
Draft Local Plan to 2036 and permission would therefore be premature in
advance of the determination of the Local Plan in accordance with the Court of
Appeal decision in the case of St Albans v. Hunston Properties Ltd 2013;

that Warboys is proposed for designation as a Key Service Centre in the
Huntingdonshire Draft Local Plan to 2036 and in which a series of specific sites
are proposed for allocation in order to maintain and promote sustainable
growth. Sites for approximately 150 dwellings have already been proposed for
housing development in the stage 3 consultation on the Draft Local Plan and
the local economy and community has insufficient capacity to absorb a further
120 dwellings as proposed in the current application;

that the site of the application forms part of the wider countryside and
contributes to the character and rural setting of the village of Warboys. It is
therefore not appropriately located within the built-up area of the village and
would be contrary to Policy LP9 of the Huntingdonshire Draft Local Plan
2036;

that the site is predominantly classed as comprising grade 2 agricultural land in
the Huntingdonshire Draft Local Plan 2036 Environmental Capacity Study:
Additional Site Assessments. With the country being no longer self-sufficient
in food production and the long term unsustainability of a reliance on food
imports for a rapidly expanding population, development on grade 2
agricultural land should be resisted in a similar manner to grade 1 agricultural
land;

that, although the application is in outline only, the indicative design shows a
development that is cramped in scale in the illustrative masterplan and a higher
density development of this size would not be appropriate at the rural edge of
the village and in a countryside location as illustrated in the assessment of this
site in the Huntingdonshire Draft Local Plan 2036 Environmental Capacity
Study: Additional Site Assessments;

/8



(2) that the proposed development would not contribute to sustainable travel under
Policy LP17 of the Huntingdonshire Draft Local Plan 2036 in that there are
insufficient employment opportunities in Warboys to accommodate
development on this scale, thereby resulting in an outward migration of
residents daily to work on roads that are already over-capacity and where a
journey time at peak hours to Huntingdon some 6 miles distant can already take
up to 40 minutes;

(h) that the proposed access to the site via Station Road will be insufficient to
accommodate a development of this scale. The proposed junction with Station
Road will have insufficient capacity to accommodate potentially 250 vehicles
from the new development plus visitors and service traffic and is located too
close to the junction with Heath Road. It would therefore be contrary to
Policy LP17 of the Huntingdonshire Draft Local Plan 2036 in that traffic
volumes will cause significant harm to the character of the surrounding area;

(1) that the absence of any direct pedestrian and cycle access from the site to the
village and to bus routes other than via Station Road and High Street will result
in a lack of connectivity and ease of access from the proposed site to village
services, resulting in the unsustainable use of vehicular traffic contrary to Policy
LP17 of the Huntingdonshire Draft Local Plan 2036;

(g) that the local capacity of the drainage system will be inadequate to
accommodate a development of the scale proposed and will result in flooding
both on and off site.

In the event of the application being approved, the Parish Council would ask the

developer to make a contribution towards a replacement village hall in Warboys and
improvements to the access junction to the site in the interests of highway safety.

R. Reeves.
Clerk to Warboys Parish Council
16th May 2014

79



Development Management Panel Huntingdonshire

DIETREIET EDUNCEL

i Scale =1:5,000 Application Ref: 13017900UT
@ Date Created: 03/06/2014

Location: Warboys

£ O ]

SERENL.

'I#Ei-l" l..'. | ﬁ.""’hf‘
i) el JE =l
=wy {E_l.lg!! [r A

\\.__!!

g
el

I

/_l'b = =

ht-——,
= 4

===
2
L/

>
¥
s

b
!

e
%

P,

T

L

)

2
i

/| The Site
m Conservation Area

ne Gl

&

[ty




10T Uosen

LY@0SZ}: L

uiseq uoienusye pasodoid

pauiejas Aem jo sybu o1ignd Bunsixg

sAema|oAd pue syjedjooy pasodoid

$S9008 JE|NOIYSA pasodold

pauiejal puod Bunsix3

paulejas uoneyeban pue saal) Buisixg

paulelal mosabpay pajueld AimeN

seale
jeligey pue adeospue| pasodold

aoedg uadQ 21|gnd pasodoid

©||®/ /o 6 o6 06 0 0

ealy Ae|d |eoo] pasodold

(aJejoay Jad sbuljjemp gz
eou10 je sbujjemp oz Ajgrewixoidde)
eHgzz v ‘ealy |enuapisay pasodoid

(eH 1L0'G eRIY) 8IS

°968810001 1UBUAdOD UMOID
‘OSIH Jo Jgjjonuo) 8y] jo ED_mm_—._twﬂ_ AU} yum pasn s| |eusjew >0>‘.:w aoueuplO

Py ubisa@ pue JUBLIUOIIAUT ¥ d4 JO JUSSUO! LIM JNOUJIM L 0 Ajjoym
18y “Uosiad pasioyineun Aue o) pasojosip J0 paulejel paonpoidal Jou S i LONIPUOD

8y} uo panssi s| pue py ubisaq pue JuswuolAug YO d4 Jo Apuadoid ayy si Buimesp siy |

od} 9 " Y0-1-52SS

NVIdY3ALSVIAN SALLVILSNTTI

allysabpuqwe)
sfkogiep
P17 sjuswdojaaaq UBWPE[S

[ 8= =) [
[/ \,\///(Hl\«( \Ur/\lx“\«l\\ J \ \ Al
— Ty(ﬁmm‘ﬂ\ﬂ\ &)@\\
| /

\ - -
/ Lsmmﬁ% /
— =i , T ] , D
\,T:.I,Y

\
,&

\
[— f \ ,\ = &/ )\\H\\
, \,\ ‘,,‘\ \\ \\ @ H.,Uﬁwrmm N\JHU#T\\H/D%
e \ | | — ( i ]
/] [n — R/
// 5 ~ e
A | va

4
. ] /MJ
) /

j _ / | T U ,, , )
(¥ S / HutEREER oh— {Fr&\[,%rﬁ:
R~ / \ &1 bl N [[FT
), / | | L 7 i ¢ /
L5 Uy &/ // N / ~{J | = e \\(MM\\A I \\ WW |
,M/,U. N 7 d /P« - \\g /.//\uﬁ\)\,a WA PIO ="
7

—onuony Il MR\\MHH\WU\W\%W{VMU%;rJJ\/lJL‘I‘ \M H ,q\lj«d.lmlﬁj T -
x ~

T e i i ™ [ B
ﬁmm [ ][] 5
|

=N
)

\ ™
] 8
N
{

, (] L
/ 1| | M ; |
X b0 ] .l’% W TN,
. nl--,1_1lﬂ._.ll._ll__.-hv

_____—————

=

) i\ | W |/
A\ & A/DWW% B ]@%@m%ﬂ r@g 1/
W R ey B

__——--'""-

0-1-G ANVI\GZSS\0085\
/




This page is intentionally left blank

82



Agenda ltem 6a

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 June 2014

Case No: 1400261FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: ERECTION OF A SELF CONTAINED 2 BEDROOM
DWELLING

Location: FORMER 21 HIGH STREET

Applicant: AWJ USHER AND SONS LTD

Grid Ref: 519066 267442

Date of Registration: 19.03.2014

Parish: BUCKDEN
RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
1.1 There are currently four apartments, two at ground floor and two at

first floor, located on this site with accesses onto the High Street.
Parking is provided on the western side of the site. The site lies on
the western side of High Street, immediately north of a roundabout; to
the west of the site is the A1 trunk road, a strategic transport highway.
There is a 2m high (approx) acoustic fence on the west and south of
the site. There is an underpass and terraced housing to the north
and a pair of semis on the opposite side of High Street. Due to the
prominent location the site is very exposed. The site lies within the
Buckden Conservation Area.

1.2 The proposal is for the erection of a self-contained 2 bedroom two-
storey dwelling attached to the four apartments at the southern end of
the site.

1.3 An amended parking layout was submitted in response to the initial

concerns of the Local Highway Authority in respect of parking and
turning within the site.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and

83



2.2

enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

Planning Practice Guidance (2014)

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-

and-local-government

3.

3.1

PLANNING POLICIES

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995

H31: “Residential privacy and amenity standards” — Indicates
that new dwellings will only be permitted where appropriate
standards of privacy can be maintained and adequate parking
provided.

H32: "Sub-division of large curtilages" states support will be
offered only where the resultant dwelling and its curtilage are
of a size and form sympathetic to the locality.

H33: “Sub-division of large curtilages affecting protected
buildings or features” — states the subdivision of curtilages will
not be supported where development will adversely affect the
qualities of a Conservation Area or affect trees worthy of
protections.

H37: “Environmental Pollution” — housing development will not
be permitted in locations where there is a known source of
environmental pollution which would be detrimental to
residential amenity.

H38: “Noise Pollution” — development sites adjoining main
highways, railways, industrial operations and other potentially
damaging noise pollution sources will be required to adopt
adequate design solutions to create acceptable ambient noise
levels within the dwellings and their curtilage.

En5: “Conservation Area Character” - development within or
directly affecting conservation areas will be required to
preserve or enhance their character and appearance.

En6: “Design standards in Conservation Areas” — in
conservation areas, the District Council will require high
standards of design with careful consideration being given to
the scale and form of development in the area and to the use
of sympathetic materials of appropriate colour and texture.

En9: “Conservation Areas” - development should not impair
open spaces, trees, street scenes and views into and out of
Conservation Areas.

En20: “Landscaping Scheme”. - Wherever appropriate a

development will be subject to the conditions requiring the
execution of a landscaping scheme.

84



En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale,
form, materials and design of established buildings in the
locality and make adequate provision for landscaping and
amenity areas.

3.2 Saved policies from the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002

HL5: “Quality and Density of Development” - sets out the
criteria to take into account in assessing whether a proposal
represents a good design and layout.

3.3 Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy 2009
e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all

developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including
design, implementation and function of development e.g., by
making best use of land, buildings and existing infrastructure.

CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — ldentifies Buckden as a
‘Key Service Centre’ in which development schemes of
moderate and minor scale and infiling may be appropriate
within the built up area.

3.4 Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)

LP1: “Strategy and Principles for Development” — the Council
will support proposals which contribute to the delivery of new
housing, economic growth and diversification and
infrastructure provision through the development strategy.
Development proposals will be expected to (amongst others):
a. prioritise the use of previously developed land in accessible
locations;

c. make efficient use of land, buildings and infrastructure
within existing settlements whilst preserving local character
and distinctiveness;

j- protect and enhance the historic environment and the range
and vitality of characteristic landscapes, habitats and species.

LP2: “Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery” — the purpose of
this policy is to set out the council’s approach to securing
developer contributions towards local infrastructure, facilities
and services from sustainable development proposals,
predominantly through the Community Infrastructure Levy and
planning obligations.

LP9: “Development in Key Service Centres” — the purpose of
this policy is to set out the Council’s criteria for planning for a
range of uses in the Key Service Centres and for the Strategic
Expansion Areas once development set out in the plan at
those locations has been completed.

85



3.5

e LP13: “Quality of Design” — sets out the Council’s criteria for
requiring high standards of design for all new sustainable
development and the built environment.

e LP15: “Ensuring a high standard of Amenity” — the purpose of
the policy is to ensure that future residents and users of new
developments and those affected by new development in their
vicinity enjoy an adequate standard of living in terms of the
physical environment created.

e LP17: “Sustainable Travel” — the purpose of this policy is to
set out the criteria that the Council expects to be met, and the
supporting documents required as part of a planning
application, to ensure that developers fully consider how the
opportunities and impacts of the range of travel and transport
modes are addressed in their proposals for sustainable
development.

e LP18: “Parking Provision” — the purpose of the policy is to
ensure that new development provides sufficient parking to
meet its needs and minimize impacts on existing neighbouring
uses.

e LP31: “Heritage Assets and their settings” — the purpose of
the policy is to protect and conserve the District’'s heritage
assets, including listed buildings, conservation areas and
related assets, and set out the Council’s information
requirements for inclusion within a heritage statement that
accompanies a planning application or other application for
consent.

SPD — Huntingdonshire Design Guide 2007, parts 3 and 4 on housing
sites, house design and detailing

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

PLANNING HISTORY

1100172NMA - consent granted for alterations to windows and
chimney positions.

1001556FUL — permission granted for the erection of 4 apartments
with revised vehicular access arrangements, hard and soft
landscaping, vehicular parking and turning, cycle parking following
demolition of previously unsafe building.

0901485FUL & 0901486CAC -— permission refused, following
consideration by Panel on 22nd February 2010 for the demolition of
existing dwelling and erection of four flats, due to design, layout, form,
scale. Subsequent appeal (Appeal B) dismissed 8th September
2010. The existing dwelling was demolished without formal planning
consent on the 11th January 2010.

0900743FUL & 0900744CAC - permission refused, following

consideration by Panel on 12th October 2009 for the demolition of
existing buildings and erection of four flats, due to design, layout,

86



4.5

5.1

52

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

6.1

form, bulk and detailing. Subsequent appeal (Appeal A) dismissed
8th September 2010.

0802818FUL & 0803317CAC — permission refused for the demolition
of existing buildings and erection of four flats due to the design,
layout, form, bulk and detailing of the scheme within the Conservation
Area; noise exposure category D unsuitable for residential.

CONSULTATIONS

Buckden Parish Council - recommends refusal (COPY
ATTACHED)

HDC Environmental Health Consultation — cannot support a
refusal on noise grounds. Noise mitigation required.

CCC Highways Consultation — Following the revised parking layout
provided (JLG177/P2/03 rev C) | can confirm that the parking spaces
all seem to be workable. As previously indicated the access to the
site was previously considered with regards to the speed of vehicles
along the public highway, and the geometry is acceptable in relation
to a shared access.

Highways Agency — no objection.

HDC Operations - Please note the Bin Collection Point will be on the
High Street as per the other properties in this development.

Police Architectural Liaison Officer - | confirm that | have viewed
the application and paid particular attention to the details in relation to
the Community Safety and Crime Reduction aspects of the proposal.
I can report that whilst the crime profile for the area is low within the
past two years there has been three thefts from motor vehicles.
Whilst not significantly high it does figure in my comment below.

I note that the entrance into the new property being created is from
within the rear parking court for the existing properties. The inclusion
of an entrance in what should be a private area for residents only
increases the crime risk to vehicles parked in this area. Any person
with criminal intent is provided with an excuse for being in an area
which should be private by saying that they are looking for a particular
house or flat. The entrance to the residence should be directly from
the active frontage which is the street. This is borne out by the main
entrances for the other dwellings on this site being from the street.

With the above in mind | would not object to granting of permission
but neither would | support granting of permission until such time as
the layout is amended.
REPRESENTATIONS

There have been no third party representations received regarding
this proposal.

87



7. SUMMARY OF ISSUES

7.1 The main issues to consider in this case are: the principle of erecting
an additional dwelling on this site; design, scale and form and impact
on the character and appearance of the area; impact on neighbour
amenity; and highway safety.

Principle

7.2 Paragraph 49 of the NPPF states that ‘housing applications should be
considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable
development’.

7.3 This site is considered to be within the built up area of Buckden.
Policy CS3 defines Buckden as a Key Service Centre in which
development schemes of moderate and minor scale and infilling (i.e.
up to and including developments of 59 dwellings) may be
appropriate within the built-up area.  The proposal is considered to
be an appropriate form of development in a settlement of this size
and subject to all other material planning considerations.

7.4 Policy LP9 requires development proposals to be assessed on their
individual sustainability merits, taking account of other policies in the
Local Plan. The proposal will make more efficient use of the land, and
a dwelling would be consistent with the overall land use pattern in the
vicinity.

7.5 The proposal, in principle, is considered to comply with NPPF; policy
CS3 of the Core Strategy; and policies LP1 and LP9 of the Draft
Local Plan to 2036.

Design, scale and form and impact on the character and appearance of
the area

7.6 The NPPF is relevant in the consideration of this application;
specifically paragraph 17 which states that planning should "always
seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for
all existing and future occupants of land and buildings". Paragraph
60 states that "Planning policies and decisions should not attempt to
impose architectural styles or particular tastes and they should not
stifle innovation, originality or initiative through unsubstantiated
requirements to conform to certain development forms or styles. It is,
however, proper to seek to promote or reinforce local distinctiveness."

7.7 The site is in a prominent position located at the southern entrance to
the Buckden Conservation Area. The current proposal is a
continuation of the built form to the existing development on the site,
although it has been designed as a subservient form with a lower
ridge height than the main terrace and limited openings on the south
and west elevations. The main group of openings are on the north
elevation, internal to the site.  The parking area has been
reconfigured to accommodate the new unit and it is considered that
the site layout is acceptable as the secure cycle parking is being
retained, albeit in a different location, the compromise in this instance
is the loss of areas of landscaping. Even with the loss of small areas
of landscaping, it is considered that the proposed design is

88



7.8

appropriate in the context of the existing site and development in the
locality.

The proposal is considered to comply with the NPPF, policies H32,
H33, En5, En6 and En25 of the Local Plan 1995; HL5 of the Local
Plan Alteration 2002; CS1 of the Core Strategy 2009; and LP1, LP13
and LP31 of the Draft Local Plan to 2036.

Effect on neighbour amenity

7.9

7.10

The increased use of the site resulting from the erection of a dwelling
will have some impact on the amenities of the immediate neighbours
due to increased noise, disturbance and traffic generation. This,
however, is unlikely to be so serious that a reason for refusal could be
substantiated. The existing and proposed development is such that
windows overlook the shared amenity/parking area. Whilst the
proposed unit would have windows facing north whereas the windows
on the rear elevation of the existing units are facing west, it is not
considered that there would be a significantly detrimental impact in
terms of loss of privacy as these existing windows serve bathrooms
and kitchen areas.

Overall, the proposal will not have a significant impact on neighbour
amenities and it complies with policies H31 of the Local Plan 1995
and LP15 of the Draft Local Plan to 2036.

Highway issues

7.11

712

The intention is to use the existing access to serve both the proposed
dwelling and the existing development. This level of provision is
considered appropriate to meet the needs of the properties. The
amount of traffic generated by an additional residential unit on the site
will be limited and will not be at a level which would be hazardous to
existing users of the High Street. The fact that vehicles will be able to
exit the site in forward gear will be an aid to highway safety. The
Local Highway Authority has not objected to the revised parking
layout.

There are no objections to the proposal on highway grounds. The
proposal complies with policy LP18.

Other issues

713

7.14

Noise- the proposed building has been designed so that the bedroom
and living room windows are not orientated towards the road but
noise levels are relatively high regardless. However, the
Environmental Protection Officer has not objected and a refusal on
noise grounds cannot be substantiated.

Crime — The PALO has recommended that the main entrance to the
unit is from the highway rather than the rear parking court. However
taking into account the location of the unit, and that the design has
incorporated the issue of noise, it is considered in this instance that
the benefits of having access to the unit from the parking area
outweighs the risk of crime in this instance where crime levels are low
in the area.

89



Conclusion

7.15

7.16

The proposed development is considered to be compliant with
relevant national and local planning policy as it:

- is within the built-up area where residential development is
acceptable in principle

- would preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area

- would not have a significant detrimental impact on the amenity of
neighbours

- is acceptable in terms of highway safety including the use of the
Trunk Road adjacent to the site

- there are no other material planning considerations which lead to
the conclusion that the proposal is unacceptable.

Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, and
having taken all relevant material considerations into account, it is
recommended that planning permission should be approved in this
instance.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

8.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to condition
to include the following

Time limit

Material samples

Cycle parking as per plan

Scheme for acoustic ventilation and noise insulation for roof and
windows

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Ms Dallas Owen Development Management
Officer 01480 388468

90



[ 7 . -
Huntingdonshire
: DISTRICT COUNCIL
Pathfinder+House ~~St Mary 'siStreet  Huntingdon — PE29 3TN

Head of Planning Services
Pathfinder House:

St. Mary’s Street
Huntingdon
Cambridgeshire PE 29 3TN

Application Number: 1400261FUL Case Officer: Dallas Owen
Proposal: Erection of self-contained 2 bedroom dwelling.

Location: Former 21 High Street Buckden

Observations of BUCKDEN Parish Council.

|Zl Recommend refusal because the Council considers that the proposed development is over

development of the site and that the proposed development is out of keeping with the area and
seriously depletes the amount of amenity apace on the site. The proposed development is too close
to the A1 trunk road and would reduce the visibility for drivers of larger vehicles travelling
southbound on the A1.

e e

Clerk to BUCKDEN Parish Council.  Date : 09 April 2014

Tel 01480 388388 Fax 01480 388099 mail@huntsdc.gov.uk  www.huntsdc.gov.uk

PLANNING SERVICES parish comment
91



cHunNncrL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2014

Huntingdonshire

Development Management Panel

®

ey HDC 100022322

Surve

Ordnance

Application Ref: 140026 1FUL

Location: Buckden

Date Created: 03/06/2014

Scale =1:2,500

R BN NS
SRR SR * o
NS N TN \

£ { 4

b B 3 \

B 6N

: ",

,

i, "

)

Tristle Hil

Park F
RG> =

bl

p

F o

P =
[ g =

w

]

\

-
AH‘a_rdwi
o

Legend
/| The Site

|




0 €0/ed/LLLOTr

uoisiney :ou Bumesq

BIIS UO Pa0BYo 8 0} SUOISUBWIP [y “sesodind
Bujuue(d 1o Uey} JoLI0 PaJEds 8q 10U PINOYS

vieL 0s2l:1-002:h
ejeq o|eos
or

:Aq umesg

ue|d uonedso] pue
noAe ays ‘Aening 8

Bumelg

VXS 613d "squie) ‘sjoeN IS
‘uspxong 1S UbIH ALz - Vi
Bulemg maN pasodolid
0elold

0o uBisepB@uyol w3
0v¥81Z 08710 xed /oL
S§7L613d
auysabpuque)
SjoaN 1S
pio4 uojeg
anusAy plauesep |

S92IAI9G VD [BINJORNYDIY

N0

ubisea 9u

Aeyds Anaisin wy'gz X 2

0GZlL:|l ue|d uolled0n

Buiysix3 - ynokeq 8IS

J1un [euonppY

jun euopippe 1o} eaze
aeaum pabieiu3

|
|
;
COCCTTT0

|
‘
AT

O

93

“payjoajoud JybuAdoo @ s| Bumesp siyl




pasodoid
suoneAs|3 pue sue|d
:Buimeig

VXS 613d 'sque) ‘sjoaN 1S
‘uspyong IS UBIH ALz - Vi
Buyjlemg maN pasodoid
:j08fo1d

of spew

S32IAIBS AV [BAN}OdYIIY
¥n-0o°

pasodoid - ue|d J100|4 1S4+

pasodold - uol}eAd|3 8pIS

pasodouid -

pasodoud -

ue|d Joo|4 punoio

uoljeAs|3 Jeay

(ebueyo oN)

pasodoid - uol}eAd|3 juoi4

94

“pa1aioid 1yBAdod @ st Buimesp siuL




Agenda ltem 6b

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 June 2014

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

Case No: 1301808FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)
1301809LBC (LISTED BUILDING APPLICATION)

Proposal: USE OF THE GROUND FLOOR FOR GARAGING
PURPOSES. CREATION OF REAR VEHICULAR ACCESS
THROUGH PROVISION OF BLIND ARCH.
REINSTATEMENT OF USE OF THE FIRST FLOOR AS
ANCILLARY RESIDENTIAL ACCOMMODATION WITH
ASSOCIATED WORKS
STABLES AND COACH HOUSE, HEMINGFORD PARK

Case No: 1301810FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)
1301811LBC (LISTED BUILDING APPLICATION)

Proposal: CHANGE OF USE OF EXISTING WORKSHOP TO
RESIDENTIAL USE

COTTAGE AND WORKSHOP, HEMINGFORD PARK
Case No: 1301828FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)
Proposal: ERECTION OF STABLES AND CALVING BAYS

HEMINGFORD PARK COMMON LANE HEMINGFORD
ABBOTS PE28 9AS

Applicant: DR P KAZIEWICZ
Grid Ref: 527586 270968
Date of Registration: 20.12.2013

Parish: HEMINGFORD ABBOTS

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVALS AS PER SECTION 8
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This report relates to five applications which are to be considered
together in view of the Parish Council’s comments about traffic.

1301808FUL and 1301809LB Stables and Coach House

1.2 Use of the ground floor for garaging purposes. Creation of rear
vehicular access through provision of blind arch. Reinstatement of
use of the first floor as ancillary residential accommodation with
associated works.

1.3 The main elements of this proposal are:

95



1.4

- a new vehicular entrance through an existing blind arch in
the rear wall of the building;

- use of the first floor as ancillary accommodation for the
family’s groom and associated internal alterations.

Unauthorised alterations to the building had been carried out at the
end of 2012 and this listed building application has been submitted in
part to gain approval for works which were unauthorised but
considered acceptable, broadly the changes to the first floor.
Extensive alterations to the ground floor which were unacceptable
have mainly been removed with little damage to original fabric. The
new rear doors have not been installed.

1301810FUL and 1301811LB Cottage and Workshop

1.5

Change of use of existing workshop to residential use.

As originally submitted these applications also proposed a slate roof
conservatory in place of a recent, unauthorised fully glazed
conservatory. That proposal has been deleted in response to
objections to it. The application for listed building consent seeks
approval for internal and external works as well as proposing further
changes to put right unsatisfactory work.

1301828FUL Erection of stables and calving bays

1.6

1.7

1.8

2.1

The application which is retrospective relates to a building which was
erected in 2012. 1t is 15.9m x 16.5m overall by 3m to eaves with a
very shallow corrugated sheet metal roof. The walls are built of
painted blockwork. The building contains 7 bays for horses or calves.

The proposals all relate to buildings in the grounds of Hemingford
Park, a grade II* listed building. The Stables and Coach House are
grade Il listed in their own right. The Stables and Coach House,
Cottage and Workshop are within the curtilage of the principal listed
building but the new stables and calving bays are not. The house
and its extensive parkland are in the Hemingford Abbots
Conservation Area.

Formal access to the front of the main house is from Rideaway. The
house and the outbuildings also have a rear access from Common
Lane. The stables and calving bays are primarily accessed from
Common Lane.

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and

96



2.2

3.1

enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

The approach to heritage assets set out in the National Planning
Policy Framework is:

- heritage assets are an irreplaceable resource which should be
conserved in a manner appropriate to their significance (paras 126
and 132);

- applicants should describe the significance of the asset (para 128);
LPAs should identify and assess the particular significance of any
asset and take this into account when considering a proposal’s
impact to minimise the conflict with conservation of the asset (para
129);

- in dealing with planning applications, LPAs should take account of:
sustaining the significance of heritage assets and putting them to
viable uses consistent with their conservation

- the positive contribution of the conservation of heritage assets to
economic viability

- the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to
local character and distinctiveness (para 131)

- the more important the asset, the greater the weight that should be
given to its conservation (para 132)

- significance can be harmed or lost through alteration or destruction
of the asset or development within its setting;

- as heritage assets are irreplaceable, any harm should require clear
and convincing justification;

- substantial harm to or loss of a grade Il listed building should be
exceptional

- substantial harm to or loss of assets of the highest significance,
including grade II* buildings, should be wholly exceptional. Proposals
leading to substantial harm to or total loss of significance of a
designated heritage asset should be refused unless it can be
demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss is necessary to
achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh the harm or loss
unless all of the criteria listed in para. 133 apply;

- where proposals lead to less than substantial harm this should be
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including
securing the optimum viable use of the heritage asset.

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-
communities-and-local-government

PLANNING POLICIES
Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)

o H29: “Existing Buildings in the Countryside” - provides
criteria for the proposed conversion of buildings in the countryside
to residential use.

o En2: “Character and setting of Listed Buildings” — indicates
that any development affecting a building of architectural or
historic merit will need to have proper regard to the scale, form,
design and setting of the building.

97



3.2

3.3

3.4

o En5: “Conservation area character” - development within or
directly affecting Conservation Areas will be required to preserve
or enhance their character or appearance.

o En6: “Design standards in conservation areas” — in
conservation areas, the District Council will require high standards
of design with careful consideration being given to the scale and
form of development in the area and to the use of sympathetic
materials of appropriate colour and texture.

o En25: “General Design Criteria” — indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and
make provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations
(2002)

° None relevant.

Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)

o CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
development will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered, including design,
implementation and function of development.

Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)

o Policy LP 1 — “Strategy and principles for development”:

This proposal will be expected to (j) protect and enhance the historic
environment and the range and vitality of characteristic landscapes,
habitats and species.

o LP 13: Quality of Design - A proposal will need to be
designed to a high standard based on a thorough understanding of
the site and its context. A proposal will therefore be expected to
demonstrate, amongst other things, that it:

b. contributes positively to the local character, appearance, form and
pattern of development through sensitive siting, scale, massing, form
and arrangement of new development and use of colour and
materials;

d. respects and responds appropriately to the distinctive qualities of
the surrounding landscape, and avoids the introduction of
incongruous and intrusive elements into views. Where harm to local
landscape character as a result of necessary development is
unavoidable, appropriate mitigation measures will be required;

e. has had regard to the Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD (2007),
Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape Assessment SPD
(2007) and the Cambridgeshire Design Guide (2007) or successor
documents and other relevant advice that promotes high quality
design or that details the quality or character of the surroundings
including, but not limited to, conservation area character statements,
neighbourhood development plans, village design statements, parish

98



plans, urban design frameworks, design briefs, master plans and
national guidance;

o LP 15: Ensuring a High Standard of Amenity - A proposal will
be supported where a high standard of amenity is provided for
existing and future users and residents of both the surroundings and
the proposed development. A proposal will therefore be expected to
demonstrate how it addresses:

a. availability of daylight and sunlight, particularly the amount of
natural light entering homes, the effects of overshadowing and the
need for artificial light;

b. the design and separation of buildings with regard to the potential
for overlooking causing loss of privacy and resultant physical
relationships and whether they could be considered to be oppressive
or overbearing;

c. the predicted internal and external levels, timing, duration and
character of noise;

d. the potential for adverse impacts on air quality, particularly
affecting air quality management areas;

e. the potential for adverse impacts of obtrusive light and the
contamination of land, groundwater or surface water; and

f. the extent to which people feel at risk from crime by incorporating
Secured By Design principles.

o LP 26: Homes in the Countryside - A proposal that includes
the creation of a new home in the countryside will only be supported
where:

a. there is an essential need for a rural worker to live
permanently at or near their place of work; or

b. it helps meet an established need for affordable housing; or
C. the proposal would represent the optimal viable use of a

heritage asset or would be appropriate enabling development to
secure the future of a heritage asset; or the proposal would re-use an
existing building; or

d. the design of the home is of exceptional quality or is truly
innovative in nature.

Such proposals will be expected to comply with other applicable
policies of the plan and the requirements detailed below.

Conversion or Replacement of Existing Buildings - A proposal for the
residential conversion of an existing building in the countryside or for
the replacement of an existing building in the countryside will be
supported where it is demonstrated that there is no reasonable
prospect of the building being used for non-residential purposes.

A proposal for the erection of an outbuilding which is ancillary to an
existing home in the countryside will be supported where it is well
related to the home, of a scale consistent with it and where it remains
ancillary to the home.

o LP 29: Trees, Woodland and Related Features - A proposal
will be supported where it avoids the loss of, and minimises the risk of
harm to trees, woodland, hedges or hedgerows of visual, historic or
nature conservation value, including orchards, ancient woodland and
aged or veteran trees. The landscaping scheme for the proposal will

99



3.5

3.6

3.7

incorporated any of these features that lie within the site and should
link with any of these features on adjacent land/ nearby.

A proposal should seek to avoid affecting any:

a. tree or woodland that is protected by a Tree Preservation
Order if this would result in its loss, give rise to a threat to its
continued well-being; or

b. tree, woodland, hedge or hedgerow of visual, historic,
cultural or nature conservation value, where it would result in damage
to a feature that would undermine that value.

Where such a loss, threat or damage is proven to be unavoidable this
will only be acceptable where:

a. there are sound arboricultural reasons to support the
proposal; or
b. the proposal would bring benefits that outweigh the loss,

threat or damage to the feature concerned and the loss, threat or
damage is addressed through minimisation and provision of
appropriate mitigation measures, reinstatement of features and/ or
compensatory tree planting, landscaping or habitat creation to ensure
the character of the landscape or townscape is protected as far as is
possible.

o LP 31: Heritage Assets and their Settings - Great weight is
given to the conservation of any heritage asset; more weight is
accorded to assets of greater significance.

A proposal which affects the special interest or significance of any
heritage asset or its setting must demonstrate how it will conserve,
and where appropriate enhance, the asset. Any harm must be fully
justified and this harm will be weighed against the public benefit of the
proposal. Substantial harm or loss will require exceptional
justification. Harm to assets of the highest significance will require
wholly exceptional justification.

A proposal will be required to show, amongst other things, that:

a. it has clearly identified all the heritage assets affected by the
proposal and their special interests and significance, this is to be set
out in a heritage statement;

b. the design, siting, scale form and materials of any proposed
development will be sympathetic to the special interests and
significance of the heritage asset;

c. it would not have an adverse impact on views of or from the
heritage asset or of the open spaces, trees or street scene which
contribute positively to any heritage assets and their setting;

d. it clearly sets out how any alterations preserve the interests of a
listed heritage asset; and

Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD 2007 is also relevant.
The Hemingfords Conservation Area Character Assessment

Natural England Landscape Character Area - National Character
Area 88(NCA88) “The Bedfordshire and Cambridgeshire Claylands”.

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

100



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

PLANNING HISTORY

0402589FUL Erection of an agricultural building for livestock and
machinery storage. Refused. Dec 2004.

0500222FUL Erection of an agricultural building for livestock.
Granted March 2005.

1300109LBC Re-instatement of internal brick wall between two
2nd floor bedrooms and addition of false wall within adjacent
bathroom Granted May 2013

1301319FUL Construction of horse walker. Granted Nov. 2013

1301556L.BC Installation of roof lanterns and alterations to porch
Granted Dec 2013

CONSULTATIONS

Hemingford Abbots Parish Council — 1301808FUL and 1301809LBC
Stables and Coach House Recommend refusal due to increased
traffic (cars, lorries and horse boxes) into Common Lane and possibly
damage to protected trees.

1301810FUL and 1301811LBC Cottage and Workshop - As above

1301828FUL New stables and calving bays - No observations for
or against

In response to a request for clarification, the Chairman indicated that
the Parish Council took into account a letter it had received from the
owners of Home Farm expressing concern about the applicant’s use
of a right of way from Common Lane over their land. This letter
expressed concern that the applications for the Stables/Coach House
and the Cottage/Workshop would result in a ‘high increase’ in vehicle
movements along Common Lane and the access drive leading to a
risk of damage to the TPO protected lime trees which line the access,
damage to the road surface and a loss of privacy. The proposed
uses were supported but not with sole access from Common Lane.

The Parish Council considered that the applications for the
Stables/Coach House and the Cottage/Workshop for additional
residential use, in the latter case for commercial letting, would lead to:
- additional traffic, including the transport of horses, accessing the
development via Common Lane and the private road leading from it;

- Common Lane has no segregated footpath, is a relatively narrow
roadway shared by pedestrians and vehicles and the passage of
heavy vehicles driven by drivers unfamiliar with the area and the
speed of all vehicles is a concern of residents;

- the structure and surface of the Common Lane between Rideaway
and Meadow Lane is seriously compromised as evidenced by the
intensity of patching;

- The private road to the development from Common Lane is lined, in
part, by an avenue of trees identified as significant within the
Conservation Area Character Assessment, which could be at risk of
damage from large vehicles.

101



5.2

6.1

7.1

The application for the new stables and calving bays is stated to be
for use by the applicant's family and the agricultural tenant and it was
thought unlikely to generate significant additional traffic.

English Heritage - 1301808FUL and 1301809LBC Stables and Coach
House The Coach House and Stables, also attributed to Decimus
Burton (the architect of the house) dates from 1842-43 and forms part
of a group of service/stable yard buildings. English Heritage
welcomes the reinstatement of the original ground floor layout and its
use a garaging in connection with the main house and the retention of
the late Victorian architectural detailing in the stables. The creation of
the vehicular access through one of the blind arches on the rear
elevation will not cause harm to the significance of the building. The
alterations at first floor level are also acceptable. We are satisfied
that the overall proposal would not harm the significance of the grade
Il listed Coach House to an unacceptable level and would be in
accordance with the guidance in the NPPF.

1301810FUL and 1301811LBC Cottage and Workshop (Comments
relate to the application as submitted which included a conservatory
which has now been deleted from the proposal) The domestic style of
the conservatory would harm the significance of both the setting of
the Grade II* main house and the significance of the undesignated
heritage assets themselves. There is no objection to the principle of
adding a conservatory but it should be modest in scale and
appearance and complementary to the design of the original
glasshouse structures in the walled garden.

1301828FUL New stables and calving bays - No comments. The
application should be determined in accordance with national and
local policy guidance, and on the basis of the planning authority’s
specialist conservation advice.

REPRESENTATIONS
None received by the planning authority.
SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The report addresses the principal, important and controversial issues
which are:

- the principle of the developments

- traffic impacts

- impact on residential amenity

- the impact of the development and works on heritage assets

- the impact of the developments on the countryside

- impact on protected trees.

The principle of the developments

7.2

Stables and Coach House. The use of an existing building within the
curtilage of a dwellinghouse as ancillary accommodation to the main
house does not usually require planning permission. The position of
employees not providing personal or domestic services to the
occupants of the main house is less clear and the submission of this
application enables the issue to be put beyond doubt.

102



7.3

7.4

7.5

The general policy position for existing buildings in the countryside is:
- Paragraph 55 of the NPPF says that new dwellings in the open
countryside should be avoided unless, amongst other things,

- development would represent the optimal viable use of a heritage
asset.

- Paragraph 28 of the NPPF says that:

- sustainable rural growth and expansion of all types of business

and enterprise should be supported in rural areas, including through
the conversion of existing buildings;

- sustainable rural tourism and leisure developments that

benefit businesses in rural areas, communities and visitors should be
supported provided they respect the character of the countryside.

- Policy H29 of the Local plan 1995 says that conversions of building
in the countryside to residential use will only be permitted when an
employment generating use would not be reasonably attainable.

- Policy LP 26 of the Draft Local Plan to 2036 says that the
conversion of existing buildings in the countryside will be supported
where it is demonstrated that there is no reasonable prospect of the
building being used for non-residential purposes or the proposal
would represent the optimal viable use of a heritage asset.

It is considered that because of their very close proximity to the house
there is no reasonable prospect of non-residential use. The house no
longer requires such significant outbuildings although the proposal to
use part of the ground floor of the Stables/Coach House for garaging
does make beneficial use of part of this heritage asset. It is also
noted that these historic stables are no longer appropriate for modern
horse keeping. To that extent the buildings are largely redundant and
residential use would be in accordance with policy. As such there is
no requirement to impose an occupancy condition limiting the use to
be ancillary to that of the house, i.e. as staff accommodation.

Cottage and Workshop. The cottage has been in residential use for
some time and this application is for the change of use of the
workshop to residential use. The principle of residential use is as set
out above. As such there is no requirement to impose an occupancy
condition limiting the use to holiday accommodation which is
desirable but not essential for the ongoing financial support it
provided for the upkeep of the house.

New Stables/Calving bays

7.6

This building is in the parkland but just outside the curtilage in a non-
sensitive location in which it is considered to be acceptable in
principle. The proposal is well related to the home, of a scale
consistent with it and remains ancillary to the home.

Traffic impacts.

7.7

The concerns about the traffic impact of the applications for the
Stables/Coach House and Cottage/Workshop are noted. The impact
of the additional traffic generated by the two residential units which the
Parish Council has objected to would not be significant. The
documents accompanying the application make reference to the
applicant’s intention to use the Cottage and Workshop as holiday
accommodation and some visitors may bring their horses to the
stables. The additional number of horse transport movements is

103



difficult to quantify. The application for the stables, which the Parish
Council has not objected to, could lead to such movements in its own
right. Taking all the developments into account it is not considered
reasonably likely that they would lead to traffic movements by larger
vehicles which would be significant or demonstrably harmful in the
context of existing traffic using Common Lane.

Residential Amenity

7.8 Concern has been expressed about the use of the private track from
Common Lane. Taking all the developments into account it is not
considered reasonably likely that the traffic generated or the
additional disturbance from the uses would be significant or
demonstrably harmful.

The impact of the development and works on heritage assets

7.9 Subject to resolution of the design of the doors on the elevation of the
Cottage facing the walled garden, the alterations to the
Stables/Coach House and the Cottage/Workshop are acceptable
subject to conditions and would not cause harm to the heritage assets
affected, namely the listed buildings or the Conservation Area.

7.10 The new stables/calving bay building is in a well screened position
outside the remains of the walled garden, between the wall and
modern farm buildings and partially screened by trees. In this
location it has no adverse effect on heritage assets, namely the
setting of the listed buildings or on the Conservation Area.

The impact of the developments on the countryside

7.1 The parkland is an important area of open countryside which is
included in the Conservation Area because of its intrinsic
attractiveness and its relationship to the listed buildings in this group
and the built-up area of the village. The alterations to the historic
buildings have very limited impact and the new stables/calving
building is limited and acceptable for the reasons set out above.

Impact on protected trees

712 The avenue of trees which leads from Common Lane has canopies
which are sufficiently high and the trees are far enough back from the
track that it is not considered likely they would sustain significant
damage from horse boxes.

8. RECOMMENDATIONS:

8.1 Stables and Coach House - Planning permission and listed
building consent be GRANTED subject to conditions including:

1301808FUL

02003 Time limit

Nonstand Architectural details
1301809LBC

12004 Time limit

Nonstand Architectural details

104



8.2 Cottage and Workshop - Planning permission and listed building
consent be GRANTED subject to conditions including:

1301810FUL

02003 Time limit

Nonstand Architectural details
1301811LBC

12004 Time limit

Nonstand Architectural details

1301828FUL New stables and calving bays
That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions
including:

Nonstand Ancillary to residential use
If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an
audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to
accommodate your needs.
CONTACT OFFICER:

Enquiries about this report to Nigel Swaby, Development Management
Team Leader 01480 388461

105



Swaby, N_ige! (Pianning)

From: developmentcontrol@huntsde.gov.uk

Sent: 30 January 2014 17:05

To: DevelopmentControl

Subject: Comments for Planning Application 1301808FUL -3} i%@i%@?{,%

Planning Application comments have been made, A summary of the comments is provided below.

Comments were submitted at 5:05 PM on 30 Jan 2014 from Mrs Carole Pollock,

Application Summary
Stables And Coach House Hemingford Park Common

Address: Lane Hemingford Abbots
Use of the ground floor for garaging purposes. Creation
Proposal: of rear vehicular access through provision of blind arch.

Reinstatement of use of the first floor as ancillary
residential accommodation with associated works

Case Officer: Mr Nigel Swaby
Click for further information

Customer Details
Name: Mrs Carole Pollock
Email: parishclerk.hape@btinternet.com

> Gore Tree Road, Hemingford Grey, Cambridgeshire

Address: PE28 ORP

Comments Details

Commenter Town or Parish Council
Type:
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Reasons for - Adverse impact on trees
comment: - Detrimental to highway safety
- Detrimental to pedestrian safety
- Traffic creation/problems
Comments: RESOLVED to recommend refusal due to increased in
traffic (cars, lorries and horse boxes) inte Common

Lane and possibility of damage to protected trees.

106



Swaby, N_igei (Planning)

From: developmentcontrol@huntsde.gov.uk

Sent: 30 January 2014 17:10

To: DevelopmentControl

Subject: Comments for Planning Application 1301810FUL  -ARN) 120151 LaC.

Planning Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.

Comments were submitted at 5:09 PM on 30 Jan 2014 from Mrs Carole Pollock,

Application Summary

Cottage And Workshop Hemingford Park Common Lane
Hemingford Abbots

Change of use of existing workshop to residential use and
Proposal: erection of slate roof conservatory to rear (in place of
unauthorised conservatory)

Address:

Case Officer: Mr Nigel Swaby

Click for further information

Customer Details
Name: Mrs Carole Pollock
Email: parishclerk. hapc@btinternet.com

5 Gore Tree Road, Hemingford Grey, Cambridgeshire

Address: PE28 9BP

Comments Details

Commenter Town or Parish Council
Type:
Stance; Customer objects to the Planning Application
Reasons for - Adverse impact on trees
comment: - Detrimental to highway safety
- Detrimental to pedestrian safety
- Traffic creation/problems
Comments: RESOLVED to recommend refusal due to increased in

traffic {cars, lorries and horse boxes) into Common
Lane and possibility of damage to protected trees.

1
107



Swaby, Nijel (Plannialg)

From: developmentcontrol@huntsde.gov.uk

Sent: 30 January 2014 16:39

To: DevelopmentControl

Subject: Comments for Planning Application 1301828FUL

Planning Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.

Comments were submitted at 4:39 PM on 30 Jan 2014 from Mrs Carole Pollock,

Application Summary

Hemingford Park Common Lane Hemingford Abbots
Huntingdon PE28 SAS

Proposal: Erection of stables and calving bays

Address:

Case Officer: Mr Nigel Swaby
Click for further information

Customer Details
Name: Mrs Carole Pollock
Email: parishclerk.hapc@hbtinternet.com

5 Gore Tree Road, Hemingford Grey, Cambridgeshire

Address: PE28 9BP

Comments Details

Commenter Town or Parish Council
Type:

Customer made comments neither objecting to or
Stance:

supporting the Planning Application

Reasons for
comment:

Comments: No observations for or against

1
108



Swaby, Nigel (Planning)

Subject: FW: Hemingford Park House - 1301808, 1301810, 1301828 etc.
Attachments: 1301810FUL pdf

From: JOHN PETERS

Sent: 02 April 2014 11:29

To: Swaby, Nigel {Planning)

Cc: CarolePollock

Subject: Hemingford Park House - 1301808, 1301810, 1301828 etc.

Good morning Nigel

Following our telephone conversation of last evening, please find attached, as you requested, a copy of the letter from
ABK Smith dated 28 January addressed to the Parish Council and which the Parish Council took into its consideration
of the applications.

With regard to the Parish Council's differing recommendations for refusal of 1301808 / 1301810 and making no
observation on 1301828, as discussed, the Parish Council reached its recommendations after consideration of the
issues inciuding:

Application 1301828, stated as for use by the applicant’s family and the agricultural tenant, was thought unlikely to
generate significant additional traffic to and from the development (see D & A Statement Cl 8.2 "The development is
used by the agricultural tenant and by the applicant's family, not for commercial purposes”)

Applications 1301808 / 1301010, on the other hand, are for additional residential use and in the latter case stated as
for commercial letting purposes with the expectation of additional traffic including the transport of horses, accessing
the development via Common Lane and the private road leading from it.

Common Lane, with no segregated footpath, is a relatively narrow roadway shared by pedestrians and vehicles and
the passage of heavy vehicles, of drivers unfamiliar with the area and the speed of all vehicles is an expressed
concern of residents. The structure and surface of the Common Lane road between Rideaway and Meadow Lane is
seriously compromised as evidenced by the intensity of paiching. The private road to the development from Common
Lane is lined, in part, by an avenue of trees identified as significant within the Conservation Area Character
Asessment, which could be at risk of damage from targe vehicles.

The Parish Council Minutes record "A letter received from a resident was noted. The application was discussed and it
was felt that there were no objections to the building but increased traffic of cars, lorries and horse hoxes were a
concern. RESOLVED to recommend refusal due to increased traffic into Common Lane and the possibility of
damage to proiected irees.”

Kind regards

John Peters
Chairman, Hemingford Ahbots PC

109



Parish Clerk
Hemingford Abbots Parish Councit

28" Januarv. 201+
Dyear Parish Clerk
Rey Planning Application 13/01810/FUL & 1301808/ FUL

We write as the fraehold owaers of Home Farm, Hlemingford Abbots with regard to the above
apphcatmns

We understand that land ownership is not a matter of plansning policy however we are the
awners of the access drive from Common Lane which it appears the applicamt is proposing to
unlise as part of the above applications.

The applicant besefits from a right of wav over the above access drive. We are concerned thai
the use of this drive will result in a high increase in vehicle movements along Common Lare
and 1he access drive

The access drive is lined with an avenue of Lime Trees which are currently protected by way
of a Tree Preservation Order and we are concerned about damage to these and the cumrent
road surface if this were to sec an increase in traffic As wel] as a reduction in the privacy of
our family home,

We a¢cept and support the proposed re-use of the buildings although do not believe that the
sole use of the access from Commaon Lane is the most suitable 1o support these applications.

We hope that there matters will be taken into consideration when the planning applications
are heiny deterntined.

Yours sincerely,

110




o:.
il S
=

UNO
C 28

DM1
“O:mm
. S
| O =2
! u s

o2
£ -5
| += = &5
&= i3
\3 = ¢
T co

Application Ref: 1301808FUL and 1301809LBC

Location: Hemingford Abbots

Date Created: 03/06/2014

Scale =1:2,500

Development Management Panel

®

3
e

\\Mﬂu\\\ \\\ 7
&/ % |u.. A rrb_....n m/g
W B (ST grRRre.
b_wx.,_ Kmmm .”zmw x.x \

Q
t P 22
4

N
i N
By
NN
oy

D ) {
[N
T o ;
m L \wﬂ#\\
o #
MMn o ?
& [TFS
82
s
- e
S %M.w,? 3¢
Sl 7o 0\

%

- Ve < A
. \VMN.’ J \\x\&avﬁ\\ #
i ) o A
7 \\ G s A
TR \\\\w\h\l\l\n‘ﬁ%\\\ S
: o iy ; o 7
7 Sl A L
AL

\\ \\\\\\\\\W\w\wﬁ\

T

Legend

/| The Site

m Conservation Area




Development Management Panel HORIRGUORSAITR

Scale =1:2,500 Application Ref: 1301810FUL and 1301811LBC e ooy
Date Created: 03/06/2014

N

Location: Hemingford Abbots

'err;tngfnrd
Sewage 3 Far,
Works 3 Hen?}“ggfor
: bot
Harcourt 27
h \\\\ N Fm ;
NN \ 47,
Legend
/| The Site
m Conservation Area




Development Management Panel

L. Scale =1:2,500 Application Ref: 1301828FUL

Date Created: 03/06/2014 Location: Hemingford Abbots

.
Huntingdonshire
DigtRIETY CouNCIHL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2014
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

VIGVTVM__
ar's Croft

X7

5 Hem,i'r\a

for 7
bots
= 8 4

Legend

/| The Site
m Conservation Area




This page is intentionally left blank

114



Agenda ltem 6¢

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 June 2014

Case No: 14002880UT (OUTLINE APPLICATION)

Proposal: ERECTION OF TWO DWELLINGS WITH GARAGES.
DEMOLITION OF AGRICULTURAL BUILDING

Location: LAND ON RAYS DROVE NORTH WEST OF 208 UGG
MERE COURT ROAD RAMSEY HEIGHTS

Applicant: MR C W PICKARD

Grid Ref: 525274 285862

Date of Registration: 07.03.2014

Parish: RAMSEY
RECOMMENDATION - REFUSE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
1.1 Ugg Mere Court Road is ribbon development of predominantly

residential properties. The site is to the west of an infill plot recently
given permission for two dwellings that face onto Ugg Mere Court
Road ref:12003180UT. The proposed site consists of an agricultural
building, with access via Ray’'s Drove, to the west of the ribbon
development. Opposite the site to the north there is an area of open
space with play equipment.

1.2 The site is within the Environment Agency’s Flood Zones 2 and 3 but
at low risk of flooding according to the Council’s Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment.

1.3 The application seeks permission in outline for the erection of two

detached dwellings with detached garages following demolition of the
agricultural building. Means of access, layout and scale are for
consideration at this time. Appearance and landscaping are reserved
matters. The dwelling on plot 1 would be 7.6m high. The dwelling on
plot 2 would be 8.3m high. Both would face Ray’s Drove from which
access would be taken. The proposed site also entails part of site
area associated with application 12003180UT, to facilitate
development.

1.4 A unilateral undertaking has been submitted to make provision for
bins.
2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

21 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;

115



2.2

ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

Planning Practice Guidance (2014)

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-

and-local-government

3.

3.1

PLANNING POLICIES
Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)

e H23: "Outside Settlements" - general presumption against
housing development outside environmental limits with the
exception of specific dwellings required for the efficient
management of agriculture, forestry and horticulture.

e H31: "Residential privacy and amenity standards" - indicates
that new dwellings will only be permitted where appropriate
standards of privacy can be maintained and adequate parking
provided.

e H32: "Sub-division of large curtilages" - states support will be
offered only where the resultant dwelling and its curtilage are
of a size and form sympathetic to the locality.

e En17: "Development in the Countryside" - development in the
countryside is restricted to that which is essential to the
effective operation of local agriculture, horticulture, forestry,
permitted mineral extraction, outdoor recreation or public utility
services.

e En18: “Protection of countryside features” — offers protection
for important site features including trees, woodlands, hedges
and meadowland.

e En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale,
form, materials and design of established buildings in the
locality and make adequate provision for landscaping and
amenity areas.

e (CS8: “Water” — satisfactory arrangements for the availability of
water supply, sewerage and sewage disposal facilities,
surface water run-off facilities and provision for land drainage
will be required.

e CS9: “Flood water management” — the District Council will

normally refuse development proposals that prejudice
schemes for flood water management.

116



3.2 Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations

(2002)

HL5: “Quality and Density of Development” - sets out the
criteria to take into account in assessing whether a proposal
represents a good design and layout.

3.3 Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)

CS1: "Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire" - all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including
design, implementation and function of development.

CS3: "The Settlement Hierarchy" - states that any area not
specifically identified as a Market Town, Key Service Centre
or Smaller Settlement are classed as part of the countryside
where development will be strictly limited to that which has
essential need to be located in the countryside. The built form
excludes: buildings that are clearly detached from the main
body of the settlement; gardens and other undeveloped land
within the curtilage of buildings at the edge of the settlement,
where these relate more to the surrounding; and agricultural
buildings where they are on the edge of the settlement. CS10:
“Contributions to Infrastructure Requirements” — Contributions
that may be required include the following: waste recycling
facilities.

3.4 Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)

LP1: “Strategy and Principles for Development” — the Council
will support proposals which contribute to the delivery of new
housing, economic growth and diversification and
infrastructure provision through development strategy.
Development proposals will be expected to (amongst others):
a. prioritise the use of previously developed land in accessible
locations;

c. make efficient use of land, buildings and infrastructure
within existing settlements whilst preserving local character
and distinctiveness;

e. maximise opportunities for use of public transport, walking
and cycling;

j. protect and enhance the historic environment and the range
and vitality of characteristic landscapes, habitats and species.

LP2: “Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery” — the purpose of
this policy is to set out the council’'s approach to securing
developer contributions towards local infrastructure, facilities
and services from sustainable development proposals,
predominantly through the Community Infrastructure Levy and
planning obligations.

LP6: “Flood Risk and Water Management” — sets out the

Council's approach in relation to flood risk and water
infrastructure.

117



LP10: “Development in Small Settlements” — Ramsey Heights
is defined as a small settlement. A proposal which is located
within the built-up area of a small settlement will be
considered on individual sustainability merits and taking into
account whether it is in accordance with other policies of this
Local Plan.

LP11: “The Relationship between the built-up area and the
countryside” — gives the definition of the built-up areas and
sets out the limited circumstances where sustainable
development in the countryside will be considered. The built-
up area is defined as a group of existing non-agricultural
buildings of a permanent nature and their immediate
surroundings. The countryside includes all land outside built-
up areas and those hamlets, groups of buildings and
individual buildings that are clearly detached from the
continuous built-up area of a defined settlement that are not
themselves defined settlements. New homes in the
countryside will require special justification for planning
permission to be granted. The requirements are set out in
Policy LP 26 'Homes in the Countryside.

LP13: “Quality of Design” — sets out the Council’s criteria for
requiring high standards of design for all new sustainable
development and the built environment.

LP15: “Ensuring a high standard of Amenity” — the purpose of
the policy is to ensure that future residents and users of new
developments and those affected by new development in their
vicinity enjoy an adequate standard of living in terms of the
physical environment created.

LP18: “Parking Provision” — the purpose of the policy is to
ensure that new development provides sufficient parking to
meet its needs and minimize impacts on existing neighbouring
uses.

LP26: “Homes in the Countryside” — sets out the Council’s
approach to new homes in the countryside and the extension,
alteration or replacement of existing homes in the countryside.
A proposal that includes the creation of a new home in the
countryside will only be supported where:

a. there is an essential need for a rural worker to live
permanently at or near their place of work; or

b. it helps meet an established need for affordable
housing; or

C. the proposal would represent the optimal viable use
of a heritage asset or would be appropriate enabling
development to secure the future of a heritage asset; or the
proposal would re-use an existing building; or

d. the design of the home is of exceptional quality or is
truly innovative in nature.

Such proposals will be expected to comply with other
applicable policies of the plan.

118



3.5

3.6

3.7

Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD 2007 is also relevant.

Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape SPD 2007 is also
relevant.

Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework - Developer
Contributions SPD 2011 is also relevant with regard to contributions
to wheeled bins provision.

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

4.

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

7.1

PLANNING HISTORY

14002880UT - planning permission granted for two dwellings on land
east of the application site.

CONSULTATIONS

Ramsey Town Council — unanimously recommend approve (COPY
ATTACHED)

HDC Environmental Health - recommend a condition that ensures
that there is no residual contamination from the previous use (such as
agrochemicals, fertilizers, fuels, lubricants etc) and no ground gas
from Peat (namely methane and carbon dioxide) that may impact on
the future occupiers of the development.

Middle Level Commissioners — applicant should clarify the method
and location of surface water disposal

REPRESENTATIONS

One third party representation has been received in response to
consultations from the occupiers of 208 Ugg Mere Court Road,
raising the following issues:

- Welcome the re-use of the land

- Overlooking

- Loss of privacy.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The application has been submitted in outline with access, layout and
scale forming part of the application. The main issue to consider here
is the principle of additional housing in this location.

The principle of the development and its impact on the countryside

7.2

The Design and Access Statement submitted with the application
states that ‘approximately half of the site was contained within the
settlement limit of the village in the Local Plan 1995 Part Two’.
However settlement limits are not used in terms of policy definitions
and have been superseded by built-up areas. This site is in the open
countryside for the purposes of the Development Plan and emerging
planning guidance, wherein the policies are restrictive, and will
normally only permit new residential development where this has an
essential need to be located in the countryside. Each application

119



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

should be supported by a specific justification. Policy CS3 of the Core
Strategy is relevant in this case, as are policies En17 and H23 of the
Local Plan 1995 in respect of plot 2. Emerging policies LP11 and
LP26 contain similar provisions, and, although these policies cannot
be given full weight at present, they are consistent with national
guidance and carry through the LPA's long standing presumption
against development in the countryside unless an essential need can
be demonstrated.

Paragraph 5.15 of the Adopted Core Strategy 2009 states that ‘the
existing built form excludes agricultural buildings where they are on
the edge of the settlement’.

In the light of these clear statements, if the development is to be
permitted, there must be a convincing argument(s) to support the
view that an exception to both national and local policy could be
made. However, in the information accompanying the application,
there is nothing to suggest that this particular proposal conforms to
the requirements of the above policies.

Paragraph 55 of the NPPF states that ‘LPAs should avoid homes in
the countryside unless there are special circumstances such as:

-the essential need for a rural worker to live permanently at or near
their place of work

-where such development would represent the optimal viable use of a
heritage asset

-where the development would re-use redundant or disused buildings
-the exceptional quality or innovative nature of the design of the
dwelling should be truly outstanding or innovative, helping to raise
standards of design more generally in rural areas; reflect the highest
standards in architecture; significantly enhance its immediate setting;
and be sensitive to the defining characteristics of the local area.

The provisions of paragraph 55 of the NPPF have been brought
through at a local level with Policy LP26 of the Draft Local Plan to
2036. There has not been any justification submitted with the
application that argues the essential need for a rural worker to live
permanently at or near their place of work in the countryside; the
development does not involve a heritage asset; the development
does not include the re-use of a redundant or disused building; lastly,
(a) the proposed pair of detached dwellings are not considered to be
of exceptional quality or innovative nature of the design that would be
truly outstanding or innovative by helping to raise standards of design
more generally in Huntingdonshire; (b) nor does it reflect the highest
standards in architecture; (c) also they would not significantly
enhance the immediate setting as it would introduce additional
domestic built form in the countryside; and (d) it is not sensitive to the
defining characteristics of the local area as it would increase the
amount of built form in this unsustainable location westwards when all
the existing dwellings in this part of the settlement form a ribbon
development along Ugg Mere Court Road east of the application site.
All aspects (a-d) of Policy LP26 would need to be met.

The proposal does not satisfy any of the exceptions set out in the
policies above relating to the erection of dwellings in the countryside,
and, therefore, in the absence of any convincing arguments to the
contrary, it is considered that the proposal does not comply with

120



Paragraph 55 of the NPPF; or the provisions of policies H23 and
En17 of the Local Plan 1995; CS1 and CS3 of the Adopted Core
Strategy 2009; and LP11 and LP26 of the Draft Local Plan to 2036. It
is therefore recommended that the application be refused on
settlement policy grounds.

Five Year Housing Land Supply

7.8

As Local Planning Authority, Huntingdonshire District Council (HDC)
can demonstrate a record of delivery of housing. The NPPF therefore
requires HDC to be able to demonstrate a continuous 5 year supply
of deliverable housing land with an additional buffer of 5% to ensure
choice and competition in the market for land. HDC can demonstrate
an achievable supply of 5028 dwellings for the 5 year period from
April 2014, which equates to 218% of the Core Strategy requirement
of 481 dwellings a year to 2026. There is therefore no reason to set
aside the concerns outlined above on the basis of the supply of
deliverable housing sites”.

Access, layout and scale

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

713

Notwithstanding that the principle of development is not consistent
with policy, the siting of the proposed dwellings is inconsistent with
the ribbon development along this part of Ugg Mere Court Road.
There would appear to be a reasonable amount of circulation and
amenity space for each plot.

The scale of the proposed development reflects that of the adjoining
properties and is consistent with the advice in the SPD Design Guide.
Plot 1 has a ridge height of 7.6m and Plot 2 has a ridge height of
8.3m, similar to the pair of semis with a ridge height of 7.9m approved
under ref;12003180UT and that of “Wartnaby House” (approx. 8m to
the ridge).

In terms of access, Ray’s Drove is used by large agricultural vehicles
and those associated with the keeping of horses and in this regard it
is considered that the proposed accesses would be suitable for
general car use.

The appearance of the development will be one of the reserved
matters, but an indicative front elevation has been submitted. There is
a wide variety of house types along Ugg Mere Court Road, but the
proposed design fits in with the overall pattern of development and
reflects the fenland style of property.

Landscaping is to be a reserved matter but an indication of the
proposed planting and fencing has been shown on the submitted plan
and appears acceptable.

Neighbour amenity

7.14

The use of the buildings for farming purposes would have some
impact on the amenities of the immediate neighbours. The
redevelopment of the site for residential purposes will also have an
impact, but this is likely to be relatively limited in terms of noise and
disturbance. The most likely sources of noise will be vehicle
movements and outdoor activities. In terms of noise and disturbance,

121



7.15

it is considered that the proposal complies with policies H31 and
LP15.

Buildings in the position indicated will not overshadow the adjoining
properties. In respect of overlooking, without the benefit of full plans
it is difficult to fully assess the impact on neighbouring properties,
however if the principle of development is allowed the position of
windows can be designed in at a later stage to avoid any significant
impacts. In any event it is considered that the distances involved and
the juxtaposition of the proposed dwellings in relation to No208 and
the approved development adjacent ensure that overlooking is
unlikely to be a significant problem and will not cause an undue loss
of amenity.

Other Matters

7.16

Drainage — due to the size of the existing agricultural building and
areas of hardstanding associated with the current use, it is unlikely
that the proposed development would generate as much surface
water as the existing development. In this regard it is considered that
flooding is not a significant issue in this case and that there is no
conflict with policies CS8, CS9 or LP6.

Conclusion

717

7.18

The proposal would be contrary to the provisions of polices CS1 and
CS3 of the Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2009,
policies En17 and H23 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, and
polices LP11 and LP26 of the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to
2036 (2013) in that residential development in the countryside will be
restricted to that which has an essential need to be in a rural location.
The applicant has not demonstrated a need for the development to be
in this location and has not put forward a convincing case as to why
an exception to the policies of the Local Planning Authority should be
made. Although the site is adjacent to the built-up area of the
settlement, because of the rural nature of the area the development
will not minimise the need to travel by private motor vehicle.

Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, and
having taken all relevant material considerations into account, it is
therefore recommended that planning permission should be refused.

RECOMMENDATION — REFUSE for the following reasons:

The proposal would be contrary to the provisions of policies CS1 and
CS3 of the Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2009,
policies En17, En25 and H23 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan
1995, policy HL5 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alteration 2002
and policies LP1, LP11 and LP26 of the Draft Huntingdonshire Local
Plan to 2036 (2013) in that residential development in the countryside
will be restricted to that which has an essential need to be in a rural
location and the siting of the proposed dwellings is inconsistent with
the ribbon development along this part of Ugg Mere Court Road. The
applicant has not demonstrated a need for the development to be in
this location and has not put forward a convincing case as to why an
exception to the policies of the Local Planning Authority should be
made. Although the site is adjacent to the built-up area of the

122



settlement, because of the rural nature of the area the development
will not minimise the need to travel by private motor vehicle.

CONTACT OFFICER:

Enquiries about this report to Ms Dallas Owen Development Management
Officer 01480 388468

123



———
Huntingdonshire

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street
Huntingdon. PE29 3TN
mail@huntsdc.gov.uk

Tel: 01480 388388
Fax: 01480 388099
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Head of Planning Services
Pathfinder House

St. Mary's Street
Huntingdon
Cambridgeshire PE 29 3TN

Application Number: 14002880UT Case Officer Ms Dallas Owen

Proposal: Erection of two dwellings with garages. Demolition of agricultural building
Location: Land On Rays Drove North West Of 208Ugg Mere Court RoadRamsey Heights
Observations of Ramsey Town/Parish Council.

Please ¥ box as appropriate

Recommend approval because ...... (please give releyant planning reasons in space below)
Ur]animOwﬁ proved . At Jarse encuph for
dMCOf’W ISt fo (tpack or &aaﬁaa

Recommend refusal because...(please give relevant planning reasons in space below)

No obsgrvations either in favour or against the proposal

O\ Clerk to Ramsey Town/Parish Council.

28|31,

Failure to return this form within the time indicated will be taken as an indication that the Town or
Parish Council do not express any opinion either for or against the application.

Da

(Development Management)

124



Development Management Panel o e

\\\\\\\\\\\\\\

[, Scale =1:2.500 Application Ref: 14002880UT A R
Date Created: 03/06/2014

Location: Ramsey

T[ Legend
i (/] The Site ..i_._l
[ /




“IWSOJO¥d HDLINS z e alile
¥ qYVAIId "M "D swioonH T
i ¥yod ma:..wm&o.mﬂﬂwﬂu N WOZ_._.ZDI "
1/¥9el "SIHOI3H AISWYY “ 3AQYd m><m :n_u_:.,mu_“_uu_w._hmuuu&ﬂ
on onmvsa IvsoRtiisMg oMl X || M=oty 1
N |
“211ys2bpriquio
| m._m_mmom, .mﬁx_uz m.umEom
| W "NV
| NOI1VY)0
| | |
g il quur - — |
= vw»s\ﬂ‘uﬂﬂw} / Sv»éié ! 7
e —— i |
By by oy, frompun |
b 8 i
\ “preotray oy e sy i m
|||||| / -l | | o |
\ \\\\\ / > o | ” ] ,ﬁ
- : =
f ik e . , |
. \ ] | ﬂ , e anoy(] skoy W !
-~ ; Ay =ee < = 4
i | ! | | i o |
] 4 , i | 8
:L ; IR W \ 4 . | |
“ 7 '
| |
| Arucczamco Buikaaing pajoossy Aq
| | ‘paiodaid 985 G0 JSY ou buimoip
| | uo umoys £AaAInRs |porydosbodoy
i W UYim uolpuNnfuod ul'poal 2q of
| -310N
W
_ !
! "
I | , |
| IS5 ) A T4 "W
oy joid |
, _ "3A040
) | o]
L7 | NOILVAT13
e ! 1815804
b gy Sensrrord gy _
Srrerprmag svew o3 Srray coany H _m_
“omy Jod "3U0 40
i
T 7 T il
o i il
¥ , Lt
fes g

. e f




Agenda ltem 6d

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 June 2014

Case No: 1400138FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: CONVERSION INTO FOUR DWELLINGS INCLUDING
DEMOLITION OF SINGLE STOREY GARAGE

Location: MARRON HOUSE MONTAGU SQUARE EYNESBURY

Applicant: MS J CROFT

Grid Ref: 518340 259689

Date of Registration: 18.03.2014

Parish: ST NEOTS
RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
1.1 This application relates to Marron House, a large detached dwelling

set back from the corner of Montagu Street and Luke Street. The
existing dwelling is a modern, 2 storey, double fronted dwelling
constructed of brick under a tiled roof. It is relevant to note that the
lounge and 1 bedroom are on the 1st floor of this dwelling. The large
first floor window on the southern elevation serves the existing
lounge.

1.2 There is a large flat roofed garaged attached to the northern elevation
which extends eastwards into the site. The rear element of this
building has been converted into a substantial ancillary annex to
Marron House. Vehicular parking is available forward of the dwelling,
and accessed off Montagu Street and there is additional parking
available to the south east (rear) of the dwelling which is accessed off
Luke Street.

1.3 To the north of the site is a takeaway, known locally as the Yumi-
Yumi restaurant. To the west is public highway and beyond that
Montagu Square which is primarily used for car parking. To the
south/south east, beyond the enclosed garden is Luke Street and to
the south east are dwellings fronting Luke Street.

1.4 The proposal is to demolish the existing garage to make way for a 2.5
storey extension. It is then proposed to subdivide the site into 4
residential properties. The 2.5 storey extension will be subdivided into
2 dwellings, the existing dwelling will remain as 1 dwelling and the
annex to the rear will be extended to form the 4th dwelling. The
accommodation will comprise:

- 1 x 3 bed dwelling

- 1 x 2 bed bungalow
-1 x 2 bed flat

-1 x 1 bed flat

127



1.5

2.1

The proposal includes 2 car parking spaces on site and refuse bin
collection areas.

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-

and-local-government

3.

3.1

PLANNING POLICIES
Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)

e En2 - The District Council will require that any development
involving or affecting a building of special architectural or
historic interest has proper regard to the scale, form design
and setting of that building.

e En5 - Development within or directly affecting conservation
areas will be required to preserve or enhance their character
or appearance.

e En6 - In conservation areas, high standards of design are
required, with careful consideration being given to the scale
and form of development in the area and to the use of
sympathetic materials of appropriate colour and texture.

e En25 - New development will respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings within the
locality.

o H31: “Residential privacy and amenity standards” — Indicates
that new dwellings will only be permitted where appropriate
standards of privacy can be maintained and adequate parking
provided.

e H32: "Sub-division of large curtilages" states support will be

offered only where the resultant dwelling and its curtilage are
of a size and form sympathetic to the locality.

128



H33: “Sub-division of large curtilages affecting protected
buildings or features” states the subdivision of curtilages will
not be supported where development will adversely affect the
qualities of a Conservation Area or affect trees worthy of
protection.

3.2 Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations

(2002)

HL5 — Quality and Density of Development - sets out the
criteria to take into account in assessing whether a proposal
represents a good design and layout.

3.3 Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)
e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all

developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including
design, implementation and function of development.

CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — identifies St Neots as a
Market Town in which development schemes of all scales may
be appropriate in built up areas.

3.4 Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)

Policy LP 1 Strategy and principles for development - the
Council will support proposals which contribute to the delivery
of new housing, economic growth and diversification and
infrastructure provision.

Policy LP 2 ‘Community Infrastructure Levy’- Applicable
developments will be liable to pay the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) as set out in the Huntingdonshire
Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule or
successor documents.

Policy LP 8’ Development in the Spatial Planning Areas

St Neots Spatial Planning Area is comprised of St Neots and
Little Paxton. St Neots is the primary settlement within this
SPA. A proposal which includes housing, including residential
institution uses or supported housing, will be supported where
it is appropriately located within the built-up area of an
identified SPA settlement.

Policy LP 13 ‘Quality of Design’ - A proposal will need to be
designed to a high standard based on a thorough
understanding of the site and its context.

Policy LP 15 ‘Ensuring a High Standard of Amenity’ - A
proposal will be supported where a high standard of amenity
is provided for existing and future users and residents of both
the surroundings and the proposed development.

129



Policy LP 17 ‘Sustainable Travel - A proposal will be
supported where it is demonstrated that:

a. opportunities are maximised for the use of sustainable
travel modes;

b. traffic volumes can be accommodated and will not cause
significant harm to the character of the surrounding area;

c. any adverse effects of traffic movement to, from and within
the site including the effect of car parking is minimised;

d. a clear network of routes is provided that provides
connectivity and enables ease of access, to, around and
within the proposal and with the wider settlement for all
potential users, including those with impaired mobility; and

e. safe and convenient pedestrian and cycle routes, including
links to new and existing services, facilities, footpaths,
bridleways and the countryside are provided where
appropriate and if possible formalised as rights-of-way.

Policy LP 18 ‘Parking Provision” - A proposal will be
supported where it incorporates appropriately designed
vehicle and cycle parking with a clear justification for the level
of provision proposed, having regard to:

a. the potential to increase the use of alternative transport
modes including public transport, walking and cycling;

b. highway safety;

C. servicing requirements;

d. the needs of potential users; and

e. the amenity of occupiers of nearby properties.

Parking provision should be considered as an integral part of
the design process and its impact on the surrounding
townscape and landscape minimised. Reference should be
made to the Cambridgeshire Design Guide and the
Huntingdonshire Design Guide or successor documents and
to the Lifetime Homes standard.

Parking facilities may be shared where location and patterns
of use permit. Careful consideration will be given to the siting
and design of garaging, responding to the character and
appearance of the area.

Policy LP 29 — ‘Trees, Woodland and Related Features’

A proposal will be supported where it avoids the loss of, and
minimises the risk of harm to trees, woodland, hedges or
hedgerows of visual, historic or nature conservation value,
including orchards, ancient woodland and aged or veteran
trees.

Policy LP 31 “Heritage Assets and their Settings”

A proposal which affects the special interest or significance of
any heritage asset or its setting must demonstrate how it will
conserve, and where appropriate enhance, the asset. Any
harm must be fully justified and this harm will be weighed
against the public benefit of the proposal. Substantial harm or
loss will require exceptional justification. Harm to assets of the
highest significance will require wholly exceptional
justification.

130



3.5

Supplementary Planning Document:

e  The Huntingdonshire Design Guide 2007.

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

4.1

5.1

5.2

6.1

71

PLANNING HISTORY

There is no recent history for this dwelling.

CONSULTATIONS

St. Neots Town Council recommend REFUSAL [Copy Attached]

Cambridgeshire County Council Highways Authority: wishes to
be confident with regards the following

* That the Local Planning Authority is happy with the loss of parking
to the existing property

* That the Local Planning Authority is happy with only 1 space each
(presumably for the 3 bed dwellings)

* No parking for the two bedroom or 1 bedroom flat therefore making
both, car free developments and how this is controlled on site.

The highways officer also advises in his e-mail of the 7th May that
there has not been a request for waiting restrictions on Luke Street
since 2007.

REPRESENTATIONS

3 letters of objection from 67, 82 and 84 Luke Streeton the grounds
of:

- Increased overlooking of properties on Luke Street

- Obstruction of light

- Lack of car parking and impact on traffic management

- Congestion on Luke Street

- The dangerous location of one of the car parking spaces.

- Montagu Square is heavily used by the nursery during the day and
used for parking cars in the evening.

- The Site is not on a public transport route.

- The impact of the construction/alterations to the bungalow on no. 84
Luke Street.

- The proposal represents overdevelopment of the site.

- Impact on property value

- Concerns about the ground floor bathroom window to 84 Luke
Street.

- The neighbouring takeaway does not provide parking, contributing
to parking difficulties in the area.

- Parking matters will be exacerbated if the pub on Montagu Street is
converted to 7 dwellings.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main issues in relation to this proposal are:
- The principle of development in this location

131



7.2

7.3

- The design and the impact upon the setting of the listed buildings (o.
84 Luke Steet and 1-4 Montagu Court) and the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area.

- Residential Amenity

- Parking matters

In the first instance the Government advises that impact on property
values are not material planning considerations to the determination
of planning applications. However the issues that contribute to the
perception of decreased property value are and will be discussed in
more depth within this report.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) advises that at the
heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable
development which should be seen as a golden thread running both
through plan making and decision taking.

The Principle of Housing Development:

7.4

This site lies in the built up area of St. Neots. Policy CS3 of the
Huntingdonshire LDF Core Strategy defines St. Neots as a market
town, where development of all scales may be appropriate within the
built up area subiject to traffic and environmental considerations. This
view is echoed in policy LP8 of the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan
to 2036: Stage 3 (2013). The dwelling is in a sustainable location in
close proximity to the town centre.

The Design And The Impact Upon The Setting Of The Listed Building at
No. 84 Luke Steet and 1-4 Montagu Court And The Character And
Appearance Of The Adjacent Conservation Area:

7.5

7.6

7.7

The existing dwelling is a non-descript, modern dwelling occupying a
prominent corner plot within the Conservation Area which lends itself
to improvement. The proposal is to demolish the garage element of
the building along the northern boundary and erect a 2.5 storey
extension in its place. While the extension will not be subservient to
the principal dwelling, the resultant building will have the appearance
of a pair of semi-detached properties stepping down towards Luke
Street.

3 of the proposed dwellings will be accessed from Montagu Square. It
is considered that rendering the properties , introducing contrasting
roofing material and re-arranging the boundary treatments to the
frontage, while retaining landscaping will result in a visual change,
rather than harm, to the to the setting and appearance of the listed
buildings (No. 84 Luke Steet and 1-4 Montagu Court) and the wider
Conservation Area

It is considered that the scheme as proposed complies with policies
H33, En2, En5, En6 and En9 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995
and Policies LP13 and LP31 of Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to
2036: Stage 3 (2013)

Residential Amenity:

7.8

The residential curtilage to Marron House runs eastwards, north of
the gardens to 78-84 Luke Street and is separated from those

132



7.9

7.10

7.11

712

713

7.14

gardens by way of a brick wall approximately 2m in height. 78-84
Luke Street are 2 storey dwellings with north facing windows on the
rear elevation.

Currently the lounge to Marron House is on the 1st floor with a south
facing window, overlooking the public highway. There are 2 windows
on the rear elevation above ground floor level that serve the stairwell
and the bathroom. Due regard is had to the perception of overlooking
into the gardens of 78-84 Luke Street. This scheme proposes 3
windows at 1st floor level on the rear elevation , in addition to the 2
existing windows and 1 small window at 2nd floor level.

The 2 additional windows at 1st floor level will serve a bathroom and
bedroom. It is necessary and reasonable to condition the window
serving the bathroom window is obscure glazed and top opening
window only The proposed bedroom will be along the northern
boundary with the neighbouring take away with a view primarily over
the roofscape of the bungalow and the courtyard serving the
takeaway. The additional window at 2nd storey level is a small
opening, will also serve a bedroom and again primarily overlook the
bungalow. The bungalow itself will be single storey and will not
overlook neighbouring properties. It is considered that the scheme
can be made acceptable by way of planning conditions and therefore
will not be significantly harmful to the amenity of neighbours by way
over overlooking, loss of privacy or loss of light.

While there may be some overlooking from the existing dwellings into
part of the amenity area dedicated to the bungalow, this is an existing
arrangement, apparent to any future occupier and for that reason is
not considered to be detrimental to the amenity of the future
occupiers of the bungalow. Additional fenestration on the western
elevation of the scheme as proposed will overlook the public highway.

On balance, this scheme complies with policies En25 and H32 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 and policy LP15 of Draft
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)

Concerns have been expressed by 84 Luke Street regarding a
ground floor bathroom window. It is evident from the site visit that the
window overlooks the private parking area to Marron House. This
matter relating to that bathroom window is a private civil matter
between the owners of both properties.

Consideration is also given to the bungalow to the north east of
Marron house, 10 Glenariff Close. The existing annex will be
extended by approximately 6m eastwards to create a 2 bedroomed
bungalow. The overall height of the resulting bungalow will be 2.3m.
Due regard is hard to the Town and Country (general Permitted
Development) Order 1995 which allows for boundaries in rear
gardens to be up to 2m in height. It is not considered that the single
storey extension to the existing annex will be significantly harmful to
the amenity of neighbours. It is also considered that the roofscape of
the proposed bungalow will mitigate views eastwards toward
dwellings within Glenariff Close.

133



Highway Matters:

7.15

7.16

7.7

7.18

Quantity of car parking provision should take account of location and
access to alternative modes of transport. A balance needs to be
struck and sustainable development should help to promote a shift
towards other modes such as walking, public transport and cycles.
Policy LP18 advises that a proposal will be supported where it
incorporates appropriately designed vehicle and cycle parking with a
clear justification for the level of provision proposed, having regard to:

a. the potential to increase the use of alternative transport modes
including public transport, walking and cycling;

b. highway safety;

C. servicing requirements;

d. the needs of potential users; and

e. the amenity of occupiers of nearby properties.

The Council’s previous car parking standards were contained within
Appendix 1 of the DPD: Proposed Submission 2010. If that basis
were applied to this scheme then a maximum 8 car parking spaces
would be required. However, these were maximum standards and fail
to take into consideration the sustainable location of the proposal.

As already identified within this report the site is in an accessible
location, close to the town centre which potential occupiers can
access easily on cycle or on foot. The scheme proposes 2 car parking
spaces, one for the 3-bedroom dwelling which will be to the front of
the dwelling and 1 for the bungalow, utilising the existing vehicular
access off Luke Street. It is noted that there are neighbour concerns
about the safety of this access, however this is an existing access
which can be used by vehicles. It is considered that 1 car parking
space for each of these dwellings is acceptable in this sustainable
location.

No parking is proposed for the 2 apartments. Concerns have been
expressed regarding congestion on Luke Street and Montagu Square
and one objection relates to the proposed redevelopment of the
public house, known locally as The Plough situated at the northern
end of Montagu Street. It is noted from visiting the area that there is
unrestricted on-street parking available in Luke Street and Montagu
Square, opposite the development. It is considered that there is
scope to provide secure cycle storage within the site which can be
secured by way of a planning condition. Given local concerns, officers
specifically visited the site early morning during the working week and
on a Friday evening, and found that there is capacity to park on the
public highway and/or in Montagu Square Having regard to this and
the sustainable location of the proposal, it is not considered that a
refusal of this scheme on the grounds of lack on on-site car parking
would be sustainable.

Landscaping Matters:

7.19

There is no objection to the removal of the existing four trees. Some
are dead/failing, and others are of insufficient merit to warrant
retention or protection. There is no objection to this proposal subject
to a condition to ensure that details of the hard and soft landscaping
are submitted and agreed with the Local Planning Authority.

134



Conclusion:

7.20

7.21

8.

This scheme is not considered to be significantly harmful to the
residential amenity of nearby dwellings, highway safety or parking
matters. The resulting dwellings have been designed to be in keeping
with the locality and will not detract from the setting of the nearly
listed buildings or the character and appearance of the wider
Conservation Area.

This proposal accords with the NPPF, policies En2, En5, En6, En9,
En25, En18, En20, H32, and H33 from the Huntingdonshire Local
Plan 1995, Policy HL5 from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alteration
2002, Policy CS1 of the Local Development Framework Core
Strategy 2009, Policies LP1, LP2, LP8, LP13, LP15, LP17, LP18,
LP29, LP31 from the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage
3 (2013).

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to condition
to include the following

1. Time Limit

2. Materials to be carried out in accordance with Drawing No. 102 or
as otherwise approved

3. Notwithstanding approved plans the details of the 1st floor
bathroom window on the rear elevation to be agreed.

4. Hard and soft landscaping

5. Details of cycle storage

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Clara Kerr Development Management Officer
01480 388434

135



St Neots

Town Council

Council Offices

The Priory Centre www.stheots~tc.gov.ukK
St. Neots

Cambs

PE19 2BH

Tel: 01480 388913
Fax: 01480 388915

ed.reilly@stneots-tc.gov.uk

7™ April 2104

Planning Administration
Huntingdonshire District Council
Pathfinder House

St Mary’s Street

Huntingdon

PE29 3TN

Planning Application 1400138FUL — Marron House, Montagu Street, St Neots. PE19 2TL

At its meeting on 3 Apr 14 the Planning Committee of St Neots Town Council resolved to
recommend that the subject application be refused. The reasons for this are as follows:

Inadequate Parking

Poor Design, Layout & Density of Building

Lack of Highway Safety

Loss of Trees

Inadequate Road Access

Overlooking and Loss of Privacy to Neighbouring Properties

E Reilly

Town Clerk: Edward Reilly FCMI FFA

136



snowjueun Sunoa

. TYAOYddY IV 613d doysyjiom jo uonjowap
RRiinba; qiay paddaig pusawiwoday Em_vuﬁw_“\w “““w uslsaq o1r S109N 1S ‘p4od uole3 ‘peoy SI09N IS TOT|  Suimojjo) Jeas o} uoisuaixa Aa103s a|Suls pasodoud N45£200vT broz/€o/sz( 11
VAOHdAY snowiueun 3unop uBiEaa
! . A
puswwoday 201U 1D [JMPBYYDIY U3 1S9 6T3d S109N 1S ‘Aepn J83say T WIB)SAS UOlIDRIIXD UYL JO UOolIe|eIsu| TN49SE0OYT vT0z/€0/8¢2| o1
/PNy v a1
IVAOYUddY snotwjueun 8uop S21e120SSY AingsauA3
‘uoned)|dde siy3 4oy wWooJ 3y3 Ys| Jaysn 4| pusIWoIsy 3ony @i uejdwes ‘250|7 MOJlIM 9 SutpnjpUl puE 3¢ puel moje3unq jo uondai3 TNASTEOOYT v10Z/€0/92| 6
/221uaid D
- snowiueun 3uoa . yosod Burisixa 03 jood
pusLIWOoIY uosdwoyy J||3 Asjieg suyd|  3ST 6T3d S108N 1S ‘peOY pu3 usalo £7 031-Ue3| Jo uonippe R J0oJ paydud |enp o3 joou jej 1N488E00VT v10Z/€0/v2| 8
/Py g 98eJes JO UOISIAAUDD ‘UOISUIXD 3pIs AaJ01s B|SulS
IYAOYUddY ke s, uaisaq 2488 613d molesung
WSuMmuIep J)D |ean3eYdLY 1N406200%T v10Z/€0/ve| ¢
UdWW 023, 5109 ‘U020S uole3 ‘WUN0J suaan 1paq e 331310 0] mojesung 3ISpaq JO UOISUX;
puswiwoday Jad0u81d A1) PIEM UOWIIS 109N 1S 0S uoje3 ‘uno) sl 0 TE| Wo0upaq 7 e 31831 01 MO| q 1spaq 4 Isu31x3
S snowliueun Buj3on
pusWIWOodRY Wy3umutem 410 ugisag dW| DNT 6T3d SI09N 1S ‘Aep ajeSunysiN 8T y21od sduesius ‘Joos payoyd ouow e Jo uoidalg 1N4TSE0OVT v10Z/€0/v2 —P
/18ysn 411 ™
—
‘paljddns syuawnaop saiuadold Q38 6T3d SI09N 1S ‘U0I0S Buljamp se Suipjing |e1P18WwWwod
UO UOISII3p 3¥eW Jouue) ‘uol1edo| ou - suejd Jood uayssuoq uoje3 ‘peoy YuoN 1eai9 ‘gTz doys 8unsixa Jo asn Jo 10adsau ul jeacidde Jolig NOJVdOEYOOYT vroe/eo/ve| s
snowjueun Supop
WAGHddY 2213udid J| $91B12055Y ||I 5109 ‘Aepn seww 0 1se SYOMAIZEUE pUE sasrioy Aasoys oma waug /
P 1uaid 412 1e1205sY ||13S 109N 1S ‘Aem 17401583 Jo UoNINNSUOD 1§ 1N0> 2868 JulsIxa Jo UOMIOWAG IN4T8T00YT v102/€0/12| ¥
/A8umuiepm 110
TYAOYddY snoujueun 5upoA aInd3UYydIy VL 6T3d pi0o4
5| i A 9|38
puswiwoday BUSNIDL ooy uiey|  uoses DEOY 103N 1 ‘SN0 SeWOyL uoisuaixa Juoly A103s 8|Suls IN4Z6200KT v1oz/€o/tz| €
/3213ud4d 4D
TYAOYUddY snowlueun SuRoA| - i 4321y TN48TITOET 03 BWBYIS PasIARL - LINOD BMO|IBN
FlMmuIep J Sujuue| 104 Uoje3 ‘peoy ||eyssod e pue i
puswwioday yslmuiem 4112 g suluueld| p1og uole3 ‘peoy ||eysso.) 69T e pue] eIA $5932€ SUIpn|oUl BUBMP PAYIEISP JO UORIBIZ 1N4T6200VT v102/€0/12| T
Juosdwoyy 11D ul s1auyied
uolnualsqy
1vsn43y sjuejnsuo) 112 6T3d AngsauAg 23eJe3 Asu01s 8|8uls jo
suo132a(qo 8ul|ie1ap 13119] BIUM 03 I3 D1uUdld J
HORIRIGO SUNIEISP Jau3] B3M 03 413) UMOL puswwolay m\v__w”z._“ ._““w Buip|ing ens3 ‘alenbs ndejuo ‘esnoy uossey| uonjowsp Suipn|aul sSuljj@mp JNoj 03Ul UOISIBAUD) N4BET00VT vroz/eo/te) 1
“ON
SUBWWO) uoisag 13puoaag/1asodold juedjddy| uolleaon juawdojanag| Jay uonedjddy P23y 2eq Nen

¥TOC |11dV € JO SUNSSW 9y} 1€ paJopisuod suonesijddy Suluueld

9910, SUIUUE[d

]IDUN0) UMG] SI09N 15




‘ﬁ
Huntingdonshire

DIZTRICT COUNCIL
i Scale =1:2,500 Application Ref: 1400138FUL ©Croun copyriht and database righis 2014
Date Created: 03/06/2014

Development Management Panel

Location: St Neots

/| The Site
m Conservation Area




5996 6v2L 020 1oL
Va0 9LN Uopuo

peoy JonsuAQ BEL

PH Sjueinsuoo Buipiing ense

ense

4010 apauuear

ey oad PLEOTL| LV D 00k
powayo|  umei owa oreos
Sleld Z ‘MojeBung | 8SOH | 0] UOISIBAUOD
uopeayddy Buiuueld y
201 ceoel
SuoNeAQI3 PeSOdold | -osney on e ot
o Bumeia

senbs nBeluop

8sN0H UOLEN
o sloig

JuBWIWOY Jo4

smeis

suonpuoo
515 U punoy seuedessip Aue
*eq podai 0} Jopenuog Stiom
dys

jowip Iy
T

B — ang

R—

wawaned 0000 7

osnoy 101919 0020+ —|

oret 39 00K0+ | |

ooy 9snoH uouen 022+ —|—

opny vorsuoweg opEs ——

(.
o

—
—

[ ]
.o

e

g-g uonoag

V-V UoRoag

iy

uBisap s,190u1bUD

Ailewsayur paiidde vonejnsul

 uonena|y

jeuonIppY "poule3a)
Jiem Asepunog Bunsix

[eamonns 03 sapd uiw
J % weaq punosb 21210u00

==
[

'

sopd
wuiw punose s6unooy Bunsixa

9eq 33 Ajinjose) “paureaa

Jlem Kiepunog Bunsixa

1]
a

=

[
]
—
.

i

auy Aiepunog pawnssy

€ uonens|3

D=

[ suomiua 0 yng

slepuaany yui3 Aspien 62
“joB|q NI ‘YSIUY UBAL
‘WWIODE X 009 SIR P1eIS [eIYRIY
xnjeA 60 ‘ysiuy
Jews)x K216 ‘wiig /6
X 082 ‘MOpUIM J0OY

2 uonens)y

OIOLIG %0038 g
auym payured

‘s100p youaly pue
SMOpUIM JUBWasED
Jequiny pazeiB ajanog

uym paruied pieogebieq Joqui WIS L

BUNSIX® YoIEW 03 SMOPUIM
poze(B 21GNop IAAN UM

ysiuy paurers
eo 3ybi| ‘sio0p [eusaIxe
Jaqui souewLI0}ed UYBIH

slepuany NI Aoen B
§0B|q BN|q YSIUY UBALI
“WWIODE X 009 SBIN 18IS [eIYRIY

‘weaso pajured
‘ysiuy Je0y pabuods “Japuay

Sb @ %0 S8 pai yiep
paauied ‘5100p [eusa1x
Jaquin aduewopad YBIH

ysiuy pauteIs ‘YBIy WWOO6 (UMOYS J0u)
o126 13 99UD) PoPIEOQ BSOP JAGUIIL
i

| uonens|3 \‘

139

Bunsixe yorew
03 smopuim pazej

2Iqnop JAJN AUUM

Joelq pautess
“BuipieogsaLeam JaquiL

ysiuy pauiers
5e0 1yBI] ‘s100p [EUIBIXD
Jaquin souewiioyed YBIH

aUI SIY} MOJ3( PRINJSGO 18911 DN WOLJ MIIA

AN

|

Bunsixo
p1eW 01 S100p Youaly
paze|B 2ANop AN UM

“weasn paruted
“usiuy g0y pabuods ‘1apusy

jepuany w3 Aoen 62
“}oB|q BN|q ‘YSIUY UBAL
“WWQOE X 009 S8 21ES [BIPYNIY

19005 AN $8/28 7
‘weaso pajured
‘ysiuy 3e0y pabuods “Japuay

S|puLg YI00WS Jaquie)
8|qnoq awdy Nwa13 Aapep ‘679
‘wws9 L x §92 ‘san ureid Aey

ystuy uaau
‘wwoog
X009
so|n o%efs
[y

ym pajuted ‘Smopuim
yses saquin paze|B ajgnog

IOWIOLIQ %0038 NG
slepuan NI Aoen B
“}9B|q BN|q ‘YSIUY UBAL

“WWIODE X 009 SBI 23eIS [eIYRIY

Bunsixa yorew
01 MOpUIM JUBWasED
paze|6 ajgnop JAJN UYM

XnjeA "6 “usiuy
|ewi21xe A216 ‘wiwig 6
X 082 ‘MOpuIM JoOy

3ym pajuied ‘pieogabieq Joquin WS |




4010 apauuear
Wi

2ad R

suonpuoo
515 U punoy seuedessip Aue
-

5996 6v2L 020 1oL SIe14 2 MOIEBUNg | 'SSOH | 0) UoISIBAUOD Bl I ?
a0 9LN UopUOT] P —— o
peOY JoASUAQ 61 sueid posodosd oveh
' 160
P3| SjueyNsuoo Buip|ing ense § w,:m weia -
auenbg nbeuop *201/220°€ L Buimesp 03 panow suonead3 | p1g0zL| v
el}se osnon wouen Jusww0g Jo
. o woloid smeis soion s sy o | e
usiuy pourens
“Yb1y WWEOE (UMOYs J0u)
AN sease wO991100 g 35140y
03} papIzoq 850 saquiL
5001 BuIkp aoe|das
01 8013 ALIBYD aanjew 1wag
20841nS [aABIE /.
snouod punog uisas Jyng
ueld Jooy
ysiuy pauiels “YBIy WWOOg | [T
aEpuUaAY 111213 Aaliep B0 99UB} Pap.EOq 3SO[D JAQUIL
“foe|q n|q ‘Ysiuy UBAL
‘WWOQE X 009 S8} 21[S [BIDYNLY
apuLg yioows Jaquie)
signog awoy 1uIe13 Aapiep ‘63 / Buideaspue| 3jos ! e
“‘ww X ‘sa|n uieyd Aey
IS9L X §92 'sa|l 1 10 wwoo9 X 009
Sqels UoneAsasuoD sieyse
(7 B
= N Al
| =) T
N = —
L H
- s H
> = ] ) St &t
M =
- — U
* 2wg'sz
L | 1 aupY/BuIG L
,\L i BEI==
|
s
aoeds
Bunjied wwQO8Yy X 00¥2
wuwpo9 x 009 €
Ba.E U0[129]|09 UIq BSNJOY Sqe|S UOREAIZSUOD S|jeySIEn [
20B4InS [9AEI6
snoJod punoq uisal yng
ysiuy pauiess ‘ybiy wwoog |
20U3) pap.eOq BSO|0 JBqWIL -
100|4 38114
Buideospue| 1405 4
2 v2 -
s s g0 , o,
—_— e
suzt e

woospog aiqog

2ugzL
woospg oo

wooipog ous

100]4 puno.g

a9

I

2wz sz
Bun uelg uodo.

_uioospag aianoq

g

(10p1109 -9%0) 2w L
woospog oo

fuepunog
wouy xoeq

195 flem G
4

~—




oad €190 1 00k
mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

100]4 punot9

G996 6¥¢. 020 ‘19L
o onBukG Bt v 100 (44083

| uoneas|y

] |
j , T 0o

OO0 I

e

/010 eouUE
as
ey uol
PeOY JonsuAg 6€} sueld Bunsixd | ooy onbumeiq | onaor
‘pyl Sjueynsuoo Buip|ing ense
e b pappe ue|d J00I B UONY3S | K 1°10°'0Z P
elnse waion o3
. d smeis. son | ey e N wa | e
<
u ).
4
O b
FE U
ue|d Jooy 400]4 3814 P N
v s sas
\; i L 3 o ]
* woopsg 3 T woorpon w
mmmmmm 3 ooy =)

N =S | 5 NEERSS N e ===l

Leg .

1 -
o
K fanaf
Bl NS o .
I = al
w00ns 01 va/28 i

141

,,,,,,,,,,,,

€ uoneas[3 Z uopeas|y

L]
=
2=

=
]
.
.
-
-
I

L L0 OO0 HH

]
-

 uonens|y V-V U0oss

A [ e

L




This page is intentionally left blank

142



Agenda Item 6e

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 June 2014

Case No: 1400262FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: PROPOSED MEAT PROCESSING UNIT, OFFICES AND
CHILL STORAGE/DISTRIBUTION (USE CLASS B2)

Location: PLOT 1A EAGLE BUSINESS PARK BROADWAY

Applicant: R P MEATS LTD

Grid Ref: 519667 293635

Date of Registration: 08.04.2014

Parish: YAXLEY
RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
1.1 The application site is an undeveloped plot of land within the

boundary of the established Eagle Business Park in Yaxley village.
The plot is located on the frontage of the business park to Broadway
and abuts the landscaped earth bund. The site covers an area of 0.35
of a hectare and slopes down from west to east. Access is from the
unadopted Kestrel Way spur road, which also serves the adjacent car
sales premises on plot 1, the ‘in’ entrance to the Transforge industrial
unit on plot 3 and the undeveloped plot 2 to the east of the application
site.

1.2 Planning permission is sought to erect a building for use as a meat
processing plant, along with associated hardstandings for vehicle
servicing and parking. The use would mainly involve the butchery of
animal carcasses and the wholesale of meat to commercial
customers. Meat processing is classified as ‘general industry’ falling
within use class B2 of the use classes order.

1.3 The proposed building would have an internal floor area of 1184 sq.
metre, subdivided internally to provide fridge and freezer space and
commercial customer collection point, along with first floor office and
personnel facilities. Externally the building would measure approx. 34
x 26m in width and length, with the main eaves and ridge at 6m and
7.6m above ground level respectively. It would be clad predominantly
in grey/silver metal profiled sheets with green coloured infill panels.

1.4 The building would be orientated to front Broadway with the loading
areas to the north side and rear, and the commercial customer area
to the southern side of the building. The site would be levelled and
the finished floor level set at 14.65m ODN (Ordnance Datum Newlyn).
33 parking spaces are proposed of which 13 would be located within
the gated servicing area and 20 at the ‘front’ of the building; 2 of
which would be marked out for persons of restricted mobility.

143



1.5

1.6

21

2.2

The applicant and intended end user has operated from premises in
Peterborough since the 1950’s, sourcing and supplying meat to
commercial customers, including local education authorities and
restaurants. They intend to relocate to the application site to expand
their business. 18 staff are employed by the company.

The applicant initially proposed to operate a meat ‘cash and carry’
from the premises but this was omitted and the floor plan amended
on the advice of officers that it would not be practicable to control
retailing from the premises to preclude sales to non trade customers.

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

Planning Practice Guidance is also relevant.

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-

and-local-government

3.

3.1

PLANNING POLICIES
Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)

e E3 - ‘Industrial site allocation’ this site was previously shown
on Inset Map 76B as an employment land allocation.

e E7 - “Small businesses” - will normally be supported subject to
environmental and traffic considerations.

e E13 - “Industry, Warehousing or high technology and office
developments” — will not be permitted where it would cause
serious traffic noise or pollution problems or other damage to
the environment.

e T18: “Access requirements for new development” states
development should be accessed by a highway of acceptable
design and appropriate construction.

o T19: “Pedestrian Routes and Footpath” — new developments
are required to provide safe and convenient pedestrian routes

144



having due regard to existing and planned footpath routes in
the area.

En20: Landscaping Scheme. - Wherever appropriate a
development will be subject to the conditions requiring the
execution of a landscaping scheme.

En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale,
form, materials and design of established buildings in the
locality and make adequate provision for landscaping and
amenity areas.

CS8: “water” — satisfactory arrangement for the availability of
water supply, sewerage and sewage disposal facilities,
surface water runoff facilities and provision for land drainage
will be required.

3.2 Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations

(2002)

None relevant.

3.3 Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)
e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all

development will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered, including
design, implementation and function of development.

CS7: “Employment land” existing employment Iland
commitments such as Eagle Business Park Yaxley, will
contribute to the provision of employment land in the district.

3.4 Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)

Policy LP 1 — ‘Strategy and principles for development’: This
development proposal will be expected to achieve the
following criteria of policy LP1:

a. contribute to the creation or maintenance of mixed and
socially inclusive communities by integrating development of
homes, jobs, services and facilities;

b. make efficient use of land, buildings and infrastructure
within existing settlements whilst preserving local character
and distinctiveness;

c. support the local economy by providing a mix of
employment opportunities suitable for local people.

e. reduce water consumption and wastage, minimising the
impact on water resources and quality and managing flood
risk; and

145



Policy LP 6 - Flood Risk and Water Management’
Surface Water - A proposal will be supported where:

a. sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) are incorporated
where possible in accordance with the Cambridgeshire SuDS
Design and Adoption Manual and the Cambridgeshire SuDS
Handbook (forthcoming) or successor documents to the
satisfaction of Cambridgeshire County Council as SuDS
approval body and considered comprehensively with water
efficiency measures;

b. the standing advice of the appropriate Internal Drainage
Board and the Middle Level Commissioners has been taken
into account for the proposal if surface water would drain to an
Internal Drainage Board area; and

c. there is no adverse impact on, or unacceptable risk to, the
quantity or quality of water resources by incorporating
appropriate measures to help achieve the strategic aim of
reducing impact and risks to the quality and quantity of water
resources and to help meet the objectives of the Water
Framework Directive.

Policy LP 7 — ‘The Great Fen’: A proposal that lies outside the
Great Fen but within its Landscape and Visual Setting will be
expected to demonstrate consideration of the visual and
landscape impacts that the proposal could have on the Great
Fen, such as how the proposal might affect the aims of the
Great Fen project to establish an area where the experience
gained by visitors will be one of a tranquil area of countryside
unaffected by urban encroachment.

Policy LP 9 — ‘Development in Key Service Centres’:

Employment Development in Yaxley, a designated Key
Service Centre will be supported where it is appropriately
located within the built-up area of the Key Service Centre,
excluding a proposed office development in excess of 600m2.

Policy LP 11 — ‘The Relationship Between the Built-up Area
and the Countryside’:

Built-up Areas: All settlements defined as Key Service
Centres, Small Settlements or as settlements that are part of a
Spatial Planning Area, are considered to have a built-up area.

The built-up area is defined as a continuous group of 30 or
more houses. It excludes:

a. gardens, paddocks, agricultural land and other
undeveloped land in the curtilage of buildings on the edge of
the settlement where the land relates more to the surrounding
countryside than to the built-up area of the settlement;

b. outdoor sports and recreation facilities, other formal open
spaces and agricultural buildings on the edge of the
settlement

146



Policy LP 13 — ‘Quality of Design’:

A proposal will need to be designed to a high standard based
on a thorough understanding of the site and its context. This
proposal will be expected to demonstrate that it complies with
the following criteria:

a. provides a strong sense of place through a design solution
which reflects the surroundings and in the case of large scale
proposals through a masterplan which identifies how the place
will develop;

b. contributes positively to the local character, appearance,
form and pattern of development through sensitive siting,
scale, massing, form and arrangement of new development
and use of colour and materials;

c. includes high quality hard and soft landscaping and
boundary treatments so that there is a distinctive environment
for the development and to help integration with adjoining
landscapes;

d. respects and responds appropriately to the distinctive
qualities of the surrounding landscape, and avoids the
introduction of incongruous and intrusive elements into views.
Where harm to local landscape character as a result of
necessary development is unavoidable, appropriate mitigation
measures will be required;

e. has had regard to the Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD
(2007).

Policy LP 15 — ‘Ensuring a High Standard of Amenity’:

A proposal will be supported where a high standard of amenity
is provided for existing and future users and residents of both
the surroundings and the proposed development. This
proposal will therefore be expected to demonstrate how it
addresses the following relevant criteria:

a. availability of daylight and sunlight, particularly the amount
of natural light entering homes, the effects of overshadowing
and the need for artificial light;

b. the design and separation of buildings with regard to the
potential for overlooking causing loss of privacy and resultant
physical relationships and whether they could be considered
to be oppressive or overbearing;

c. the predicted internal and external levels, timing, duration
and character of noise;

e. the potential for adverse impacts of obtrusive light and the
contamination of land, groundwater or surface water; and

f. the extent to which people feel at risk from crime by
incorporating Secured By Design principles.

Policy LP 18 — ‘Parking Provision: a proposal will be
supported where it incorporates appropriately designed
vehicle and cycle parking with a clear justification for the level
of provision proposed, having regard to:

a. the potential to increase the use of alternative transport
modes including public transport, walking and cycling;

147



3.5

b. highway safety;

C. servicing requirements;

d. the needs of potential users; and

e. the amenity of occupiers of nearby properties.

Parking provision should be considered as an integral part of
the design process and its impact on the surrounding
townscape and landscape minimised. Reference should be
made to the Cambridgeshire Design Guide and the
Huntingdonshire Design Guide or successor documents and
to the Lifetime Homes standard.

Minimum levels of car parking for disabled people as set out in
national guidance will be required.

e Policy LP 19 — ‘Supporting a Strong Local Economy’:

Areas of land and buildings that contribute to the local
economy and provide on-going strategic employment
opportunities have been designated as Established
Employment Areas. Within Established Employment Areas a
proposal will be required to show how:

a. it affects the role and continuing viability of the Established
Employment Area in providing for employment opportunities
and as an attractive and suitable location for employment
uses;

b. it affects the range, availability and suitability of land and
buildings for employment uses in the nearest Spatial Planning
Area or Key Service Centre that the Established Employment
Area relates to, considering market issues including existing
and potential demand and lead-in times; and

c. the extent to which the use or mix of uses proposed can
give greater benefits to the community than the current or
most recent use.

Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD 2007 part 5 is also relevant.

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

4,

41

PLANNING HISTORY

These permissions establish the principle of developing the business
park for B1/B2 uses:

0601422873 - variation of time limit of 01009890UT permitted August
2006.

01009890UT - erection of buildings for B1/B2 industrial, permitted
August 2003.

Adjacent premises:
Plot 1 - the car showroom premises was approved in March 2012 ref.
1102057FUL

Plot 2 — the Transforge industrial premises was approved in April
2011 ref. 1100194FUL

148



5.1

5.2

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Plot 20 — the building containing the units fronting Broadway
(Enterprise Court) was permitted ref. 1100310FUL.

CONSULTATIONS

Yaxley Parish Council — recommend refusal (copy attached).
County Council as Local Highway Authority — no objection.
REPRESENTATIONS

None received.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The principle of developing the business park for employment uses
within use classes B1 and B2 is firmly established.

B1 is the ‘business’ use class and it is subdivided in three sub-
classes:

- offices: (use class B1a)
- research and development (use class B1b)
- light industry (use class B1c).

‘Light industry’ (use class B1c) means a use of land or buildings that
involve industrial processes that can be undertaken within any
residential area without detriment to residential amenity as a result of
noise, vibration, smell, fumes, smoke, soot, ash, dust or grit are
considered to be light industry.

Industrial uses that cannot be carried out within any residential area
without detriment to residential amenity are grouped in use class B2
as ‘general industry’.

The use of the proposed development falls within class B2 ‘general
industry’ and therefore has policy support, in principle, subject to
other material planning consideration.

These considerations include the acceptability of the design of the
building, the impact of the development on the character and
appearance of the locality, impact on neighbouring land uses, parking
provision and highway safety.

Design and impact on the character and appearance of the locality:

7.7

7.8

The design of the building is typical of the industrial architecture found
on the business park and within this exclusively commercial (except
for the small dwelling at Station Farm) area of the village. The
building would relate satisfactorily to the existing buildings on the
business park in terms of scale, form and appearance.

The business park is highly visible in the landscape and the

application plot is considered to be one of the most prominent plots
being relatively exposed on the approach to the village from Farcet.

149



7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

713

7.14

In views of the application site on the approach to the village, the
building would be viewed against the backdrop of the existing
buildings on the business park. An analysis of the approximate
building heights and land levels (listed as follows) indicates that the
building would sit comfortably on the business park frontage without
appearing unduly dominant in the street scene.

- roof height of the proposed building = 22m ODN

- roof height of the car showroom on Plot 1 = 20m ODN,

- roof height of the Transforge building on Plot 3 = 20.4m

- roof height of the building (containing individual units) at Talon Court
and fronting Broadway = 21.6m ODN.

Furthermore, the level of the Broadway carriageway on the approach
to the village is approx. 19m ODN, falling to 17m ODN parallel to this
plot. This gives a relative height difference of 5m between the
Broadway carriageway and the roof line of the proposed building.

The conclusion reached is that the building would relate satisfactorily
to its surroundings and it would not cause unacceptable harm to the
character and appearance of the landscape or the landscape setting
of the distant Great Fen project area.

The implementation of satisfactory details of hard surfacing and soft
landscaping can be secured by condition along with a detailed
external lighting scheme to control the effects of light pollution and
glare.

The proposed green coloured weldmesh fence for the boundary
treatment matches the existing plots on the business plot and is
satisfactory in principle; however given that the loading area on the
north side of the building would be more exposed, it is considered
reasonable and necessary to secure a solid form of boundary
treatment up to a sensible height 2-3m to screen, in the most part,
materials, goods and packaging and the like that might be stored in
the open.

Given the nature of the use and the regulations concerning the
storage of food products, it is unlikely that the use described would
involve significant storage in the open. Nevertheless, the premises
could be put to an alternative B2 use without needing consent from
the Local Planning Authority and consistent with other approvals on
the Broadway frontage, open storage would be precluded except in
accordance with a scheme confirming the location and heights of
open storage to be considered and agreed by the Local Planning
Authority.

Impact on neighbouring occupiers:

7.15

7.16

Meat processing falls within use class B2 ‘general industry’ because it
cannot, in theory due to the processes and effects arising therefrom,
be undertaken within any residential area without detriment to
residential amenity as a result of noise, vibration, smell, fumes,
smoke, soot, ash, dust or grit.

The B2 use of the plot is compatible with the existing land uses
granted within the business park, which are not especially sensitive to

150



717

7.18

7.19

the effects of noise, vibration, smell, fumes, smoke, soot, ash, dust or
grit. The car showroom may be more sensitive to grit and dust being
deposited on displayed vehicles, but this is a matter for the showroom
operators who chose to locate in an industrial area of the village.

The nearest residential dwellinghouse is located at Station Farm on
the Broadway frontage (approx. 140m to the south west) and it is the
only dwelling within the built up area of the village that is located on
this (east) side of the railway line.

The industrial premises on the business park and closest to this
dwelling are the subject of planning conditions that preclude B2 uses
from being carried so as to safeguard residential amenity at Station
Farm house.

The distance of separation between this plot and the dwellinghouse is
sufficient to ensure that a B2 use on this plot would not have an
unacceptable impact on residential amenity. Plot 3, which is a similar
distance from the dwelling at Station Farm is currently in a B2 use.

Highway safety and parking provision:

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

The estate roads within the business park are not adopted as public
highway, but they were designed to accommodate the ftraffic
movements (including Heavy commercial vehicles) predicted to be
attracted to the business park once fully developed.

The Kestrel Way spur road that leads to the application site measures
approx. 6m wide by 70m wide long, with a 1.8m wide footway along
its eastern side, and is lit by standard type street lights. It will
ultimately serve 4 plots (1, 1A, 2 and 3) and is wide enough to
accommodate the likely business park traffic without undue harm to
safety within the public highway. The plot would be served by the
existing footways from the public highway and the submitted drawings
show a footway within the application site and to the side of the
vehicle access.

Business parks inevitably generate significant HCV movements,
especially successful ones and the junction of the Falcon Way estate
road with the highway (Broadway) is adopted and it too was designed
to the appropriate standards given the scale and nature of the
business park.

Broadway through Yaxley is the subject of a weight limit, but this does
not apply to vehicles travelling to and from destinations within the
village itself.

Vehicle parking provision is to be judged on a case by case basis
having regard to the use of a site and the conditions of its
surroundings and context. The provision of 33 vehicle parking
spaces appears to be a significant overprovision relative to the
number of employees and likely visitors to the premises. However,
this does not cause any specific harm and it is perhaps beneficial,
given that double yellow lines (for private enforcement) have recently
been marked out on both sides of the un-adopted Kestrel Way estate
road to combat parking that obstructs HCV’s from accessing
premises, to overprovide now.

151



7.25

Overall, the proposal would not be significantly detrimental to highway
safety.

Other matters:

7.26

7.27

7.28

Should permission be granted, the applicant has requested that the
use of the premises need not be restricted to meat processing. The
business park was planned from the outset as an industrial area and
there is no justifiable reason to restrict the use of the premises to
meat processing only. An unrestricted B2 use, allowing the nosiest,
dirtiest and smelliest processes to be carried out from the premises,
would not result in unacceptable harm to the amenities of
neighbouring occupiers of land and buildings, which fall in either use
class B2 or B1(c).

It is necessary to ensure that the development is connected to the on-
site drainage infrastructure in the interests of not increasing flood risk.

The site is located close to a registered hazardous substance consent
installation.  The Health and Safety Executive PADHI+ self-
assessment process confirms it would not advise against this
proposal.

Summary of reasons for approval:

7.29

7.30

8.

The proposed development is considered to be compliant with
relevant national and local planning policy, and can therefore be
approved as:

- the principle of the development is acceptable.

- the character and appearance of the locality would not be
significantly harmed.

- the amenities enjoyed by neighbouring occupiers of land and
buildings would not be significantly harmed

- surface water drainage can be satisfactorily disposed of.

- parking provision is satisfactory and the proposal would not
significantly harm highway safety.

For these summary reasons the proposal is compliant with the
National Planning Policy Framework 2012, policies E3, E7, E13, T18,
T19, En20, En25 and CS8 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995,
policies CS1 and CS7 of the Huntingdonshire Core Strategy 2009,
policies LP1, LP6, LP7, LP9, LP11, LP13, LP15, LP18 and LP19 of
the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013).

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to conditions
to include the following

e grant a B2 use of the premises.
e  materials
e landscaping (including boundary treatment).
° provide and retain parking and turning space for all vehicles,
including cycles.
outside lighting
open storage
surface water drainage

152



If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate

your needs.
CONTACT OFFICER:

Enquiries about this report to Mr Gavin Sylvester Assistant Development
Management Officer 01480 387070

153



To: DevelopmentControl[DevelopmentControl@huntsdc.gov.uk];

Subject: planning applications
Sent: Wed 4/9/2014 7:35:59 AM
From: clerk@yaxleypc.org.uk
Dear Sir/Madam

At last nights full Council meeting, the following planning applications were considere

Parish Council Consultation — Planning Application Ref:1400336FUL — erection of
two storey rear extension at 87 Broadway, Yaxley — Parish Council recommend
approval as in keeping with surroundings.

Parish Council Consultation — Planning Application Ref:1400174FUL - extension
to existing building and reforming of balancing lagoon — 11 Imperial Way, Eagle
Business Park, Yaxley —Parish Council recommend approval.

Parish Council Consultation — Planning Application Ref:1400262FUL — proposed
meat processing unit, offices and chill storage/distribution with ancillary cash
and carry — Parish Council recommend refusal on grounds of the HGV traffic
movement onto the business park.

Parish Council Consultation — Planning Application Ref:1400304FUL — erection of
a 2 storey 3 bedroom property and removal of existing vehicular gate and
supporting brick pier to rear of 26A Church Street, Yaxley — Parish Council
recommend refusal as over development.

Parish Council Consultation — Planning Application Ref:1400153FUL - erection of
a 2 storey extension to dwelling and railing to form enclosure to front of 4
Bramble Close, Yaxley — Parish Council recommend approval.

Regards

154



Helen Taylor

On behalf of Yaxley Parish Council

155



Development Management Panel —

$ Scale =1:2,500 Application Ref: 1400262FUL R e A

Date Created: 03/06/2014 Location: Yaxley

/] The Site

=




S v10z Atenigay :Alva  90d L000dY  ON ONIMYHEA

€10E6E €€210 X4 0L0E6E EEL10 BUOYd LV@0Ss2ZL:L 8 002} ‘JIVOS 280C  ‘ON 103ro¥d
719 Z3d ubnoiogiajed poo YouAT

eon samton, § soress umed Ul UONRI0T B Q)IS - S)es
SLO3LIHOYY YOONUNL QIAYQ § >®_me vﬂ&waﬁ m_\w_ m_m

0521 308 002:+ 308

0 4 4 oul oul
[ — — | — | ﬁ , |

f
SARBWINA 00007 0

0scl -1 00¢-}
NYTd NOILYOOT Z NV1d 31IS ¢

LN
\. el | = | )
] Leom ,
it ,
} \ﬁ ey | — o
Al wodunn - ,
e ) )
\ m Aww e ¢80 EOCV cuge'e = ealy alIS
/B v 1074
£ —
eyl 107d >
=<
Sl 107d 20009
[rE——
- Peoy $5800Y \ MY
ysiug Buired yooiq
\ (seoeds pagesip ouz ou) g
9l 107d oS BRI
L X duse| ABiaua mo| o %
4 ljm lﬂ\N
/ﬂ |
|
/1 107d W !
Ay
vy R Y AR . AT,
TB5: sajen == — i
e o —
0z 18d N , ances oy == ,
) Pleweys, == | | Pﬂ
ay 107d 107d A9 r | !
9@
0z 107d : [ —foe W -
g%
ey 107d % 5 ; - i oy ez 500
NMJJ/ S - W :
= 3 & ig | (qwiBlL1) Y bssy. Tl
> & 3 I
£/. . = ! S1VaANd o
L0d PN 10dag g !
7 | Fe====S=======1
\y & | L
=< g L
o z107d H LI .
Ee NN 3 i 0697+ = 744 pasodoid
VRS il m
- ) s A &= __
sy apaes
A - piej B0M9G

ooy

fdouey

epun Bunupr IoE




00" SI0BIYOIEIPDONI IBW3 7102 Aeniga 31va ¢0d ¥000dVY  ‘ON ONIMVHd

€10€6€E £€£10 XB4 0L0E6E €ELL0 dUOYd LV@001:1L ‘J1vOS ¢80C  ‘ON 103rodd
Y19 23d Ubnoiogiajed Poom youkq 001} IS
peoy sos8WIWOoY ¢ 8snoH wnjeq ol - wco_ym>®_m waoqo._& = mems_ & m

SL103LIHOYY YOONYNL AIAva i fapxe yied ajbeg e}, 10/d

s o o 00 8 9 or e 0

NOILVAIT3 LSV HLNOS NOILYAT T3 1SVY3 HLHON
AdONYD ONIATING d3S0d0oyd dONVO, ONIQTING A3S0d0¥d
. » 7 0
f
@ — ® Q
: SLVIN T TTTTT
@ 4y
NOILYA3T3 LSIM HLNOS NOILVYATTE LSIM HLHON
ONIQTING A3S0d0¥d dONVO, ONIATING d3S0d0yd AdONYD
. . . . x
il il j B sl -
. 100 9 5303 o 9 z)
000 £ 4Py M\v H Mv % W l@ié@
o} ®
NOILO3S
L 7
4 4

im; - swooy ufuny i

g J00]]

S0 By,

s aEpyay

JESSE v
S0 paprsy

ZI0L WY K39 I¥SY8 HIM SO0
004 WIOZR] 03

STYRAIMN 0350d04d




AN"00°SJOBHYIRIP@ O] [1eWwS
€10€6E E£€210 Xe4 0LOZBE €210 dUOUd

719 Z3d ubnoiogiajed poo YyouAT
peoy 8oJsWwwWo) ¢ 8snoH wnieq

S1031IHOHY XOONdNL diAvad

Salauliy

(zw 687) ZU 0LLE V3D
00L:L NV1d Y0014 ¥3ddn

looq 8ue4u3 JenQ Adouery

0008} 0001 000 o0z
I I I I

0008
I

It
o o o

sl
v
s a0g

]

MCweg  Bupue)
1™ el
| o]

0

228\ Uadg uo W’
SileL REN
ang i
I

/1
$1a07 3el U Mm

S3K0]

3=

.

.
o

RAUGH
Buita) pajepnsu)

g% o0 2y Jajoy

ealy Yiedsig
1Bupeot Jarg fdoues)

fzia
R UY
1738l

0004
)

7

10z Arenigag
LV@001:1L

31va
‘3Tv0S

sue|d J00]4 pasodoid - Slesj\ d Y
faxe A yied o|be3 e| 104

¥0d ¢000dV
¢80¢

‘ON ONIMVYHA
‘ON 1O3rodd

(Zwgeg) ZUGe96 v¥I9
00L:L NV1d ¥0014 ANNOYD

ouenu3 jan( fdouey

r

100 aouesu3 Bupig s

.
Iy
152

016zl

96+
1eap g Buyzo
S Mey

S

1eajo wg Bulisd

00t

qult

0059

abpuy

3

g bupyg

0y

0%

20502

(23

20502

P
iy
L
0005

"

20202

159

100 Bupys x| =
— & a0 = =) =
M3
[ i m 7
] Avv — , , @
g
I c
] o
Jeajo wg|Bulied =

pc T ®

z fe £ "
—_— s =1 v

S

0003

0008 009 0009

ey




This page is intentionally left blank

160



	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 WIND ENERGY DEVELOPMENT IN HUNTINGDONSHIRE 2014 - SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT 2014
	4a Huntingdon
	4b Offord Cluny and Offord D'Arcy
	5a Huntingdon
	5b Warboys
	6a Buckden
	6b Hemingford Abbots
	6c Ramsey
	6d St Neots
	6e Yaxley

